AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 191 San Miguel Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-Mail avilacsd(@gmail.com

AGENDA

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
7:00 pm Tuesday, June 13th, 2017
BOARD MEETING LOCATION

AVILA BEACH CIVIC ASSOCIATION
191 SAN MIGUEL STREET
AVILA BEACH, CALIFORNIA

CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 P.M.

1. ROLL CALL: Board Members:
Pete Kelley, President
Lynn Helenius, Vice President
Eric DeWeese, Director
Ara Najarian, Director
Vacant, Director

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning
District operations which do not appear on tonight's agenda may address the Board
now. Please state name and address before addressing the Board and limit presentations
to 3 minutes. State law does not allow Board action on items not appearing on the

agenda.

3. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
Items of District interest which may be placed on later agendas, or where staff needs to

inform Board.

A. County Reports
1. SLO County Sheriff Department
2. CalFire/County Fire Department

B. Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest



CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or
may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

Minutes of April 11", 2017 Regular Meeting

Monthly Financial Review

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Water and Wastewater Superintendent Report

Appointment of a District Representative to the San Luis Obispo County Water
Resources Advisory Committee. (Action Required: Consider Appointing the
District General Manager to the Committee)

Sanitary Sewer Management Plan Audit Report (Action Required: Receive staff
report and direct staff to implement recommendations)

mMOOwW >

g2

DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.

BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

Resolution of Appreciation for former Board Member, Mr. Ken San Filippo
(Action Required: Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2017-02)

Fats, Oil and Grease Program Services Contract
(Action Required: Authorize Staff to Adopt Contract for FY 17/18)

Annual Weed Abatement Program
(Action Required: Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2017-03)

Resolution to Adopt the San Luis Obispo Integrated Regional Water Management Plan
(Action Required: Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2017-04)

Water Resource Analysis Tech Memo
(Action Required: Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff)

Request From Chevron to Discharge Treated Water From Groundwater Remediation
Project to the District’s Sewage Collection System.
(Action Required: Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff)

Facilities Committee Report Regarding Former Fire Station Tenant Lease Agreement
(Action Required: Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff)



H. PUBLIC HEARING: Fiscal Year 2017/18 Budget
(Action Required: Receive Report, Open Public Hearing; Consider Adoption of
Resolution No. 2017-05 Appropriations Limitations and Resolution No. 2017-06
Adopting a Final FY 2017/18 Budget)

L. Board Vacancy
(Action Required: Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff)

7. COMMUNICATIONS/ COORESPONDENCE

Al this time, any Director or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any announcements, or report
briefly on any activitics or suggest items for future agendas.

8. Adjourn to next regularly scheduled meeting on July 11", 2017

Any wriling or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed (o a majority of the Board after the
posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the lime the subject writing or document is distributed. The writing or document
will be available for public review in the District Administration Office. 191 San Miguel Street, Avila Beach, CA during normal business hours.
Consislenl with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section 54954.2 requests for disability related modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a disability who requires the modification or
accommodation in order (o participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District at 805-595-2664.



'.I.fi- .

s

LN M E

ik S

= "=

ey

' iy
FiaE

L
o L
"
e
B




1.

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
April 11th, 2017

CALL TO ORDER

President Pete Kelley called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community
Services District, to order at 7:03 p.m. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Civic Center.

2. ROLL CALL
Board Members Present: Pete Kelley
Lynn Helenius
Eric DeWeese
Ken San Filippo
Ara Najarian
Staff Present: Brad Hagemann, General Manager and District Engineer
Kristi Dibbern, Accounting Clerk
Absent: Carinna Butler, Operations Manager FRM
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Ken San Filippo announced he was moving out of the District and therefore he could no longer
serve on the Community Services District Board of Directors.
4. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. County Reports

1. SLO Sheriff:

Sheriff Voge introduced himself as the new commander representing the San Luis County
Sheriff’s Office. He reported 50% of calls for service this month were at Pirate’s Cove. Sheriff
Voge announced the new Community Action Team (CAT) program for San Luis County. CAT
handles issues regarding our transient and homeless population. The direct line to Sheriff Voge is
781-4630. Please contact him if you have questions or concerns.

2. Cal Fire Report:

Cal Fire Battalion Chief Paul Lee reported 54 calls for service this month. Twenty eight of those
calls were for medical assistance. Chief Lee reported that Chief Campos is being promoted to the
North Coast, and will be leaving a vacancy at Station 62. The vegetation teams arc working on
Davis Canyon opening the fire road creating firebreaks. CAL Fire is looking for funding for Cave
Landing to create another fuel break. Chief Lee reported that fire season begins May 15, all
stations are fully staffed and five additional engines are available for response. Weed Abatement is
around the corner beginning in mid- May. Please abate weeds around your property.



Avila Beach CSD
Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT Minutes April 11th, 2017

B. Reports on Conferences, Meetings and General Communications

GM Hagemann reminded the Board members to complete their ethics training. The California Special
District’s Association (CSDA) training office has created individual logins and passwords for each board
member and sent them an email with instructions. Emily Cha from CSDA sent the Directors an email in
late January that provided them a login and password to access the free training webinars. Directors that
have not completed their training should check their email for further instructions. Certificates of
completion should be turned into the District office for our official files.

GM Hagemann also reported Heritage Oaks is changing ownership to Pacific Premier Bank.

o CONSENT ITEMS

President Kelley introduced the consent items and inquired if any member of the Board or public
wished to address any items.

Minutes of March 14", 2017 Regular Meeting

Monthly Financial Review

General Manager and District Engineer Report
Capital Projects Status Report

Water and Wastewater Superintendent Report

HOOw >

The Directors had a question on the General Managers report regarding an update on the Public Records
Request(s) related to John Wallace/Wallace Group allegations at South County Sanitary District. Staff
provided a quick summary of the written report.

Director San Filippo made the motion to adopt the consent items. Director Helenius seconded the motion
and it passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Ken San Filippo
Lynn Helenius
Eric DeWeese
Pete Kelley
Ara Najarian

NOES: None

Page 2 of 5



Avila Beach CSD
Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT Minutes April 11th, 2017

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS.
None
7. BUSINESS ITEMS: Ttems where Board action is called (or.

A. Results of Water Tank Cleaning and Inspection Reports
(Action Required: Receive Report provide direction to staff)

GM Hagemann reported that ATS conducted the water tank cleaning and inspection on February 22™ &

3" 2017. Photos of the inspection were circulated to the Directors and interested public members.
Hagemann summarized the highlights of inspection reports and noted that Tank #1 (big tank) was last
inspected in Nov 2009. ATS removed a light sediment level and completed an interior and exterior
inspection. The ATS noted the tank is in good overall condition but recommends spot repair of exterior
and interior corrosion, cracking and peeling of paint. Staff will work with the inspector to develop a scope
of work for tank repairs, include a project on FY 2017/18 CIP and solicit quotes from qualified
contractors. Tank #2 was last inspected in June 2010. The 2010 Report finding was similar to 2017
findings. However, apparently no repairs were completed after the 2010 inspection. The inspector noted
that Tank #2 is in worse condition than Tank #1 and provided a lengthy list of recommendations. Staff
will work with the inspector to develop a project scope of work and cost estimate. Staff will include this
project on the FY 2017/18 Capital Improvement Program.

B. Update of District By-Laws
(Action Required: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2017-01, Updating the District By-Laws)

GM Hagemann explained the annual review of the District By-Laws should reflect any new legal
requirements or proposed operational changes. The Board reviewed the By-Laws at the March 14, 2017,
Board meeting and legal counsel suggested some changes to Section 2.8. No other changes to the By-
Laws were recommended. Resolution 2017-01 updates the District By-Laws.

President Kelley made the motion to adopt Resolution No. 2017-01 updating the District By-Laws.
Director Najarian seconded the motion and it passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Ara Najarian
Ken San Filippo
Eric DeWeese
Lynn Helenius

Page 3 of 5§



Avila Beach CSD
Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT Minutes April 11th, 2017

NOES: None

C. Former Fire Station Tenant Lease Agreement
(Action Required: Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff)

GM Hagemann summarized the Staff Report stating that the District owns the fire station building located
at 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach. As discussed in the March 14" 2017, meeting the lease with the
current occupants, Vizdom Software ends on 12/31/2017. In addition, the District’s lease with Avila
Beach Civic Association at the current office location expires 9/30/2017. GM Hagemann commented that
due to the timing of the existing leases, now is opportune time to make change (if the Board desires to
make a change) and added that the current lease rate may be below market rate, but comparable properties
are hard to find. Hagemann also noted that Vizdom would like to go to a shorter term lease (year to year)
and lower the rent increase factor.

President Kelley, GM Hagemann and Kristi Dibbern did a walk-through of the Fire Station on March 17",
They reported that the building is in good condition. During the walk-through, Vizdom representative
Mike Lacey provided a building floor plan that showed the teneant improvements they had made over the
last 12 years. The Directors discussed the feasibility of moving the District Office to the former Fire
Station and noted the facility would address a number of deficiencies of the existing District office space.
After some discussion, the Board referred the item to the Facilities Committee for further evaluation and a
recommendation. Facilities Committee will meet and report back to the Board at the next Board meeting.

D. Request for Consideration of Reducing Water and Sewer Monthly Fees Due to Injury
(Action Required: Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff)

GM Hagemann summarized a request from Mr. Chris Beard for consideration of a reduction of his water
and sewer utility bills for about 4 months due 1o an injury to his foot. Staff recommended the Board offer
a 12 month repayment period (with no fees or interest) for the $440 that occurred while Mr. Beard was
out of the house. Director San Filippo made a motion to have a written agreement with Mr. Beard stating
he would repay the outstanding balance within a 12 month period in addition to staying current with his
monthly bill. Director DeWeese seconded the motion and it passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Ken San Filippo
Lynn Helenius
Pete Kelley
Eric DeWeese
Ara Najarian

NOES: None
Page 4 of 5



Avila Beach CSD
Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT Minutes April 11th, 2017

ABSENT: None

8. COMMUNICATIONS:

The Directors directed the GM to consult with Legal Counsel Mike Seitz regarding the length of time
Director San Filippo could remain on the Board after moving out of the District and provide a report on

the process for filling the vacancy at the next . A count was taken to confirm a quorum for the May 9™
meeting. And dates will be announced for a Finance Committee Meeting in the next 3 weeks.

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m.

The next regular meeting of the Avila Beach Community Services District is scheduled for Tuesday,
May 9th, 2017 at 7:00 pm.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of Directors at their
next meeting.

utfully submitted,

4;

Brad Habemann
General Manager

Page 5 of 5§



.:-Ia:l 5”-. (8 ';:.'. '-::!:.:I'. |
. iel .'::-':'..:I::-EFI-r':"::I1I<'.-5:-_1::I s

o s '.".'--"Jr':.hjl
S 1 e ol -l
b e S T g
L -.: "J.T::;-..I:tr- I-...'}:'::II"
I.I L. N = s n




AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors

1 Y '
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage'b
DATE: June 13,2017

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for April & May 2017

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthly Summary

During April the District made deposits in the amount of $270,565.18 and experienced
$58.287.66 in expenses (cash basis). The deposits by fund and checks by fund are
provided as an attachment to this report. Income in April included $182,491.76 in County
tax income and $78.823.12 in monthly water and sewer fees.

During the month of May the District made deposits in the amount of $86,716.59 and
experienced $84,314.47 in expense (cash basis). The deposits by fund and checks by fund
are provided as an attachment to this report. Income in May included $4,657.53 in
County Tax income and $73,503.64 in monthly water and sewer fees.

Detailed financial reports including a Balance Sheet, Deposits by Fund, Checks by Fund,
as well as, a Profit and Loss Sheet for April & May are provided for your information.

Utilitv Service Billing

For the month of April the District billed approximately $83,533.67 in water and sewer
service charges. Customer Rate Assistance amounted in a reduction of billing charges to
the District in the amount of $519.67. The District billed approximately May $ 82,195.91
in water and sewer service charges and Customer Rate Assistance amounted in a
reduction of $503.12.

Operation and Maintenance

Staff is also including the Fluid Resource Management (FRM) Statement for April 2017.
The Statement includes expenses from the April Statement (which have been paid). The
Statement also includes the monthly contract Operations and Maintenance fee of
$17,756.82. Based on the tasks outlined the FRM Operations contract, staff has divided
the fee to $12,400.82 in the Sanitary Funding Class and $5,356.00 in the Water Funding
Class.



12:51 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis April 2017

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4000 - Income Summary
4010 + Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4030 - County Taxes
4090 - Rental Income
4600 - Interest Income

Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees TIB
5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages

5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.
Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

6000 - Administrative Overheads
6115 - Bank Service Charges
6135 - Legal
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6150 - Rate Assistance
6155 - Rent
6160 - Training
6170 - Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

TOTAL

78,823.12
1,724.34
182,491.76
3,260.00

4,265.96
270,565.18
270,565.18

270,565.18

157.99

2,473.08
0.00
0.00
0.00

2,473.08
44.56

~ 600.00

600.00

187.42

187.42
100.32
3,405.38

25,46
1,063.20
362.08
519.67
820.66
630.41
200.00

3,621.48

Page 1



12:51 PM

06/02/17
Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss
April 2017

Avila Beach Community Services District

6500 - Operating Expenses
6503 - Chemicals
6505 - Contract Labor
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint. - Other

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6525 - Fat Oil & Grease (FOG)
6530 ' Generator Maintenance
6535 - Insurance

6540 - Lab Tests

6542 - Maintenance

6550 - Operating Supplies
6565 - Regulatory Compliance
6575 - Small Tools

6580 - Solids Handling

6585 : Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8231 - WW-1 WWTP Upgrade
8232 - WW-2 Effluent Line Repair HD

Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani

8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water
8272 - W-2 Water Systm Valve/ Meter
8273 - W-3 Misc Water Line Replacement

Total 8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

TOTAL

3,171.77
29,334.30

3,5603.31
-236.49

5190.86

3,786.68

712.14
586.10
1,235.46
3,143.00
1,840.72
316.58
1,350.00
1,324.46
1,247.50
433.26
2,610.84

51,102.81

58,287.66

212,277.52

9,768.20

135.00

9,903.20

1,892.16

- 11,170.50

13,062.66

22,965.86

22,965.86
-22,965.86

189,311.66

Page 2



1:43 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash
1008 - Petty Cash
1010 - Heritage Oaks General Checking
1025 - Pooled Cash
1030 - B of A - Payroll
1050 - LAIF
1099 - Cash Balance

Total 1000 - Cash Summary
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable
1270 - Taxes Receivable
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings

Total 1250 - Receivables

1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance

Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1605 - Office Equipment

1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

Apr 30, 17

227.23
153.52
686,069.37
2,671,663.57
13,099.95
2,234,087.62
-2,671,663.57

2,933,637.69

2,933,637.69

146,629.39

146,629.39

3,019.76
8,787.45
101,800.65

113,607.86

2,470.80

2,470.80

116,078.66

3,196,345.74

8,233.58
-6,861.31

1,372.27

4,526.21
-4,526.21



1:43 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2017
_ Apr 30, 17 )
Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin. 0.00
1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land 60,314.10
1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost 1,318,875.26
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr -352,639.07
Total 1626 + Collection Assets 966,236.19
1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost 523,122.64
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr -264,042.83
Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment 259,079.81
1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original 105,000.00
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition 1,909,250.75
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep -886,106.88
Total 1635 - Treatment Plant 1,128,143.87
1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost 1,000,455.00
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum Depr -524,698.87
1642 - Treatment Equipment - Other 205,485.61
Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment . 681,241.74
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary 3,095,015.71
1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost 21,136.28
1654 + Equipment Accum Depr -21,136.28
Total 1652 - Equipment 0.00
1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost 1,109,466.00
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr -562,263.35
Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets 547,202.65
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water 547,202.65
1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA 29,810.00
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep -29,810.00

Page 2



1:43 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2017

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset

1690 - Construction in Progress

Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets

1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2240 - Health Insurance
2241 - Employee

Total 2240 - Health Insurance
2250 - PERS Liability
Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held
2304 - Fire Station Deposit
2305 - Capacity Fees Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability

2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Apr 30, 17

0.00
17,812.74

3,661,403.37

3,661,403.37

7,850.00

7,850.00

6,865,599.11

78,340.71

78,340.71

1,236.90
2,194.50
-1,834.49

0.01

0.01
309.12

1,906.04

7,580.00
2,000.00
252,907.16

262,487.16
264,393.20

342,733.91

115,049.00
15,115.00

Page 3



1:43 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2017
Apr 30, 17
Total Long Term Liabilities 130,164.00
Total Liabilities 472,897.91
Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings 6,141,126.38
Net Income 251,574.82
Total Equity 6,392,701.20
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,865,599.11

Page 4



| abed

20°998'6¢- 2l e9g- "rauey syeQ abewleH - QLOL woonsay 3ied Apunwwo) - £1/£2/€ - +/€ 291000 2102/90/¥0 usodag
56205 62- ¥5'89- “auay syeQ abeylaH - 010} ¢ 48ylo @/1 £210e/90/+0 usodaq
I vev 62- 000 rauan syeQ abeuleH - QL0 F48Ul0 2/1 2102/90/¥0 usodag
L eV 6e- cg've “rauan) syeQ abelieH - 0101 a0UBISISSY 81y 2102/90/¥0 ysodaq
£2'65v'62- ge'L19'e- "rauan syeQ ebeluey - 010t Jdsy IUeg 210e/90/v0 usodeq
88°.¥8'9¢- L1'SS "rauan syeQ abelisH - 010} ¢ 48ylo /| 2102/30/¥0 usodaQg
60'€06'92- 000 “rausyn e abellaH - 0101 L4840 2/t 2102/S0/#0  usodeg
S0'€06'92- /28 "ausn syeQ ebeiisH - 0101 BoUBSISSY 1By 2102/50/v0  usodeQ
Ze'L16'92-  ££'6859'}- “ausn) syeQ ebeisH - 0101 ooy Iues L10g/50/v0  usodeq
66°.52'G2- 0" ¥86'02- ""ausp syeQ abeway - 0101 81SeM - O3S 21 HdV 401 2102/50/%0  wsodsQ
BS'ELC V- 000 "ausy syeQ abesH - 0101 g 18y10 2/} L102/%0/v0  usodeq
6S'€L8 V- 95'622 "ausy syeQ ebelsH - 0101 L J8yi0 /1 L102/b0/v0  usodag
G1'€0S'v- 89 “ausy syeQ abejisH - 0LOL 90UBJSISSY aleY L102/b0/Y0  usodeQ
€8'L¥S'b- 2e'esL'e- **guap) syeQ sbewsH - 0101 osY lues L102/%0/%0  usodeq
IS'v6E'e- 16'229- ""guep syeQ abewiay - 0LOL OISBM - JN HVIN LI A4 401 L102/%0/%0  usodeQ
CAVINE 000 “"ausn) syeQ ebejusH - 0101 Z 4810 2/} L102/0/v0  usodag
CHVINE 1025 “*auep syeQ abelisH - 0101 | Joyio 2/t 2102/€0/#0  usodeq
19°628" |- 59'6Y “ausn syeQ ebejiaH - 0101 90UBISISSY alky L102/e0/v0  usods(Q
92'6/8'L- 9z'.8'}1- “"auen syeQ sbesH - 0101 oy lues L102/80/k0  usodeq

Asejueg

vy 6r9'e- v 6¥9'€E- s1ybi je1o0
v'6v9'e- LB'Ele- "ausn syeQ abeplsH - 010} GO’ sWbIT ‘Gz J48IBM ‘0L UBD - | # dINI - 0920:V S680: 2102/va/v0 usodeQ
L' GEVe- 62’18~ auso) syeQ abejaH - 0101 G0" sybI ‘Sz’ Jere M ‘0L U8 4 11N - | # dINI - 0920V S680: 2102/0e/v0 usode(
g1 19e'¢e- ¥8'188- "auan syeQ abewsH - 0101 GO’ sIyBIT ‘G2 18¥e ‘0L UBD) - | # NI - 0920V G680: L102/LL PO usodeQ
vE'69v'2- GE'L2e |- "auen syeQ abeleH - 0101 GO' sybIT ‘Ge 191epN ‘02" UBD - | # NI - 0920V G680: L102/ELP0 usodeq
66 L7 L L- AN “auen syeQ abepsH - 0101 SO sWBIT ‘G2 J81eM ‘0L  USD) - | # dINI - JIN HYIN LI A4 401 L102/50/v0 Isodaq
§.'0¢g- G.0€- “rausn syeQ abewsH - 0101 SO sWBI ‘Gz 81 ‘0L  uSD) - | # dINI - JIN HYIN £ Ad 401 £10g/v0/¥0 P_m%amo

sIybn

01°25€'SS- 01 2SE'G5- UIWIPY / |BJBauas) [B1o |
01°26e'6G- 09'666'¢- “ausn syeQ abeysH - 0101 S0 siubI ‘Gz 4ot ‘0L usD 4 DIS - | # dI - 0920V S680:4 2102/vefr0 usodeq
0G'9G6€'2G- 86'6L1°L- “ausn) syeQ abellaH - 0101 GO" SBI ‘G2 181 ‘0L UuBD 4 TN - L # NI - 0920:V S680: 2102/02/v0 lIsodeq
25°921°1G- 8L'GPETI- “ausy) syeQ abewisH - 010} SO" sWbIT ‘G2" 1e1BM ‘02 UeD - | # dINI - 0920V S680:4 2108/LL/v0 usodeq
¥2'0€8°8E- 00'09g'¢e- "ausn syeQ abejeH - 0101 aWwoou| [eluay L102/ELP0 nsodaQ
PL'025'GE- 96'861'8 |- “rausn) syeQ obewsH - 0LO} GO" SWbIT 'Gg 481eM ‘02" UBD - | # dINI - 0920:V S680: LI02/E L0 usodaq
8L L2021~ 00°000°}- rausn syeQ abeiusH - 0101 1008 Yse) woiy L108/gL/v0 usodaq
8L 120°9L- 0€ L¥9'GL- "ausn syeQ abepeH - 0101 GO' SIUBIT ‘G2 JB1BM ‘047 UBD - L # dINI - AN UVIN £} Ad 401 2102/50/+0 usodag
81 0EY- 8t 0ct- “rausy) syeQ abeijuaH - 0101 GO’ sybI ‘G JB1BM ‘027 UBD - | # JINI - AN HVYIN LI AJ 401 2102/v0/v0 usodeQ

uIpY / [BIB3UaY)

aouejeg unowy uidsg owapy aeq adA

2102 |udy

pun4 Aq sysodaqg 21/20/90

1011SId S92IAI8S AJUNWIWOY Yyoeagq ejiny



2 abed

LO'E96'erL-  28'v2 "rauen syeQ abelsy - 0101 80UBISISSY alBY 2102/se/v0  wsodag
£8°286'2hL-  6562.- “auan syeQ abelisy - 0101 o8y lueg 210g/seg/v0  usodag
¥2292'erl-  €1'GZE'b- rauen) syeQ sbelisy - 0101 XV1 d3"ND3S HHND 0920V S680:4 2102/ve/v0  usodag
LLZE6'2EL- 000 auan syeQ sbelsy - 0101 Z 8Y10 2/1L L102/02/v0  usodag
LLZE6'2EL- 01O "rauan) syeQ abeyisy - 0101 I 48410 g/} /102/0g/v0  usodag
12'/€6'2EL- 128 "auan) syeQ abewsH - QLOL aouelsIssy ajey 2102/02/¥0 usodaQ
8Y'Sv6'LEL-  GB'2E9- “auan) syeQ sbelusH - 0L0L o8y lueg 2102/02/¥0 usoda(
ES2ZIE2EL-  L1'980'6E- "rauen) syeQ abeway - 010 XYL ALMILN HHND 0920V S680:4 £102/02/¥0 usodag
2v'9/2'86- 000 “rauan) syeQ sbeleH - 0L0L 2 48U10 2/t 2102/81/¥0 usodag
Zv'9.2'86- 000 “auan) syeQ abelsH - 0101 | 18410 2/} £102/81/+0 usodag
2¥'9.2'86- 000 ""auan syeQ abejusH - 0LOL 80UB]SISSY aley 2102/81/v0 usodag
2v'9.2'86- 90’ Lg8- “ausy) syeQ abelsaH - QLO} o8y lueg L102/81/%0 usodsQ
986Gt L6- 000 “auan) syeQ abelsH - 0101 2 48yl0 2/t L108/L1/¥0 usodag
965G L6~ 000 ""auan syeQ sbeylay - 010} L 1oyl /1 2108/LL/v0 usodag
9£°651'26- 12'8 “"ausn) syeQ abelsy - QLOI BOUB]SISSY aley L102/LL1¥0 usodaQ
£9'E9%'/6- 90'66S" |- ““ausn) syeQ sbeiieH - 0LOL o8y lueg L102/21/p0  usodag
15'898'G6- 01'€0G‘}- "auan) syeQ abellsH - 010} L1/9/€ 6211 # 30 pd ‘¥ealq sul 8sinquisl 2102/21/v0  usodag
L¥'GOE'v6- 91'628'LL- "auen syeQ abelsH - 0LOL XVY1 d3HND3S HHND 0920:V 5680: 210e/L1/v0  usodag
L& 0¥S‘9.- 802} “~auar) syeQ sbeleH - 0L0L 2 48410 2/1 L102/eL/v0  usodag
6£'255'9.- 000 ""auan syeQ sbelisy - 0L0OL L J2U10 2/1 L102/eL/v0  usodag
6€°255'9.- 000 ""ausp) syeQ ebelsH - 0LOL 8oUB]SISSY aley L102/eH/P0  usodaq
66'255'9.- G 81G'9- "auay) syeQ sbellsH - L0} o8Y lueg L102/eH/P0  usodsQ
¥9'££0'02- 1260.'9e- "ausp syeQ abelusy - 0101 XVL1 d34HNO3S HHND 0920V S680:d L102/eL/v0  usodag
LEv2e'eh- L0'¢- yseD Jawoisng - SO0t Z 8ylo g/t L102/2H/k0  usodaQ
0g'128'Sy- 000 ysen Jawoisng - 5o0L WET g FAI 2102/2HP0  usodeQ
08'12E'Sh- 0L'ee yseD Jswoisny - GO0t aoue)sISSy a1ey 2102/2H/P0  usodsQ
Ov' ¥SE'Sh- GG 10g- ysen Jawoisng - GO0t J8Y lueg L102/2H/k0  usodsQ
G8'250'E- LLp- ""auap) syeQ ebesH - 0101 Z48U10 2/t L102/LHP0  usodsQ
v2'8v0'Ch- 000 "ausp) syeQ abejisH - 010t | J8U10 /1 L102/11/#0  usodeg
v.'8v0'Ch- 000 "auay syeQ abeisH - L0} 8oue)sIssy aley 2102/LHP0  usodag
¥2'8¥0'Ch- £2°0v2'6- "ausn syeQ ebeyaH - 0101 J8y Iueg L102/LH/P0  usodsQ
15°808'¢Ce- 00°SE2- "auap syeQ abeliaH - L0}k soueldwo) Aioieinbay - WHH punjey L1102/ /%0 usodag
1G'625'CE- EL° 18} “auar) syeQ ebelueH - 0LOL Z4ey0 2/t 2102/0H/P0  usodag
¥9'¥5.'ce- 000 "auan) syeQ sbeusH - 0101 I 4810 2/1 L10g/0L/v0  usodag
¥9'vGL'EE- 0L'Ee “ausp) syeQ sbesH - 0LOL 80UB)SISSY 8ley L102/0L/v0  usodag
v1'18)'€e- 90'L6L - ""auap syeQ abelsH - 0L0L o8y lueg 2L0g/0L/v0  usodag
89°966°0¢- ZL'e9¢e “reusg syeQ abejeH - 0101 T AwunwwoD - 21/£2/€ - L/E 291000 21/9/v peyoog 018 Jo Alunon /102/20/v0  usodeQ
08'656°LE- L6865 "auan) syeQ abeiuisH - 0101 g 48Ul0 g/t L102/20/#0  usodsQ
lZ6LY LE- 000 "auay syeQ sbeilsH - 01O} I 18U10 2/1 L102/20/v0  usodaQg
12'6LY LE- 000 ""ausp syeQ abejusH - QLOL 80UBISISSY aley /102/L0/v0  usodag
L26LYLE- 02'€55' |- "auap syeQ abejusy - 0101 o8y lueg 2102/20/#0  usodaQ
aouejeg unowy yids owap a1eq adA}
pund Aq susodag £1/20/90

1011SIQ S991A19S AjlUnWiWo) yoeag efIny



¢ abeyq

¥8°LBG LL- 000 “ausn syeQ abewsH - 0101 80UBlSISSY 8jeYy L102/L0/#0  usodeqg
v8 265 LL- cl'96.L'e- “auen syeQ abewsH - 0101 o8Y J8lBM 2102/L0/#¥0  wsodeq
ZL108'vL- 2.'829- “"auer) syeQ abelseH - 0101 uonebiu| 18 ol4 - £1//2/€ - /€ E8Y1L000 2102/90/%0  usodeQ
V2L pL- 28 162" "ausy syeQ abeweH - QL0 uonebiu| sued uenp ues - 21//2/¢ - 1/€ 2291000 L102/90/#0  usodag
80°L8E'EL- 91'09e- “rausn syeQ abewaH - Lo} woodisay Yied Anunwwog - £1/22/¢ - 1/¢ 291000 2102/90/#0  usodeQ
g6 0gL'El- 589~ “"guar) syeQ abelaH - 0101 2 180 z/1 2102/90/%0  usodseQ
8E2S0'EL- 000 "'ausn) syeQ abelieH - 0101 L 1oW0 2/1 2102/90/#0  usodeq
8E250'El- €8've “'ausn) syeQ abeleH - 01O QouBlsISSY aleY L102/90/¥0  usodeq
12 LL0'EL- ¥0'¥05'2- "'ausn) syeQ abewsH - 01Ok 08Y J81BM L102/90/#0  usodeQ
L1250~ 81°GS "rausn syeQ abewsy - Q101 2 18410 2/} 2102/50//0  usodeQ
GE'829°0}- 000 "“auan) syeQ abellsy - 0101 F48UI0 2/} £102/50/¥0 usodag
GE'829'01- 82’8 “auan syeQ abewssy - 010} B0UB)SISSY 8leYy L102/S0/#0  usodeQ
£9°9€9'01- 2y 9E9’ 1~ "rausy syeQ abewsH - QLOL o8Y JBIEM 2102/s0/v0  usodeQ
+2°000'6- 81'98G'G- “-guar) syeQ abelisH - 0101 SO SWBI ‘G2’ Jorem ‘0L D) - | # dINI - N HYIN 2+ Ad 421 L102/30/#0  usodeQ
E0VIY'e- 000 “rauag syeQ abeysH - 0101 Z d8u10 /1 LL02/v0/v0  usodaQ
E0'vI'E- 15622 “rausg syeQ abeyisH - 0101 | JBYO 2/1 L102/b0/v0  usodeqg
09°'ev9'e- 69 v “rauar) syeQ sebeiisH - 010} aouejsIssy arey L102/v0/k0  usodeqQ
62'889°¢- 0,298}~ “*auan syeQ abeyssH - 0101 08y J81B M L102/P0/v0  usodeq
65'028"L- v2'eS1- "rausn syeQ abeisH - 0101 SO" S ‘G2 Jete M ‘0L UBD - | # JNI - 3N HYIN L1 Ad 401 L102/v0/¥0  usodeq
G8'999' |- 000 “rauap syeQ abeyiaH - 010} Z 8yl g/t L102/e0/k0  usodeq
G8'999° |- 80°2S rausy syeQ ebewsH - 0101 L 12Yl0 g/t L102/e0/v0  usodeq
€6'8LL - 5961 “rauan) syeQ ebewsH - 0101 80UEB)SISSY 8jey L102/e0/v0  usodeqg
8589/ }- 85°89/' - “rausy syeQ abewsH - 0101 o8y 8l M 2102/e0/k0  usodeq

BEIFTY

vevelL'l- vE'vEL |- 9ISEM PIOS (810
veveL'L- ve'veL' |- “aueD syeQ abelsH - 0101 MS 894 9siyouei4 SUOROBUUOD BISBM /|02 YoIBW LL/E L102/L1/#0  usodeqQ

21SEM PIIOS

L¥'982'Evl-  LP'98Z'EVL- Areyueg |ejo |
L¥'982'evl- 000 yseg Jeawoisny - GO0k 2 18ui10 2/1 L102/L2/v0  usodeq
/¥'982'e¥l- 000 yseQ Jawoisny - GO0t L1ayi0 g/t L102/Le/v0  usodeqg
L¥'982'Evl- 000 yseQ Jawoisng - GO0} 9ouelsISsY 8leY 2102//2/#70  wsodeq
V'982'Erl-  G1'9G- ysep Jawoisng - GO0| 08y lueg L102/.2/v0  usodeqg
zeoez'erl- 000 "rausy syeQ abewlsH - 0101 2 l8u0 2/1 2102/92/¥0  wsodeq
2e0e3'ekl- 000 “*auer) syeQ abelsH - L0 L 18uI0 2/1 2102/92/70  ¥sodeQ
2e0e2'evl- 128 “*auer) syeQ abelsH - 0101 aouelsISsy 8jey L102/92/¥0  wusodag
6G°8E2'EVI-  G2'082- “auen) syeQ abewsy - 010} o8y lueg 2102/92/v0  usodeQ
¥8°256'2vL- 000 “ausn) syeQ abeusH - 0101 2 18u10 2/} 2102/s2/v0  wsodeQ
¥8'2S6'gvL-  LL'S “*auarn) syeQ abelseH - 010} L 48U10 2/} 2102/S2/v0  usodeQ

asueeg junowy yds owap aleq LY

2102 1udy

pun4 Aq susodaq £1/20/90

1911S1@ S99IAI9S Ajunwwoy yoeaq ejiny



¢ abeqd

98 L8V 6V- 000 ""auap syeQ sbesy - 010t g 48U10 2/1 L102/52/¥0 usodag
98" LE¥'6V- 81'G "auay syeQ ebeysH - 0104 L Joyi0 g/t 2102/52/¥0 usodag
Y0 Evv'6Y- £8'v2 “ausn) syeQ abeliaH - 0104 aouelsSISSy aleYy L102/Se/v0 usodsQ
18'29%'6V- L1°9G2- "auen) syeQ ebejusH - 0104 o8y Jelep 2102/52/¥0 usodeg
CYARNWA: A 98°'690' |- “guan) syeQ ebeusH - 0101 60" sybI ‘g2 1ereM ‘02 UBD 14 O3S - | # dINI - 0920V S680:4 2102/¥2/¥0 usodaq
06" 179" Lb- 000 "auay) syeQ abeisH - 010} Z BUl0 g/t 2102/02/¥0 usodeq
06" L¥9‘ L~ 0o auey syeQ ebeylsH - 0101 I Jayl0 2/1 2102/02/¥0 usodsQg
00'2v9'Lb- 828 "ausy syeQ abeyaH - L0 8ouelsIssy siey 2102/02/v0 usodeq
82°059' - IR AR AN "auay) syeQ sbeulsH - L0} o8y Jelep 2102/02/¥0 usodag
02 98¥'9v- A4 “auy syeQ ebeysH - 0101 S0 SybI7 ‘Gz 18reM ‘0L ueD) (4 11N - L # Al - 0920'V S680: 2102/02/¥0 usode(g
82'710'Op- 000 "ausy syeQ abeyssH - 01O Zeul0 g/1 L102/8+/¥0 usodeq
8L %10°9%- 000 “auar) syeQ ebelsH - 0101 }daylo g/t L102/81/¥0 usodsQg
8% 10'9p- 000 "'audn) syeQ ebeysH - 0101 80UEB)SISSY aleY 2102/84/¥0 usods(
8.'%10'9%- 8v°08.- "'ausn syeQ abejyiaH - 010 o8y Jo1EM L102/81/¥0 usode(
0€'¥82'Sh- 000 “auaK) syeQ ebejusH - 0101 2 18410 z/1t L1028/ H/P0 usode(
0E'¥E2'Sh- 000 "auaK) syeQ abejusH - 0104 L Joyio 2/L 2102/2L/%0 usode(
0e'¥e2'st- 82'8 “ausy) syeQ abejusH - 010} 8oueB)sISSY 8By L102/2 /PO usodag
85'2h2'sp- GHEVE - "'ausn syeQ ebepeH - 010} a8y Ja1e M 2102/2L/%0 usode(
£1°668'ct- 1260t - “'gusx) syeQ abeaH - 0101 S0 SWBIT ‘SZ° 181 M ‘0L USD) - | # dINI - 0920V S680:4 L108/L1/¥0 usodeq
26'687°66- 000 “'ausn) syeQ abeyeH - 0101 Z 18ui0 /1 L102/e1/¥0 usodag
26'681'66- 8021 "ausn) syeQ obelueH - 010} L Jayio g/t 2102/e1/¥0 usode(
00205'6¢- 00'0 “'suen) syeQ abejusH - 0101 souelsissy ajey LL02/E Y0 ysods(g
00°205'6¢- 29'6/5'0- “'ausn) syeQ abejueH - 010} 28y Je1B L102/eL/¥0 usodag
8€°926'2E- 12°909°9- “auen syeQ abejueH - 0101 GO’ s ‘'Sz 181 M ‘0L UBD - | # JINI - 0920:V S680: L102/€1/¥0 usodag
19°61LE'92- 80°¢- ysen sewolsny - 001 218y /1 21028/21/v0 usodeq
£5°918'92- 000 yse Jewolsnd - 00t L Joy10 2/1L L10g/2/v0 usodeQ
£5°91€'9e- OL'Ee ysep Jswolsng - S0t 89UB)SISSY BlBY £102/21/¥0 usodag
£9'6¥5'92- 09291~ yseo Jewolsny - SO0t J8y Jalep 2102/2 /%0 usodag
£0°281'92- L “ausn syeQ abelsy - 0101 Z18U10 2/ 2102/} /Y0 usode(
26'281'92- 000 “ausn) syeQ abelsH - 0LOL | JoY10 2/1 L1028/} L/¥0 usode(
26281 '9e- 000 "rausn) syeQ abewaH - 0101 80UB)SISSY aley L102/1 /PO usodag
26'281'92- /9°'6.0'8- ausn) syeQ abeleH - 010} 28y Ja1e M 2102/ L/¥0 ysods(g
S2'€0L'8l- Y1181 "rausy syeQ abejsH - 0101 Z 18410 /1 £102/01/%0 usodag
65'¥82'81L- 000 “'auan) syeQ abelueH - 010} L Jay10 2/1 L102/01/%0 usoda(
6£'¥82'81- OL'EE "'ausy) syeQ ebelleH - 0101 90UB)SISSY 8lBY L102/0L/%0 usodeq
61 L1E'8L- £E'657'2- "ausp) syeQ abejuey - 010} J9Y Jajep\ £102/01/%0 usode(
91'8G8'GL- 2.'829 “reusy syeQ abelueH - 0L0L M| IS OIS - L1/LZ/E - L/E E8YL000 L1/9/v pexoog 0118 o Aunon £102/20/%0 usodeQ
88°98v'91- Ze'16. “'auen) syeQ abejioH - 0L0L T UBNP UBS - £ 1/22/E - /€ 2291L000 £1/9/F pexoog O1S 4o Alunon 21028/20/%0 usodeQ
0284221~ 91092 “ausn) syeQ abelusH - 0L0L T Auunwwod - Z1/22/€ - L/E 291000 Z1/9/% pexoog O1S Jo Auno) 2102/20/%0 usodaq
9e'86G°' .}~ 8v'65 “auen) syeQ abejusy - 0101 Zi8y10 2/t £102/20/%0 usode(
8265 L1- 000 ausn) syeQ abeyiey - 0101 ET g I L102/20/¥0 usodag
aosuejeq junouwny nids owap ajeq adA)
2102 udy
pung Aq susodaq 11/20/90

1914)S1g S92IA18S AjUnwwo) yoeag ejIny



G obeq

£9vze'ese

£9'vZ8'c5e-

Iviol
82218'61- 82°218'61- 18R (B0
82Z18'6k- 000 YseD Jawoisng - G0/ Z 18u10 2/| L102/22/v0  usodag
82'218'6h- 000 useg Jswoisny - 5004 L 48UI0 2/1L 2102/2g/¥0  usodeq
82218'6b- 000 ysen JswWwoisng - 500k aouelsISSY arey 2102//2/v0  usodeq
82'218'6h- G8'eb- yseo Jawoisng - 500} 08y Je1e M 2102/1g/v0  wsodsq
£1'89/ '6- 000 “rauen syeQ abeuisH - 0LOL g 18u10 /1 /102/9g/t0  usodaQg
£¥°'892'6Y- 000 “auan syeQ abelisH - 0101 L 42410 2/1 2102/92/¥0 usoda(g
£7'89.'6Y- 82'8 "auay syeQ sbellsH - 0LO} S0UBISISSY QlBY 2102/92/¥0 usedsg
LL'9LL 6Y- G8'8E€E- “rauen syeQ abelisH - 0LOL 08y JBlEM 2102/92/v0 usodaqg
aouejeg unowy nids o owapy  eeq adA}
2102 |udy
pun4 Ag sysodaq L1/20/90

101181 $991A18S AjlUNWWoO) yoeag ejIay



| abeg

SH'GBSG'E2 00'Sap L soue|dwo) Aioenbay - G959 £8SSLM LL/LIE UPNY JINSS 2102 ‘ou| uswabeuey soinosay PNl pLLL ZL0Z/6LP0 ¥O2YUD
SP'00Lgz 00'00+ aoueldwon AoieinBay - Go59 G855 | A SHoday aoueldwo) ANT L1102 ‘ou| ‘wewebeusy sounoseyY pni4  pZLL LLOB/BL/YO ¥o8UD
S¥'000°22 9L'Log'e Ay-ue g “day "dinb3 - ggsg 715G 1 An Jolelauar) abeing Jamod seonag ppy "ou] ‘wewebeuep sounosay pinl4  p2LL ZL02/6L/P0 ¥o8UuD
62°66.'81 00021 Iny-wepy ® "dey "dinb3 - Zz59 G967 LA N 188 Jaindwo) 1esysyoay) ‘ou] ‘weawsBeuep sownosay pNi4 L Z10Z/BL/Y0 Yo8uD
62'629'81 08'00t'2L logeT 19BAU0D - G059 049514 "Au| 102 Yorew - sdO MM ‘ou| ‘juswsBeue soInosey PNl wZLL ZL0Z/BLAE0 Mo8uD
6v'822'9 €168 19uie| / auoydeje] - 5859 18UIB1U| G880 X # 1008 1%1Y 2L0Z/SLIY0  osuD
972619 2/'0g¢ B0UBUBIUEN - 2459 lreday aur [eang sbuuoopy lopusp 1DuisIg JoqeH sIM UBS o4 6911 ZLOZ/90/v0  Y28yD
$0'2.8'S 0/'€.6 s(eojwayd - 059 0PE2G.2 Idg "M ‘ou| ‘oyloed Bejuusig  g9LL  Z10Z/90/K0  MOo8uD
¥£'868'y 00'EVL'E s188] q¥] - 0%S9 218y Wawalels “oul ‘leonfjeuy 1sBOD suoleqy  /9LL  ZL08/90/PQ  Ho8uD
PECGL L ¥8LLL salinn - 0659 lesdwing pA g sopuag Aejueg unop YInos  99LL ZL0Z/90/F0 %oBUD
05°2€9'L oy LY0' | s[eolwayd - €059 ZrLELL 1A AUl ‘ou| ‘oyloed Beluualg 29Kl ZL0Z/E0/P0  3oBYUD
01'965 01’965 SOUBUBIUIBIY I0JRIBUBY) - 0EGO LGG/E "AU| JOJBIBUSY) JO 8IAIBS AlBLEND "Ou| ‘BSNOUIBMOY SINTT UBS  8GLL  ZL0Z/E0/F0  Y08UD

Aleyues

66'876 66'876 sybr eyo L
66'876 86'/8¢ - 069 /-90959/96./G #1098 s1ybi 1S Juoi4 399d LL0Z/VElv0  Ho8yn
LO°L9S 20°0.% - 0659 £-¥869/60890 # 1008 SYBr] umo | 3%9d LI0Z/E0/PD  H28YD
66°06 66'06 - 0659 0-29€65 12665 # 1008 sybr Auojon 3%9d L10g/E0/F0  H08UD

syBr

Z9'e19'slL Z29°el9'sl ulWpY / [elauey [ejo |
Z9'elg'SL 000 AR g day ‘dinb3g - zzgg LELELY # AU salddng ssauisng [euedeyy  g/LL  ZL0Z/6L40  M08UD
29°E19'5L 00529 Buuel] - 0919 HodmaN £1/£2/9 - Gg/g ywwng Wo  1eideyn Aunon odsiqo sin ues vaso 2108/6L/v0  osuD
Z9'886'vL 51281 iay-uey g tdey ‘dinb3 - 2ggg IELELY # AU salddng sseuisng [euedeyd  S/LL Z108/6L/P0  qoeyD
1¥'908'F1 00°005'S logeT 10BUOY) - GOS9 /102 S| - 2 Iudy €8 "Au| sSlelossy g uuewaley  g/LL  2108/6L/P0  MO8UD
1¥'90E'6 00°67 abeisod g saddng 2010 - 0¥ 19 sdwejs 80IMI3G |BIS0d ‘SN LI0Z/8L/70  Y2ayD
1P 1SEB o9¥'se sableyn somieg yueg - GLI9 884 sisfeuy 100y L108/LL/v0  3o8uD
L0'2EE'6 G668 1oulsyul / suoydale] - 5859 LZGEE00860015V28 # 100y 1aueyn 2108/vLiP0  3oBuD
90'2%0'6 L' Buurel| - 0919 gpuey salsni] B 1eqawaly pieod omsiq feioads  ssideyn Munog odsigo SINT UBS YOSH LI02/EL/P0  H98UD
G9'980'6 00 LiE [ebe - gelg sea4 Ayoede) zZyeg § Aesdiys  LALL Z10B/RHYO MoayD
59'628'8 09°'S01 ebe - geL9 smelAg zyeg g Aesdiys  LZLL Z10B/ZL/PO %oRUD
S0'02.'8 09'9v2 ebe - gelg 10j081iQ MEN uoneluaLD zyeg g Aesdiys  LLLL ZL0BIZLMO MoRyD
SYELV'S 0008 [eba - gg19 Areigr) me zieg @ Aesdiys  LLLL L102/2HY0 MosuD
SY'E6e'8 00°02¢ reba - geLg daid ¢ Bunaspy zieg g Aesdiys  LALL L102/2L/Y0 Mo8YD
SY'EL6'L 00088 logen 10enuo) - 5pS9 L1/9/¥ 9¥S1L "Auj Buiyoea| g Buidesspoog eibuz PN 2ZLL  Z102/2L/P0 %08y
SY'EY9‘L 0G°2vE 100e 10BIUOD - 5059 21/12/€ 2ES1 "Au| Buyoes| g Guidessyoog aibug N+ 22LL  Z102/2L/b0 %08y
S6'S6E' L 98'gs sty pd 00 SH3d - 9528 SUy WBqaIg NsUy 902828291 1l WeisAg waweed seakoidwz oand  0ZLL  Z108/LL/P0 %99yD
60'£98°2 00°0F “BIAY R B ‘dey dibg - vEse LLIB/E 022 "AU| siaindwo) 28] e Z108/LL/P0  328UD
60°€28'2 9e'LEE Auiger syH3d - 0szz nsiy Wiaqaiq Nsuy 902828v291 Al wolsAg uswamay sesfojdw ognd 0L ZLOZ/LLPO  MoeuD
£1'166'0 sabieyg sopues jueqg - LY %082 pioa aion  S9LL  ZL08/L0/%0  o8yD
£/'166'9 sebreyp soinieg yueq - G119 3982 ploA aioA  ¥9LL  Z108/20/f0  39euD
£/°166'9 Sl abeisod g senddng so0 - ov19 p10o JeIndwoo yepa 20IMBS [BIS0d "S™N Z108/20/70  ¥o8UD
857869 BL'L abejsad 3§ sayddng somo - Ov L9 anes |im abpop 80/AIG [RISOd ‘SN L102/20/v0  X28uD
BE'E86'0 0L'¥L afieisod » seiddng soylo - ov L9 90IAIBS [BISOd 'S'N £108/20/v0  328uD
69'896'0 66°1L abeisod 3 selddng soy0 - ov19 Wwoo'aqopy Z108/S0/70  392uD
0/'€S6'9 00°002 ausqep - 0219 auljweans gsogy Alyuow wewhodeq [exbiq Z108/v0/P0  3o8uD
0£'€52°9 667251 94 pIeD UPaID WBY2IS - 00LS 2810 LOL pedjueq £108/80/Y0  398uD
L/'G6S'9 50'5/2 abejsod 3 seyddng somQ - Ov 19 21/S1/g Wawaeig se|ldels €911 Z10E/E0/P0  No8UD
99'028'9 99028 1U8Y - 5519 uey /102 |udy uole|oossy JIAIQ Yoeag BNy LGLL ZLOB/E0/F0  %o8uD
00'008'S 00'005'S 10qET 10B1UOY) - G0S9 2102 151 [udy - U6 Yorey L8 AU soleloossy g uuewsBbey  JGLL Z102/E0/Y0  d08YD

ulwipy / [eJauay

aouejeg wunowy Wwnoasy owapy awep wnp ajeg adA)
2102 udy

SIUN022y/m pun4 Aq s)23uyn L1/20/90

joulsIqg sadialeg Ajlunwwod Yoeeg BliAy



z abey

££°561'8L

£8°561°'8. IVLOL
¢Z'680'Ee 22'620'ce 181 A [B10 |
22'680'ee £9'61 seniln - 0659 G-9S6E 122081 # 1008 yuB ] J91eAp I99d LL08/veiv0  osuD
65'600'€2 0525y "3y aur Jerep OSIN €M - €428 sisAjeuy s80IN0saY JSTBM B-M ‘ou| ‘BupinsuoD sweisAs Jelepn  EBEE ZL0Z/BL/P0 3o8UD
60°/55'8L a1'268°t “ifenen LISAS 181BM B-M - 2428 G0ZE "AU| wawaoe|day anep JSIEM "d'I'D ‘oossy g ABjUnN [SBYIIN  BLLL  LL0Z/BL/PO ¥oBuD
£6'799'0L 00°025't |ouBUBIUIBHY - 2159 Bunured qno weiphy uonoNIsSuod 8IS0 LLLL LL0B/BLP0  Mosyn
£6'7PLGL 00°€6 uiepy g Jreday Juswdinb3g - 0zsg Z.SS LA EE# Umo(Q INUS JUBIPAH "ou| uawabeuely soinosay Nl pZLL ZL02/6LIPO %02UD
£6'150'GL 19922 1 “BIAY WUBW B dey 'dibg - 269 " (86pop) yeaug uoliosuuo) soinleg 19811 pug "ou| ‘awsebeuepy sownosaY P4 pZLL LL0Z/BLPQ %oBYD
Zesz8'sl 98'9e¥ e g Jredey ewdinb3g - 0zgg 6ESS LM £ L/ge/g ana yue | Bundwes ‘ou| ‘uswebeuepy soInosay pINi4  ALL Z102/6L/P0 MoBUD
9v'86E'EL 00°9SE'S 10gET 19BAQUOD - S0G9 0495 L4 "Au| £L0Z Yorep sdo - pm ‘ou) ‘uswsbeueyy saInosay pinj4  BALL LL0E/6L/Y0 ¥o8YD
ov'gr0's 00'812'9 “'ay aul] JSIe M OSIIN E-M - £228 uonoadsu| sAlq JUB ] a1 ‘ONI ‘'seoinieg [eoluyos | abejueapy  0SLL  LL0E/E0/PQ  XDBUD
9v'vEe’L ov'v2e’ L 8|00 ([BWS - 5259 9/01L200 ‘AU| LLZES # Jawolsng IBIEM PIEIIOY  BSLL ZL0Z/E0/Y0  Mo9yD
Jayepn
0S'€09'8¢E 0S°£09'8€ frenues elo]
05°'809'8E 650G - Jeulay| / suoydaja] - GBG9 S 06 91¥6-G65 S08 # 1008 181V 2102/82/P0  Mo8uD
L6'25P'8E 669 18wBu| [ suoydse) - 58G9 0819 619/-565 508 # 1008 1381V 2102/88/v0  3o8uD
26'Shi'se L9'ES - 0659 Z-BETTEVBEEY #1008 UOHBIS Y 3%9d LI0E/VE/YD  398YD
LE'26E'8E 11°0iF' L <0653 R PJE 0-9E2FE00BEY # 1008 JUB|d JSIBAN BISEA 3%9d L10g/ve/v0  3osuD
vS°126'98 02'89.'6 apeibdn dLMA L-AM - LEES ueld Ajioed Je1ep PajoAdsy L-pMM ‘ou) ‘Buginsuoy swalsAg JaleAn  E8LL LL0Z/6L/P0  98YD
ve'eslL'Le | ANAV (D04) esea1n % 10 184 - 5259 ZLGEY ‘AUl dnoio soellepN  28LL  ZI0E/6LPQ doRYD
0z L¥t'9e 29°951'L s|ealwayy - 8059 £1/9/v 98069.2 |48 "AU| ‘ou| ‘ogioed Beluuslg  1gLL Z102/6L/F0  HO8YD
£5'v82'Se 0G°2v2'L Bulipuey spios - 0859 Lljog/e BuyneH sisep plos Ze£95 Au| oul ‘speads  08LL  ZLOZ/ELAPO HoBYUD
£0° LE0'V2 00'SEL “dey aur Wwaniy3 z-MmM - 228 902€ # "Au| iredey aur wenys "d'1'o '00SSY g ABIUNN IBBYIN 611 LLOZ/6L/PO MoRUD
£0'206°62 20°001 saliddng BunesedQ - 0559 sgjdwes 4ooganig ¥SN  9ZLL ZL0B/6HYD  MoeuD
96'108'c2 15912 saliddng Bunesedq - 0559 dLAMM 10j sBA0ID H00gANIA YSN QLKL LLOZELF0 P8y
N aosuejeg unowy unoasy owsa awep winpy a)eqg adA)
2102 |udy
SIUN022y/M pun4 Aq s}23y) £1/20/90

1911S1g S992IAIRS Munwiwon Yyoeag ejny



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement

~ www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346
/ i¢ OPERATIONS . MAINTENANCE . MECHANICAL o
@y 2385 Precision Drive
5/1/17

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171
California Certified Small Business #1120142

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.O. Box 309

191 San Miguel Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$88,693.34

Transaction Amount Balance

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
04/30/17 |INV #F15770. Orig. Amount $17,756.80. 17,756.80 17,756.80

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW17001 Add Services water-
04/11/17 INV #A15704. Orig. Amount $289.99. 289.99 18,046.79

W13914 Road Plate Rental-
04/11/17 INV #W13914. Orig. Amount $11,145.50. 11,145.50 29,192.29

W15253 WW-2 Effluent Line Repair-
03/31/17 |INV #W15253-3, Orig. Amount $50,623.50, 50,623.50 79,815.79

W15379 Potable Tank 1 Earthquake Fitting-
04/20/17 |INV #W15379. Orig. Amount $864.45. 864.45 80,680.24

W153841 Drain Pump Installation-
04/20/17 |INV #W15381.. Orig. Amount $805.60. 805.60 81,485.84

W15438 Tank Site Cathodic Protection and-
04,/20/17 INV #W15438. Orig. Amount $448.10, 448.10 81,933.94

W15511 Avila Controls Work-
04,/20/17 INV #W15511. Orig. Amount $5,926.48. 5,926.48 87,860.42

W15631 Porch Light at WWTP-
04/13/17 |INV #W15631. Orig. Amount $514.82. 514.82 88,375.24

1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST = 61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS
DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE

CURRENT Amount Due

38,069.84 50,623.50 $88,693.34

Page 1



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement

& www.fim-ops.com CA Lic #937346
4 OPERATIONS . MAINTENANCE . MECHANICAL Date
@@ 2385 Precision Drive

5/1/17

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171

California Certiticd Small Business #1120142

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

191 San Miguel Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.
$88,693.34
Transaction Amount Balance
W15686 Water Meter Replacement-
04/13/17 INV #W15686. Orig. Amount $318.10. 318.10 88,693.34
CURRENT 1-30 DAYS PAST 3160 DAYS PAST  61-290 DAYS PAST OVER 20 DAYS Amaiat Drio
DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE
38,069.84 50,623.50 $88,693.34

Page 2



1:26 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis May 2017

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4030 - County Taxes
4090 - Rental Income

Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.
Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

6000 - Administrative Overheads
6102 - Accounting
6115 - Bank Service Charges
6120 - Dues & Subscriptions
6135 - Legal
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6150 - Rate Assistance
6155 - Rent
6160 - Training

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses

May 17

77,839.68
959.38
4,657.53
3,260.00

86,716.59
86,716.59
86,716.59

2,489.76
133.38
111.15

0.00

2,734.29
28.22

600.00

600.00

165.16

165.16
100.32
3,627.99

2,677.00
161.60
480.00

1,746.20
794.24
503.12
820.66

0.02

7,182.84

Page 1



1:26 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis May 2017

6503 - Chemicals

6505 - Contract Labor

6510 - Critical Spare Parts

6518 - Equipment Expense

6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint. - Other

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6535 - Insurance

6540 - Lab Tests

6555 - Permits & Fees
6580 + Solids Handling
6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8231 - WW-1 WWTP Upgrade
8232 - WW-2 Effluent Line Repair HD
8237 - WW-7 Misc. Wastewater Projects

Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani

8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water
8272 - W-2 Water Systm Valve/ Meter
8273 - W-3 Misc Water Line Replacement

Total 8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

May 17

5,176.68
33,884.30
1,620.59
211.0%

1,993.36
109.00
7,827.46

9,920.82

1,235.46
11,143.80
2,034.00
3,793.50
570.80
3,903.52

_ 7350364

84,314.47

2,402.12

12,457.50
51,145.50

8,761.80

72,364.80

1,162.25
2,830.00

3,992.25

76,357.05

76,357.05

-76,357.05

~73,954.93

Page 2



1:41 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash
1008 - Petty Cash
1010 - Heritage Oaks General Checking
1025 - Pooled Cash
1030 - B of A - Payroll
1050 - LAIF
1099 - Cash Balance

Total 1000 - Cash Summary
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable
1270 - Taxes Receivable
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings

Total 1250 - Receivables

1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance

Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1605 - Office Equipment

1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

May 31, 17

502.70
163.52
617,946.57
2,671,663.57
9,772.60
2,234,087.62

-2,671,663.57

2,862,463.01

2,862,463.01

146,629.39

146,629.39

3,019.76
8,787.45
100,357.96

112,165.17

1,235.34

1,235.34
113,400.51

3,122,492.91

8,233.58
-6,861.31

1,372.27

4,526.21
-4,526.21




1:41 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2017

Accrual Basis

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 + Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum Depr
1642 - Treatment Equipment - Other

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1652 - Equipment

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep

May 31, 17

0.00
60,314.10
1,318,875.26
-352,639.07

966,236.19

523,122.64
-264,042.83

259,079.81

105,000.00
1,909,250.75
-886,106.88

1,128,143.87

1,000,455.00
-524,698.87
205,485.61

681,241.74

3,095,015.71

21,136.28
-21,136.28

0.00

1,109,466.00
-5662,263.35

547,202.65
547,202.65

29,810.00
-29,810.00

Page 2



1:41 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2017

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1690 - Construction in Progress
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2240 - Health Insurance
2241 - Employee

Total 2240 - Health Insurance
2250 - PERS Liability
Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held
2304 - Fire Station Deposit
2305 - Capacity Fees Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

May 31, 17

0.00
17,812.74
3,661,403.37
3,661,403.37

7,850.00
7,850.00
6,791,746.28

78,340.71
78,340.71

1,236.90
2,194.50
-1,834.49

0.01
0.01
311.22

1,908.14

7,680.00
2,000.00
252,907.16

262,587.16
264,495.30
342,836.01

115,049.00
15,115.00

Page 3



1:41 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2017
May 31, 17
Total Long Term Liabilities 130,164.00
Total Liabilities 473,000.01
Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings 6,141,126.38
Net Income 177,619.89
Total Equity 6,318,746.27
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,791,746.28

Page 4



| abeg

96°'cle'9e- 000 “'auen) syeQ abejiaH - 0101 L 18u0 /1L 2102/ 1/S0 ysodaQ
96'ctg‘9e- G591 'ausrn) syeQ ebelieH - 0101 souelsissy ajey 2102/} L/S0 usode(
1G°0€2'9e- 1S'96E'6- “'aueyn) syeQ ebeieH - 010} 08Y lueg 2102/} 1/S0 usoda(
00 ¥€8'9L- £8'v01 “ausn syeQ abelsy - 01L0L 2 18u10 /1 2102/01/50 usoda(
£8°'866'9}- 000 "ausn syeQ abejuey - 01O L1810 2/1 2102/01/50 usoda(
£8'886'91- 12’8 “ausy syeQ abeisH - 0101 80UeBlSISSY 8leY £102/01/50 usoda(
0l'.¥6'9L- 9s'8Le'e- "'ausn) syeQ abelsH . 0101 08y lueg £102/01/50 usodag
¥5'829'cl- L1'GS- "'ausn) syeQ abejusH - 0101 218y10 2/t 2102/60/50 usoda(
LECLGEL- 000 auen) syeQ abeleH - 0101 | 18410 2/1 2102/60/50 usoda(
LE'€LG'EL- OL'EE 'ausn) syeQ abelueH - 010} aoueBlsISSyY ajey £102/60/50 usode(
/¥'909'EL- ¥€ 1828 " auen) syeQ abelaH - 010} 08y lueg £102/60/50 usodag
£1'698'p- €0'E28°L- "ausn) syeQ abejuey - 0101 BISEM ‘TN /| HdY 401 £102/80/50 usoda(
0L'9vs'e- 000 “rausn) syeQ abelsy - 0101 2 18u0 /1 210e/v0/S0 usoda(
0}'9pS'e- 000 "ausn) syeQ abejiey - 0101 | 48010 2/} L102/v0/50 usodag
01'9¥5'e- 28'v2 “auen syeQ abejey - 0L0| 8oUBISISSY aley £102/v0/S0 usodag
26°0.5°¢- G6'62.- “auan) syeQ abelsy - 0101 o8y lueg 210g/¥0/50 usodaq
16'0¥8'2- €207} “auen) syeQ abejiey - 0101 2 18u10 2/1 £102/€0/50 usoda(
0.°186'2- 000 “auan) syeQ abeeH - 010} L 18ul0 2/} £102/€0/50 usodag
0.'186°2- LE' LY “guar) syeQ abeleH - 0L0L 2ouBISISSY aley 2102/€0/50 usoda(
£0€20'c- 91'680'2- “rausn) syeQ abeyieH - 01O} o8y Iuesg £102/20/50 usodag
16286~ GE0kI- “auan) syeQ abelsy - 0101 Z 18Ul /1 £102/20/50 usodag
9G°2.8- 000 "rauan) syeQ abeweH - 010} | 18010 2/} £102/20/50 usods(
99°2.8- 000 “ausn syeQ abeliey - 0101 8ouB]SISSY aleY £102/20/50 usodag
9G°//8- 99'62.- “ausn) syeQ abeley - 0101 08y lueg 2102/20/50 usodag
06°LG1L- 000 yse) Jewolsng - GO0 2 18ul0 /1 2108/10/50 usodag
06°1G1- 000 ysen Jawoisny - Go0} L 18U10 Z/1 £102/10/50 usoda(
06°LG1- G591l ysen Jawolsng - GO0t aouBlSISSY aley 2102/10/S0 usoda(
Sh'891L- Gv'891- yse) Jawolsng - GO0t o8y lueg 2102/10/50 usoda(

Aejueg

£8'v9- £8'v9- sybM reo)
£8'v9- £8'¥9- “aueD) syeQ abeoH - 010L  S0° SO ‘Sz' JelBA ‘0L UBD) 14 DS - | # dINI TN £} HdV 401 £102/80/350 #_m%n_ma

siybnn

GOS8 G0'G18'P- ulwpy / [elsuax) [e1o |
S0'SI8'Y- €L 02 “auen) syeQ abejusH - 010} pd Buli 91/0€/9 punjes g3 2102/S /S0 usode(
26 v6. - 62,29 “ausp syeQ abelusy - 010! 190B yse) woly £102/21/50 usodaQ
£9°/91 - 00'092'¢- “ausn) syeQ abelaH - 01O 8woou| [ejusy £102/01/50 usodag
£9°206- £9'206- “rauen syeQ abewieH - 0101 G0° SO ‘Sz' JalepA ‘02T UBD 14 DS - | # dINI TN 21 HdVY 401 /102/80/50 usoda(

ujwpy / [elauar)

aosuejeg unowyy nds owap aleq adf|

2102 Aepy

pun4 Aq sysodaq L1/20/90

1011S13 S@2IAI8S AJUNWIWOo) yoeag eliny



z abeyd

18'6222y- (KeNorrdia & Alelueg e10|
18'€22'2h- 00°€¢- “'gusn) syeQ abeweH - 010} 21y /1 £102/18/50 usode(
18061 gt- 000 “'auep syeQ abelueH - 0101 | 18010 Z/1 £102/18/50 usodag
18°0612t- /2’8 'ausn syeQ abejueH - 010t 89UB)SISSY 8ley 2102/18/50 usodaq
806612k~ £¥'806- “ausn syeQ abejleH - 0101 08Y lueg 2102/ 1E/S0 ysode(
G9'062' - 69 6P- "ausn) syeQ obeisH - 010} g 18ui0 z/L £102/62/S0 usodag
00' L¥g L~ 000 “'ausn) syeQ abelsH - 010} b 1BY10 2/t £102/52/50 usoda(
00" 92’ Lt~ 000 "ausp) syeQ abejusH - 010} 89UB)SISSY BlBY £102/52/50 nsodaQ
00 Lvg' L~ 05'822- “'ausn) syeQ abesH - 010} J9Y lueg £102/S2/50 usodag
0S2LO L~ 16'0EL- “'auan) syeQ abejleH - 0101 2 18yi0 z/1 2102/%2/50 usode(
65°188°0t- 000 “'ausn) syeQ abellsH - 0101 L 1ayl0 2/t 2102/%2/50 usoda(
65 188°01- GG'9l "auep) syeQ obejueH - 0101 BOUE]SISSY 8lBY L102/¥2/50 usodaQ
¥1'868'0t- v9'2ye'e- “susp) syeQ ebejusH - 010} 29y lueg L102/¥2/50 usodag
05'555°8¢- 000 “'ausn) syeQ abelusH - 0101 2 1ay0 /L 2102/82/50 usode(
05'655'8¢e- 000 “'auep) syeQ abejusH - 010} 180 2/t £102/€2/50 usodaQ
05'GS5'8E- 28've “ausn) syeQ abeyeH - 010} 80UB)SISSY 8ley L102/ez/s0  usodeg
2£'08G'8¢- 98 0v6- “'ausn syeQ abewsH - 010} 08y lueg 2102/€2/50 usode(
96'6£9'2E- 000 yse Jswolsng - 500+ 2 1eui0 /1 L102/22/s0 usodaQ
96'6£9°LE- 0£0- yseD Jawolsng - GO0+ L layio 2/t £102/22/50 usodag
99'6£9'/€- 128 yseD Jswolsng - GO0 S0UE]SISSY 8leY 2102/e2/s0 usode(
£6°Lv9'28- AN ysep Jawolsng - 5001 o8y lueg L10g/22/s0 usodaQ
£9'66G'26- 96 - “auan) syeQ abejsH - 0101 2oy g/t 2102/61/50 usode(
1906V L€- L1'8Y2 “auep) syeQ abejusH - 010} L 1ayi0 2/t 2102/61/50 usodaQ
¥8'88L 18- 6591 “'ausn) syeQ abepeH - 010} 80UB)SISSY BleY L102/61/50 usodaQ
6665 L6 16'165'E- “ausp) syeQ ebelusH - 010} %9y lueg L102/61/50 usodaQ
gy e9l've- L1'GG- “guan) syeQ abesH - 0101 Z 1BUl0 2/} L102/9+/50 usodaQ
G2'80L've- 000 "auap syeQ ebejusH - 0101 L dayi0 2/t L102/9}/50 usodeQ
G2 80} 'vE- 000 "ausp syeQ ebejueH - 010} 80UE)SISSY 8lBY 2102/91/50 usode(
G2'80L've- L6V L0 - “ausn) syeQ ebejusH - 010} 08y lueg 2102/91/50 usodeQ
¥£'£60'cE- v2'92. "auan) syeQ ebelueH - 0101 Aleresedes paxooq £1/| L/S 88°2€0'2 $ Swoonsey O1S o Aiuno) 2102/S1/S0 usode(
85°618'6E- 7AVAR "auen) syeQ ebejusH - 0101 g Byio z/k Z102/5H/S0  usodeq
¥€'208'ce- 000 "ausn syeQ abejusH - 010} I Joyi0 g/L 2102/S1/50 usodeg
¥€'208'ee- OL'Ee "'ausn) syeQ abelleH - 010} 80UB)SISSY 8lBY L102/S1/50 usodeg
¥t'GE8'EE- 68'892'9- "'ausn) syeQ sbeysH - 010} 09y lueg 2102/S1/S0 usodaQ
G5'990°22- €62 yseq Jswolsng - 500+ g ey g/t 2102/2H/S0  usodeQ
80'690°22- 000 yseg Jswoisng - GO0+ ET g FAll 2102/2L/S0  usodsQ
8069022 Lv'9e yseD Jawoisng - GO0L 80UB)SISSY aley 2102/2H/S0  usodaQ
6v'S01 L2- 9y Lve- yseo Jawoisng - 5001 o8y Iues 2102/2L/S0  usodaQ
£0°858'92- v2'92.- “guan) syeQ abeilaH - QLOL LV/L2]v - 82/e woonsey Mied Auunwwo) 291000 2102/LH/S0  wsodsQ
62'1E1'92- 1128 “rauap syeQ obelusH - 0LOL 2 BUlo g/t L102/1H/S0  usodsQ
2aueleq unouwny yids a1eq adA L
pun4 Aq susodaq £1/20/90

1011SIQ S991A19S Ajlunwiwio) Yoeag ejiny



g abed

99'9v8'ce- €52 ysep awoisng - 5001 Z18Yl0 g/t L1028/2}/S0 usodaQ
61 6v8'ce- 000 yseD Jawoisng - 5004 I 18U 2/1 2102/e /S0 usodag
61'6¥8'Ce- 798 yseQ Jawoisng - G001 20UB)SISSY 81eY 2102/2}/50 usodeq
09'G88'ce- 8% 0£2- yseD Jawoisny - G001 o8y Jole 2102/2}/50 usodeg
21'659'ce- 2e'02s- “guar) syeQ ebelusH - 0101 LL{L2/y - 82/ woossey }ed Alunwwo) g91000 2102/} /S0 usodsQg
08'¥El‘Ee- A WA "auan) syeQ abepisH - 010} uonebiu| yied uenr ues gz9L00 2102/} /S0 usodeq
89°/6£'2e- 02 '¥S- “auaY) syeQ abeulaH - L0} LL/22/v - 82/€ 1S 1014 €81 100 2102/} /S0 usode(g
8y Eve'ge- 1128 "ausy syeQ abellsH - 0101 Z eyl g/t 2102/} H/S0 usodsQg
G9'Gev'ge- 000 ""auap) syeQ ebejusH - 010} I 810 2/1 2102/} /S0 usodsQg
G9'Ggy'ge- G591 "ausn syeQ abeysaH - 01Ok 80UB)SISSY SleY L102/1 /S0 usodag
0z evv'ze- 80'v¥E'6- “'ausn) syeQ abeieH - 010k J8y Jele 2102/} /S0 usodeq
Z1'860'SL- £8' 101 "'ausy) syeQ ebeulsH - 010} g 8yl0 z/1L 2102/01/50 usods(
G6'20Z'El- 000 "auep) syeQ obejusy - 0104 L 18yl0 2/t 2102/0L/S0 usodeq
$6'202'Ch- 82'8 "ausy) syeQ abejssH - 010 89UB)SISSY BlBY £102/04+/50 usodag
AT A ¥2'001'e- “'ausn) syeQ abewsH - 0101 o8y Jele 2102/01/S0 usodeQ
66°0LL0L- 81°GG- "auap) syeQ abejusH - 0101 2 1eyi0 2/t 2102/60/50 usode(
18'GS0'01- 000 "auan) syeQ abejusH - 010} L 18yl0 2/t 2102/60/50 usodaQ
1865001~ (> "ausn) syeQ sbewsH - 0101 8ouelsissy sjey £102/60/50 usodeQ
16'880'01L- S0'609'9- "'auap) syeQ ebejusH - 0101 28y JA1BM £102/60/50 usodaq
98'6.V'€E- 9L¥2e- “rausy sieQ abewsH - 0101 GO SWBM ‘Ggr JsleM ‘0L U i4 OIS - | # JINI TN L1 HAVY 401 £102/80/50 usode(
0.'GS}'¢e- 000 “'auen syeQ abejeH - 010} 2 /U0 /1 £ 102/%0/S0 usode(
04°GGL'e- 000 "'ausn syeQ ebejueH - 010} L1810 /1L 2 102/¥0/S0 ysodaQ
0L'SGL'e- £8'v2 “'ausp syeQ abeleH - 010} 20UEB)SISSY aleY £102/¥0/50 usodag
£5°081'¢- 09'+02- “'auen) syeQ abelusy - 0101 28y Jole M 2102/¥0/50 usodaQ
£6'G.v'e- €20V "ausn) syeQ abejuaH - 010} Z 18Ul /1 £102/€0/50 usoda(
999192 00'0 “auan) syeQ abeley - 0101 | 18010 2/1 2102/€0/50 usoda(
99'919'¢- 8E' 1Y “ausn) syeQ abelsy - 0101 2ouelsISsSy ajey £102/20/50 ysodaQ
¥0°859'2- zZl'ee0'e- “*ausn) syeQ abelsH - 0101 J8y Jelep £102/£0/50 usodag
26 vE9- GEOLL- "rauen) syeQ abejay - 010} 218yl0 2/t 2102/20/50 usoda(
1S v25- 000 ~guar) syeQ abeleH - 0101 | 18U10 2/1 £102/20/50 usodaQ
1S'v2s- 000 “auan) syeQ sbeiay - 010} 2oueBlsISsy aley £108/20/50 usodag
15°¥2s- Z1'99%- "auen syeQ abeay - 010} ooy Jolepm 2102/20/50 usoda(
GH 8- 000 yseqn Jawoisng - o0t 2 18ul0 g/1 £102/10/S0 usode(
G'8G- 000 ysen Jewolsng - GO0+ WENT R 2102/10/50 usodag
Gt 8G- 5591 yseg Jewolsng - GO0} soue]sIssy aley 210g/10/50 usoda(
00°G.- 00'GZ- ysep lewolsny - G004 o8y J81B A £102/10/50 usode(

131 M0

BE'656- 8E'656- SISBAA PIIOS [B1O |
BE 656~ 8€'656- “auan syeQ abelsy - 0101 MS 884 asiyoue.l SUOROBUUOD 8ISBM LLOZ IMdY 2L/ 2102/91/S0 usoda(

alsem plios

aouejeg junowy nds owa ajeq adA)

L10Z Aepy

pun4 Aq susodaq £1/20/90

1011S10 S@9IA19S Ajunwiwoy yoeag e|iny



v abed

£9°'c0t'88- £9'€01'88- Tv.ioL
9G°0vE 0p- 95°0vE OF- 181BAA [BI0 L
96078 0F- 00°€€e- “auen) syeQ abeieH - 010} g8y g/t 2102/1€/50 usodeq
95°/0€'0%- 000 “ausn) syeQ abeweH - 010} | 18yi0 g/} 2102/18/50 usode(
95°/0€'0¥- 82’8 “'ausn) syeQ abeleH - 010} souelsIssy ajey 2102/1€/50 usodag
¥8°'S1LE'0p- 15'ev9 "'ausn) syeQ abeysy - 0101 o8y Js1e M 2102/1€/50 usodag
12'6/9'68- 99°6%- “ausn) syeQ abeieH - 0101 218u10 2/} 2102/S2/S0 usode(
19'€29'6¢E- 000 auen) syeQ abeleH - 010} L Iyl 2/1 2102/S2/50 usoda(
19°€29'6¢- 000 "ausp syeQ abelleH - 0101 souelsissy ajey 2102/S2/s0 usodaQ
19'€29'6¢- 0f'22G- "ausn) syeQ abelay - 010} 08y J81B M 2102/S2/s0 usodag
12 960'6¢- L6'0E}- “rausr) syeQ abellsH - 010} 2 18yl0 2/ 2102/¥2/s0 usoda(
0€°996'8¢- 000 “auan) syeQ abellsy - 0101 L J8yl0 2/1 2102/¥2/S0 usodeQ
0£°G96'8¢- G591 “ausn) syeQ abelsy - 0101 8ouBlSISSY aley 2102/¥2/S0 usodag
69" 186'8E- G5'G98" |- “"auan) syeQ abellsH - 0101 08y JO1BAN 2102/¥2/S0 usoedag
0E9LL'LE- 000 "auap) syeQ abeysy - 010} g i8ul0 g/} 2102/e2/S0 usodeQ
0e9LL e 000 “ausn syeQ abelsy - 010! L J8Yl0 2/1 2102/€2/S0 usodag
0£'9L 1 LE- €812 "auen syeQ abejisy - 010! 80UE]SISSY aley 210g/ee/so usodsQ
LI LE- ¥0'¥26- “rausn) syeQ abelisy - 0101 o8y JelBp L102/€e/s0 usodaQ
60°212'9¢- 000 yseQ Jswoisng - GO0} Z J8ylo 2/} L10g/2ge/S0 usodaq
60°212'9¢- 0€0- yseQ 1awoisny - G0l WETTgNA 2102/22/S0 usodeQ
6/9Lz'9¢- 8e'8 yseo 1vwoisng - G0l 80UB)SISSY aley 2102/2e/s0 usodag
10°Ggz'9¢- 00°961- yseQ Jawoisng - G004t o8y J8IBpM L10g2/2z/s0 usodaQ
20'620'9¢- 96 v~ “‘auar) syeQ abeuieH - 0LOL g 18ylo g/1 L102/61/S0 usodaq
l1'¥86'GE- 818¥2 "'auap syeQ ebelisH - 010} [WETTg A 2102/61/S0 usodeg
62 2ee 98- G591 "ausy) syeQ abewsH - L0} 80UE]SISSY aley 2102/61/50 usodeQ
¥8'8v2 9¢- 6652 "'auan) syeQ sbeilsH - L0} o8y Jelep L102/61/50 usodeq
G8'066'L&- 00001}~ “'audn) syeQ sbeylsH - 0101 Add ynwsuiap Sy # O YID SUsABY 9EE Uismouay) esr 2102/81/50 usodeq
G8'068'Le- 81°gG- "auap) syeQ abejusH - 0101 Z 180 g/t 2102/91/50 usode
19668’ Le- 000 “ausp syeQ abejusH - 010} I 18yl g/1 2102/91/s0 usodaq
19'6e8' 1E- 000 'auan syeQ ebeiiaH - 010} 80UE]SISSY aley 2102/91/50 usodeq
19°G68'Le- 882Gl g- "'ausn) syeQ abeysH - 010} o8y J81B M 2102/91/50 usoda(
6/'289'62- 2e'0es "'auan) syeQ sbeilsH - 0LOL Alereedes paxooq £/} 1/G 88°2€0'2 $ swoolisay O1S o Ajunon L102/51/S0 usodaQ
I1'£02'0E- AW "auep syeQ abejusH - 0101 Aleieiedes peyooq £1/| /S 88°2€0'2 $ swoonsey 013 Jo Aluno) L102/S1/50 usodeq
£2°0v6'08- 02 ¥S "ausg syeQ ebeweH - 010} Aleresedas paxooq £ 1/} /G 88'2E0'2 $ swoonsay O7S Jo Alunon 2102/51/50 usodeg
£¥'¥66'08- TV “auan) syeQ abejiaH - 010} Z18Ul0 g/} 2102/S1/50 usodeg
81',/6'08- 000 "'ausn syeQ abewsH - L0k I layiQ g/L 2102/51/50 usodaq
81°2/6°08- oL'ee "ausp) syeQ ebejusH - 0101 8oue)sIssy sley L102/S1/50 usodaq
82010 1&- 29e9l’s- “'ausn) syeQ abejusH - 010} o8y Jele M\ 2102/S1/50 usode(
2Juejeg unowy wids S TTTETT aleq adA)
2102 ey
pun4 Aq sysodag L1/20/90

1011813 S9IAI8S AjlUNWIWoy yoeagq eliny



| abegd

1ouisIqg S89IAeS Ajlunwiwos yoeag BlIAY

19'916'c8 £8°/56 s|eaiwayy - e0s9 v6LBLLE |dE AUl ‘ou| ‘ayloed Beuusig  £02L  Z10E/0L/SO  X98yD
8.°856'¢2 02°0E9 TISIEMBISEM OSIN L-MM - 2628 Xe| se[eg swaisAs MCBINIWNG - B6LL Z10E/SO/S0 98yD
85°82€'22 08'82L'y "ISTRMBISEAA OSIIN - MM - LE28 dwnd s|qisiewans £z 9NOZAY sweIsAg 8BLL  2l08/S0/S0  Wosup
8L v02'81 08°200'F " ISTRMBISEAN OSIIN - MM - 2628 dwnd s|qisiswigns €2 - INOSAR swaisAs MCIINING 86LL Z10Z/S0/S0 98yD
8696171 00°G52'L BullpueH spijos - 0859 Lifelfy Buiney si1sep plos 29v9s AUl ‘ou| 'speeds 9611 ZL0Z/SO/SO  308yD
86 L¥6'EL 08'ErL'LL sisa| qe - 0vS9 Bunsa ] [enuuy 2|'g'g Juswsielg ‘ou| ‘eapAieuy 1sBOQ Suojeqy  SELL ZL0B/SO/SO  ¥I8yD
8L'86L L 62990t s|eoiWwayy - 8059 6E069.2 |d9 "AU| ‘ou| ‘oioed Beluuslg  pELL 2102/S0/S0  ¥o8yn
£6'18L £5°021 “liay-uiep g “dey 'dinb3 - g2g9 salddng d1Mmm alempieH 8oy sisully  06LF  Z102/S0/S0  q98uQ
Ov' 1LY vaLLL sl - 0659 J@sdwing pA 2 8oineg Atelues Alunod yinos  /8LL Z108/S0/S0 X98yD
95 °c6¥ 95°86F “liay-uiep g tdey tdinb3 - ggse d 1AM 1B $300| soB[day suonnies AeyM  ¥8LL  /L0E/S0/S0  %08yD

Aiejiueg

S8'9E6 $8'9£6 s1ybr reio)
G8'9E6 LOvIE - 0659 /-90969/96.6 #1008 sybr 15 juoi4 389d Z10g/eg/S0 o8y
¥2'295 v L6 - 0659 0-29£55 12665 # 109 sybr Auojon I8Hd £102/70/50 P8y
00 LL¥ 00° L - 0659 £-7869.60690 # 120 SIy6r umo a85d 2102/#0/S0 98y

sy

06'809'v2 06'809'F2 ulwpy / [eausy [e10
0680912 100 <0919 wayshs sjuawAed 00 1sWOlSND XSUBLY 1S8]  10UISI S0IM9S AUNWIWOD yoeag BlIAY Z102/0E/SO  ¥P3UD
68'809'72 0o - 0919 wajshs suawhed 00 19WEISNI XSUBL| IS8} 10MISI 80IAIeS AIUNWWOD yoeag BlIAY Z10Z/08/S0 98D
88'809'12 vELL abeisod % sayddng solo - 0719 Bunew sewoisno sHOD 801088 B1S0d 'S 2102/08/S0 98U
¥S'LBS'vE ¥8'0 afieisad » salddng soyl0 - 0r19 SHOO 8010185 [B1SOd 'S Z102/0E/S0 a8y
0.'965'te 00'00S'S 10qET 1080U0Y) - G059 2102 ‘YiLg Rel - 1 Aepy 98 "Aul solepossy g uuewebey /121 Zl0g/gE/so %08y
0/'960'61 99028 san - 0659 £ 10z way aunp UOHEIOSSY OIAID yoead BIIAY  Glzl  ZL0Z/E2/S0  ¥o8uD
¥0'92'81 0S'/ve JoqeT 19BNU0Y - G069 21191/ 1151 Au| Buiyoes | g Buideayjoog sifug bsiIN+~ vLaL  ZL0Z/E2/S0  ¥o8uD
$5'820°81 2eoLl abeisod 3 sayddng eoyiQ - 0¥ 19 Z1/GL/S Wawaels soideis  zZlal  ZLDB/EE/SO  ¥o8y)
AAAR WA G6'681 Jewal| / auoydej2] - 5859 L /GEE008600 LSFE8 # 100V laueyn Z10g/S1L/S0 93y
1ZeaL'lL 09'€£9 [ebe - 19 suonsenp 19slold uswsoe|dey aAeA zeg g Aesdiys  Ligl  2L0/SL/SO do8un
£9'880'21 09'/68 reba - ge19 sliew3 o} asuodsey - AoueaeA pieog zZeg g Aesdiys  LIgL  LL0Z/SLSD 398yl
L0'LBL9L 00'08 |eBe - GeL9 Areigry men zyeg g Aesdiys  Ligl  Z108/SHSO 398U
LO°LLL'DL 00'sEL [ebe - GeLg daid g Bupssiy zyeg g Aesdiys  LigL  Z10Z/SL/SO ¥o8yn
L0'926'S1L 00'08F suonduasqns 1 senq - 0219 8102 AeN L1L0g Aew seng diysiequialy uoeioossy Jale/ [BINY BILIONED /021  2l0Z/ZL/S0  3o8u]
L0°960'GL 00'0% “BlAY e g 'dey 'dibg - $259 LLI6/€ #0Z2 ‘AUj sieindwog 28] [BD ZL02/0L/S0  o8ud
£0'98F's1 00'62 “BjIAY CJulely B 'dey ‘dib3 - 259 LLI6/€ ¥0ZL "AU| si@indwoy 28] BD Z102/0L/SO 398y
10 /e¥'st 00'0% "EIIAY “lUle g "day 'dibg - vE59 LLI6/8 ¥0BL "AU| sigindwoy 08 [BD) 2102/0L/S0  ¥28yD
L0°28E'SL 6S'6 nsuy pd 00 SHI - 9525 wisqqia nsiy |udy 9028287291 1l welsAg ueweey seshoidw agnd  L0ZL ZL0Z/0L/SO  X98uD
25°218'G1 00'00F'y 10qe 198U - G059 2102 ‘g1 fep - o judy 68 ‘AUl sejepossy g uuewebey  zozl  Z10Z/OL/SO  ¥o8un
2521601 21608 Awiiger] sy3d - 0522 wisqqia nsuy udy 90Z8287291 11 welshg uewsiiey sesfoidwg ogng  LOZE ZL02/0L/SO  98uD
0v'899'01L 00'0v 10qET J9BU0D - G059 21/8/g Buues|o 8010 zanbiely sejebuy elB 0021 ZL0Z/0L/SO  Xo8uD
0t'829°01 Ov'£98 s8N - 0659 sanun Apapenp £ 1oz ey - uer UonBInossy OIAID Uoead BIAY - B6LE  ZL0Z/0L/SO  ¥08uD
00'592°01 00'6% abeisod g seyddng aowQ - 0v19 sduwels 8218 [B1S0d 'S £10g/80/S0  d8YD
oo'glz'oL 66 VL abeisod g saiddng aoQ - 0¥ 19 Wwoo'aqopy 2102/S0/S0 98y
LO'LOZ'OL 00'022 10qET 198U0Y) - G059 LL12/G 89S "AU| Buiyoes | p buideexpjoog aibug N+ Z6LL  Z102/SO/SO  08yD
LO'186'6 00'0ge J0gET J0BNUOY - S059 £1/Sg/v 8951 "AU| Buiyoea | g Buideaxsoog 8ifug BIN -+ 2611 ZL02/SO/SO  ¥P8UD
10’1926 99'0z8 wey - 5519 way 210z few uoneinossy oD Yoeed BIAY  L6LE  ZL0Z/SO/SO  398uD
SE'0ve's 00'00S'S 10qeT] 198U - 5059 L10Z '62 - 91 [idy #8 AUl sajeioossy g uuewsbey  BBLL  Z108/50/S0  X98yn
SEOVP'E 00°£19'2 Bununoooy - 2019 saoueleq 1B L /L0g seaias (udy d11‘umoig g yepaq  GBLL  ZL0Z/SO/SO  0ayg
Se'e9. 09'191 sabeyp soines jueg - GLL9 7119 HOHW / 3DIAH3S A"y gIL 80IBS pIED gl L £10g/E0/S0  d8yD
S/°'109 S4109 obeisod % sayddng oo - 0vL9 sadojaaus padurels 82133 [BISOd 'S'N 2102/20/50 98U

ulwpy / |e1ouany

aJueeg junouy unNe22y owaw awepn wnp a1eQq adA|
2102 few

S1UN022y/Mm pund Aq $)238y9H L1/20/90



Z abeyd

29°£29°'s51 29'E29°G61L IYLOL

?EL00°G1 vE200'G1 I9IBM [B101
#€'200'G1 25°E0l s8N - 0659 S-9G6E12L08Y # J00B YUB] JOIBM 3%9d L10g/vg/s0  WosuD
28'E06'P 1 8L'62¢ ‘e ® Jiedey wewdinby - pgso SGLG LM IS SINT UBS UO yeaT Jajepp ‘oul awsbeue sinosay piNd 8021 ZL0Z/SL/SO M98UD
YIS YL oLgLe ‘e g Jieday juswdinby - ogs9 9895 M 1usllsde|day Jalaly Jaiep ‘oul ‘wawobeuepy 8oinosay piNl4 8021 ZL0E/SL/SO ¥d8y)
¥5°952'7 1L 0l'8b¥ ‘Jurepy g Jieday juswdinbl - o259 8EYS | M UOIDB10Id DIpoyIRD SIS Hue | ‘ou| uawabeuel 8ounosay PN 8OZL  ZL0Z/SL/SO  ¥98yD
7P 808'CL 09'508 ‘el g sredey wewdinb3l - 0259 18e51LM dwng ureiq jusweoe|day U0 X8| yue | ‘ou| ‘wewebeuey sounosey pinl4  802L  ZL0Z/SL/SO  ¥98up
¥8'200°¢L 00'93€'s loqgeT 10eU0D - G059 0£2514 "Auj 2102 Udy sdO - my ‘oul ‘uaweBbeue B2IN0SAY PINI4 8021 LL0Z/SL/ISO  ¥o8yg
¥8'9r9°'L 000£8' '@y aur Ia1ep OSIN E-p - €428 LgSe "Au| sisAjeuy saainosay JalB A £-A ‘ou| ‘Buyinsuon swssAs Jstlepn 9021 Ll0gfer/so  o8yn
78918 SZ'2ol'L faneA WISAS JSIBA 2-M - 8428 LLEE "AU| luswade|day aAleA Jelep ‘dI'D "0ossy g AsunN [eeYDIN  ¥OZL  ZL0Z/OL/SO  Ho8yn
6SS9'e 16'81 sued aseds [eonug - 0159 1 Jreday 89150FY “AU| sesudisjug uosnfley  g6L1L  Z108/S0/SO  398YyD
29'S/G'E 29 1PG° | SUed 8ledsg [Bo1LD - 0159 002961 # 'AU| SOABA sasudieug uosnblag  zZgLL L10g/S0/s0  ¥o8yn
00'¥E0'2 00've0'e se8 B slWiad - 659 weiboid saa4 ta1ep Bupiuug 9v901 101 -NS S334-90HMS  B8LL  /L0OZ/S0/S0  ¥o8uQ

la1e

£S°0L0'GLL £€5'0/0'G1 1L Arenueg [ejo |
£5°020'GLL 190Gt ouwiely| / auoydsje] - 5859 S ¥06 9L¥6-G65 SO8 # 1998 181v LLOZ/0B/SO  o8uD
26'616'FLL LS¥LL lswaly| / auoyds|a] - G859 0 819 619-G65 508 # 1008 181v Z1L02/08/S0  398yD
Lb'S08'PLL 8£'GE6 seoiusyd - £059 §618//2 Id9 "Aul ‘ou| ‘oyioed Beiuusig  9lglL  Z102/EE/SO %98YyD
E00L8'ELL 82'Gv6 seoiwsyg - £059 BE069/8 Idg AUl ‘ou| ‘oyloed Beluuslg  9lgl  ZL0B/EE/SO MO8YD
S/ ¥26'2lLL v6'LLE L S[EOIWBYD - 8059 /£069/2 |dg ‘AUl ‘ou| ‘ayioed Beluuslg  9LgL  ZL0B/E2/S0  ¥o8up
122G LLL (s[oRelorAll Buypuey spios - 0899 21/91/s Buyney sisep plos 67995 AU ‘ou| ‘'speedg  glzl  Z10Z/EE/S0  MoeyD
L89LY'OLL G'ES N - 0659 2-8EZEEYBELY #1008 UoRIS Ui Elcial 21L0g/za/s0  3I8yn
9€'e9e'0L L 08°208°L NN - 0659 TR PIE 0-9EZFE008EQ # 1008 1UR|J IBIBAA BISEM Elcial L10g/2g/s0  ¥osyD
95°648'801 €LGLL lswalu|  auoyds|a] - G8G9 18UIBlU| 5880 X # 100B 121y LL0Z/9L/S0  ¥o8yn
EB'BEL'BOL LlLLe asuadx3 uswdinb3 - g1g9 SYZL-/ 102 "Au| SiB|qe | auuojyD l00d HOO  0kgk  Zl02/SL/S0 ¥28yD
99'825'801L 00'000°0% “rday aur usniyg 2-MM - 2528 £-E52S kM Jreday aur Jusniyg ‘ou| ywawabeuey soinosay pINl4  602L  ZL0Z/SLSO o8y
99'825'89 0SS LL “rdey aur weniy3 g-pMM - ZEEZ8 7LEELM dLMM [BIUSY 8iBld peOY ‘oul uawabeuey aoinosay piNlY - 60ZL  ZLOZ/SL/ISO  Yo8yuD
91'EBE/S 28'vLS Iay-jue B ‘dey ‘dinb3 - ggs9 LE9S LM dLAA T8 1yB youod ‘ou| ‘uswsbeue soInosaY PNl 80ZL  ZL0Z/SLISO  Yo8yD
+£°898'95 8¥'926'G Juiep g aredey wawdinbl - gzsg [[BAA 1B AN 1UBNYL| | LSS LA HIOAA S|0UOD BlIAY ‘ou| ‘juswsbeue soINoseY PNl 80ZL  ZL0Z/SLISO  Yo8uD
ww._..vm.mm St +98 lia-lueN w .n_m_n_ .n___._Um_ -89 TESEM dLAMM @ dwnd uelq wolg .n__._._m.r |eisu| ‘ou| .Ew:._mmm:m—}_ adnosay pini4 80cL thN__,m _._.‘mo Hoayn
Lt 220'0S 08°00%'21 logen pRIuoD - 5059 024514 "Au| 2102 |udy - sdO MM ‘ou| ‘awabeue soinosey pINl4 - 802k ZL0Z/SL/SO %98y
19°9/9'/€ 05 25¢'21 apelBdn d1mMM L-MM - 1528 GgGe AUl Ueld A1oeS Jajepn peofoay |- MM ‘ou| ‘BuginsuoD swelshs Jelep 9021 ZL0Z/ZLISO Mo8yD
LL6LE's2 052081 BuyipueH spios - 0859 LI/ELfy Buyney sisep pios g9v9s AUl oul'spseds  SO0EL  Z102/0L/SO  3oRuD

aaueleg unouny unoosoy owapy awen wnp aieq adA|
L1oz fep

SIUNO0JoY/Mm pund Aq s)23y) L1/20/90

121181Qg S89IAlaS AUNWIWo) yoeag BIAY



1:28 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

06/02/17 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through May 2017
Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr17 May 17 TOTAL
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue 63,105.40 67,339.79 65,375.33 7882312 77,839.68 352,483.32
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee 1,085.74 1.632.06 793.52 1,724.34 959.38 6,195.04
4020 - Contract Services-Ambulance 0.00 0.00 971.53 0.00 0.00 971.53
4030 + County Taxes 21,356 .57 12,880.16 15,282.78 182,491.76 4,657.53 236.668.80
4050 - Harbor Charges
4052 - Front Street Lighting 0.00 0.00 284 .55 0.00 0.00 28455
4053 - WWTP O&M 0.00 0.00 20,861.00 0.00 0.00 20,861.00
Total 4050 - Harbor Charges 0.00 0.00 21,155.55 0.00 0.00 21,155.55
4090 - Rental Income 3,260.00 3,260.00 3,260.00 3,260,00 3.260.00 16,300.00
4100 + Misc Income 0.00 0.00 108.50 0.00 0.00 108.50
4600 . Interest Income 3,791.67 0.00 0.00 4 265,96 0.00 8,057.63
Total 4000 ' Income Summary 92,599.38 85,112.01 106,947 .21 270,565.18 86,716.59 641,940.37
Total Income 92 599.38 85.112.01 106,947 .21 270,565.18 86,716.558 641,940.37
Gross Profit 92 599.38 85, 112.01 106,847.21 270,565.18 86,716.59 641,940.37
Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees TIB 158.09 0.00 106.78 157.99 0.00 422.86

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages

5211 + Regular Pay 3,779.03 2,24523 2,650.92 2,473.08 248978 13,638.02

5012 - Holiday Pay 388.02 133.38 0.00 0.00 133.38 655.78

5014 - Sick Pay 0.00 0.00 177.84 0.00 111.18 288.99

5016 - Vacation Pay 733.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 733.59

5218 : Other 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
Total 5210 - Gross Wages 5,201.64 2,378.61 2,828.76 247308 2,734.29 15616.38
5230 - Payroll Taxes 188.34 65.57 49.72 44.56 28.22 3774
5240 + Health & Medical Exp.

5242 - Health Ins / Other 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 3,000.00
Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp. 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 3,000.00
5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense

5256 + PERS Co Pd Kristi 341.91 185.69 191.61 187 .42 165.16 1,071.79
Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense 341.91 185.68 181.81 187.42 165.186 1,071.79
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc. 235.48 100.32 112.32 100.32 100.32 648.76

Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses €,568.37 3,330.19 378241 3,405.38 3,627.99 20,714.34
6000 - Administrative Overheads
6102 + Accounting 756.25 1,205.00 0.00 0.00 2,677.00 4,638.25
6115 « Bank Service Charges 2519 145,32 2574 2546 161.60 383.31
6120 - Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 480.00
6135 - Legal 605.00 393.00 396.80 1,062.20 1,746.20 4,204.20
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage 906.97 616.29 1,164.56 362.08 794 .24 3.844.14
6145 - Public Notices 0.00 0.00 505.77 0.00 0.00 505.77
6150 - Rate Assistance 488.81 526.28 496.50 519.67 503.12 2,5634.38
6155 - Rent 0.00 820.66 820,66 820,66 820.66 3.282.64
6160 - Training 553.93 -423.93 10.00 630.41 0.02 770.43
6170 - Website 0.00 0.00 376.70 200.00 0.00 576.70
Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads 3,336.18 3,282.63 3,796.73 3.621.48 7,182.84 21,219.83
6500 + Operating Expenses
6503 - Chemicals 6.531.06 3.758.51 5,519.40 31777 5,176.68 24,1568.42
6505 - Contract Labor 196.019.52 50,403.60 24,704 30 29,334.30 33,884.20 334 .346.02
6510 + Critical Spare Parts 0.00 0.00 1,539.41 0.00 1.620.59 3,160.00
6518 + Equipment Expense 0.00 178.27 0.00 0.00 21117 390.44
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD 1,378.28 13,927.04 6,262.56 3,503.31 1,993.36 27 084.55

6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only 0.00 5613.99 1,896.89 -236.49 109.00 7,383.39

6520 + Equipment Repair & Maint, - Other 546,36 240.67 0.00 518.86 782746 8,234.35
Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint. 202484 18.781.70 8,150 45 3,786.68 9,920 82 43 682 29
6525 « Fat Oil & Grease (FOG) 0.00 0.00 1,843.46 71214 0.00 2,5655.60
6530 - Generator Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 506.10 0.00 59610
6535 + Insurance 1,235.46 1,23546 1,235.46 1,235.46 1,235.46 6,177.30
6540 - Lab Tests 5,649.80 3,223.50 2,715.50 3,143.00 11,143.80 25,875.60
6542 - Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.840.72 0.00 1,840.72
6550 - Operating Supplies 0.00 19.38 0.00 316.58 0.00 33586
6555 - Permits & Fees 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,034.00 2.084.00
6565 + Regulatory Compliance 69.90 0.00 720.30 1,350.00 0.00 2,140.20

Page 1



1:28 PM
06/0217
Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District

Profit & Loss

January through May 2017

6575 - Small Tools

6580 - Solids Handling
6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses

6800 - Water
6805 - State Water

Total 6800 - Water
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses

8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8231 - WW-1 WWTP Upgrade
8232 - WW-2 Effluent Line Repair HD
8237 - WW-7 Misc. Wastewater Projects
8239 - WW-9 Repair to Decking WWTP

8240 - WW-9 Labor Repair to Decking WW

Total 8239 - WW-9 Repair to Decking WWTP
Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani

8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water
8272 - W-2 Water Systm Vaive/ Meter
8271 - W-1 Water Tank Improvements
8273 - W-3 Misc Water Line Replacement

Total 8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apri7 May 17 TOTAL
0.00 0.00 154.26 1,324 46 0.00 1478.72
1,186.50 1,236.00 3,881.00 1,247.50 3,793.50 11,354.50
518.48 320.01 591.44 433.26 570.80 2,435.00
3,366.31 248316 2,848.95 2,610.84 3.903.52 15212.78
216,662.68 82,641.59 53,912.93 51,102.81 73,503.64 477,823.65
51,913.40 0.00 3742860 0.00 0.00 89,342.00
51,913.40 0.00 37.428.60 0.00 0.00 89,342.00
278,638.69 89 254.41 99.027.45 58,287.66 84.314.47 609 522.68
-186,038.31 -4,142.40 7.919.76 212.277.52 240212 32,417.69
13,833.75 261375 2,853.75 9,768.20 12,457 .50 41,626.95
607.50 27.971.93 43568 135.00 51,145.50 80,295.61
2,034.98 734242 6,858.41 0.00 8,761.80 25,098.61
0.00 3,165.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,165.91
0.00 3,165.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,165
16,576.23 41,094.01 10,248.84 9,903.20 72,364.80 150,187.08
217.50 2,763.75 362.50 1,892.16 1,162.25 6.398.16
0.00 0.00 13,5624.21 0.00 0.00 13,524.21
0.00 6,187.50 2B3.75 11,170.50 2.830.00 2047175
217.50 8,951.25 14,170.48 13.062.66 399225 40,384.12
16,783.73 50,045.26 2441930 2296586 76,357.05 190,581.20
16.793.73 50,045.26 24 419.30 22 965.86 76,357.05 190,581.20
-16,793.73 -50,045.26 -24,419.30 -22,965.86 -76,357.05 -180,581.20
-202,833.04 -54,187.66 -16,499.54 169,311.66 -73,954.93 -158,163.51

Page 2



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

ME MORANDUM

1y Board of Directors -
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Man@
DATE: June 13th, 2017

SUBJECT:  General Manager/District Engineer Report

Mandatory Ethics Training
The Board members are reminded that they need to complete their mandatory Ethics Training by June
30. Please let Kristi or I know if you need assistance logging in to the CSDA training module.

Zone 3 Technical and Advisory Committee Meetings

The Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) met on Thursday, May 4, and Thursday June 1,
2017. The Agendas for the TAC meetings are provided as an attachment to this report. As of this
writing Lopez Lake is at 62% capacity and has approximately 30,500 acre feet of water in storage. The
State Department of Water Resources notified the County that State Water Project deliveries will be
85% on their respective Table A entitlements. This will allow the District to store to some of this year’s
state water for future years. On May 2, 2017, the Board of Supervisors declared “surplus water” as
described in the Lopez Water Supply Contracts and continued implementing the Low Reservoir
Response Plan (LRRP). The County Agenda Item Transmittal and Staff Report are provided as
attachments to this report.

2016 Drinking Water Consumer Confidence Report

On May 30, staff sent out the 2016 Consumer Confidence Report. The State mandated annual report
provides a summary of the State Drinking Water Standards, the District’s sample results and notes any
exceedances. The District (and all Zone 3 water purveyors) experienced an exceedance in the chlorate
level in 2016. On November 29, 2016, sample results showed chlorate levels as high as 0.86 mg/L in the
distribution system. This was slightly above the Notification Level of 0.80 mg/L. County Water
Treatment Plant staff took immediate measures and the chlorate levels returned to levels below the
Notification Level. The 2016 Consumer Confidence Report is provided as an attachment to this staff

report.

State Board Media Release on Mandatory Conservation Standards

On April 26, 2017, the State Water Resources Control Board issued a Media Release announcing that
the State Board rescinded the remaining mandatory conservation standards for urban water suppliers
while keeping in place the water use reporting requirements and prohibitions against wasteful water use
practices. The Media Release is provided as an attachment to this report.




ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Thursday May 4, 2017

9:00-11:00 AM
ARROYO GRANDE CITY HALL
300 BRANCH STREET
2" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM

| Human Keactions o Lirought - chart 118 Agend a
1. Announcements All
¢ (Castaneda Easement Request - Update
2. General Operations and Water Report Jill
¢ Monthly Operations Report
s Lopez Dam Storage Projections
e Summary Notes/Action Items — April
3. Cloud Seeding — Presentation on Final Report Ray Dienzo
4. Groundwater Levels — Preliminary results Ray Dienzo
Dan Heimel
5. LRRP - Criteria for leaving the LRRP All
¢ NCMA metrics for groundwater levels
6. County Drought Emergency Declaration and Surplus Water - BOS Jill
May 2, 2017
7. Operations Report/ Capital Improvement Project Update Joshua Roberts
8. New Safe Yield Analysis — Needed? | All
9. By-pass pipeline Testing Update Jill
10.Agenda items next month? All
Attachments:

A. Lopez Monthly Operations Report — Distributed at Meeting
B. Lopez Reservoir Storage Projections — Distributed at Meeting

N\,eﬁ'\orial D

C. April Summary Notes - Distributed at Meeting

Next Meeting June 1, 2017 qQ 35




ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Thursday June 1, 2017
9:00-11:00 AM
ARROYO GRANDE CITY HALL

300 BRANCH STREET
2" F OOR CONFERENCE ROOM

Agenda
1. Announcements All
2. General Operations and Water Report Jill
¢ Monthly Operations Report - Not available
e Lopez Dam Storage Projections — Not available
e Summary Notes/Action ltems — Not available
3. Board of Supervisors Action on Rescinding Drought/LRRP Mark H
e Next Steps/schedule
4. Operations Report/ Capital Improvement Project Update Jill
¢ Minimum Pool (County Counsel opinion)
5. ECORPS Contract modeling - Re-cap of kick-off meeting All
6. By-pass pipeline testing — scheduling/feasibility underway Jill
7. Agenda items next month? All

Attachments:
A. Lopez Monthly Operations Report — Distributed on June 6" via e-mail
B. Lopez Reservoir Storage Projections — Distributed on June 6™ via e-mail
C. May Summary Notes - Distributed on June 6 via e-mail

Next Meeting July 6, 2017




BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
AGENDA ITEM TRANSMITTAL

(1) DEPARTMENT (2) MEETING DATE (3) CONTACT/PHONE
Public Works 5/2/2017 Jill Ogren, Utilities Senior Engineer
(805) 781-5263

(4) SUBJECT

Declaration of surplus water for Zone 3 Lopez Project, of the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and
Water Conservation District and continued implementation of the Low Reservoir Response Plan for
Zone 3. Districts 3 and 4.

(5) RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that the Board, acting as the Board of Supervisors for the San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District), declare surplus water as described in Article 4,
Sections (C) and (D) of the Lopez Water Supply Contracts, in an amount of 2,961 acre feet (AF); and to
continue implementing the Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP).

(9) BUDGETED?
N/A

(6) FUNDING SOURCE(S) (7) CURRENT YEAR FINANCIAL (8) ANNUAL FINANCIAL
N/A IMPACT IMPACT

N/A N/A

(10) AGENDA PLACEMENT
{X} Consent { } Presentation { } Hearing (Time Est. ) { } Board Business (Time Est. )

(11) EXECUTED DOCUMENTS
{ } Resolutions { } Contracts { } Ordinances {X} N/A

(12) OUTLINE AGREEMENT REQUISITION NUMBER (OAR) (13) BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUIRED?
BAR ID Number: N/A

s { } 4/5th's Vote Required {X3} N/A
(14) LOCATION MAP (15) BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT? (16) AGENDA ITEM HISTORY
Attached No {X} N/A Date

(17) ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE REVIEW
David E. Grim

(18) SUPERVISOR DISTRICT(S)
District 3
District 4

Reference: 17MAY02-C-13

Page 10of 5



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO

TO: Board of Supervisors
FROM:; Public Works
Jill Ogren, Utilities Senior Engineer
VIA:; Wade Horton, Director of Public Works
DATE: 5/2/2017

SUBJECT:  Declaration of surplus water for Zone 3 Lopez Project, of the San Luis Obispo County Flood
Control and Water Conservation District and continued implementation of the
Low Reservoir Response Plan for Zone 3. Districts 3 and 4.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board, acting as the Board of Supervisors for the San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District), declare surplus water as described in Article 4,
Sections (C) and (D) of the Lopez Water Supply Contracts, in an amount of 2,961 acre feet (AF); and to
continue implementing the Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP).

DISCUSSION
Declaration of Surplus Water

Every year the District declares surplus water per the water supply contracts for Zone 3 (Lopez Project) of
the District. The Zone 3 water supply contracts define surplus water as, “The portion of the Safe Yield for
Project water remaining after distributions of water during the said previous Water Year” (Article 4 (D)).
The declaration of surplus water does NOT mean that there is an amount of “excess” water in the
reservoir; in short, surplus water is water that was saved from the previous year's municipal entitlements
and downstream releases. The water supply contracts specify that surplus water is offered to the Zone 3
agencies in proportion to their participation in the project; this year's surplus is 2,961 AF as shown in
Table 1 below and in further detail in Attachment 1.

Page 2 of 5



TABLE 1: Zone 3 2016-17 Surplus Water

Surplus Surplus

Entitlement Generated Available by

Cahtiaetor Entitlement Delivered (Unused Entitlement

AF AF Entitlement) | Entitlement % % (x 2961 AF)
Arroyo Grande 2290 1697 593 50.6 1497
Pismo Beach 892 129 763 19.7 583
Grover Beach 800 774 26 17.6 523
Oceano CSD 303 107 196 6.7 198
CSA 12 (Avila) 245 90 155 54 160
Sub Totals 4530 2797 1733 100 % 2961

Downstream

Releases 4200 2972 1228 0
Total 8730 5769 2961 2961

(All amounts have been rounded to the nearest whole number)

However, the above declaration of surplus water is a contractual formality this year because the reservoir
is still being operated under the Board adopted LRRP.

Low Reservoir Response Plan Update

The LRRP provides a methodology to evaluate near term reservoir levels and proposes a set of actions
that can be taken to mitigate the impacts of drought. Two triggers must be met before the LRRP can be
initiated; 1) Board of Supervisor's declaration of a Zone 3 or Countywide water emergency, and
2) reservoir level drops below 20,000 AF. Similarly, the LRRP is no longer in effect when both triggers
rescind. Currently, although the reservoir is above 20,000 AF (= 30,000 AF as of 4/10/17), the Countywide
water emergency proclamation has not been rescinded, therefore the LRRP is still in effect.

Zone 3 agencies via the Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) are concerned that should both
triggers be met for exiting the LRRP, there may be other indicators such as groundwater levels and
confidence in community use trends that should be evaluated to assure agencies that the impacts of the
drought are over and the LRRP is not needed.

It is the recommendation of the Zone 3 Advisory Committee and TAC that the LRRP remain in effect
(regardless of triggers in the LRRP) until there is clear and convincing evidence that the impacts of the
drought are over. The Zone 3 Advisory Committee and TAC are continuing to review information relative
to the condition of the groundwater basin, analysis of the response of the basin to this winter's rains,
ongoing rate of inflows into the reservoir, etc., before formulating a recommendation to your Board.

Page 30f 5



Table 2 below provides estimated Zone 3 contractor water supplies for 2017-18 while continuing to
operate under the LRRP.

Table 2: Zone 3 2017-2018 Available Water Supply under the LRRP

Unused Carry Unused
Entitlement at over in 16-17 Entitlement in Water Accounts
Contractor :
20,000 Acre-Ft (Adjusted for 16-17 by Agency
trigger Evaporation) | "New Carryover” in 17-18
(A) (B) (€) ()
Arroyo Grande 2290 886 364 3540
Pismo Beach 892 1161 673 2726
Grover Beach 800 240 0 1040
Qceano CSD 303 674 166 1143
CSA 12 245 369 131 745
Totals 4530 3330 1334 9194

{All amounts in acre feet and have been rounded to nearest whole number)
Notes: (D) = (A) +(B) + (C)

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT/IMPACT

At their March 16, 2017 meeting, the Zone 3 Advisory Committee adopted the recommendation that the
Board of Supervisors:

e “Declare Surplus Water as described in Article 4 Sections (C) and (D) of the Water Supply
Contracts, in the amount of 2,921 AF, or as adjusted by final vear-end water accounting.”
(Vote was unanimous - Note the final water accounting for water year ending March 31, 2017
resulted in an actual final amount of 2,961 AF of surplus water); and

¢« “Continue to implement the Low Reservoir Response Plan pursuant to the Board's
Resolution 2014-377 adopted on December 16, 2014.” (Vote was unanimous).

The recommended actions today are consistent with the Zone 3 Advisory Committees' recommended
actions.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The water supply contracts for Zone 3 are described as “take-or-pay,” meaning essentially that all of the
costs of the system are paid for by the Zone 3 agencies, at percentages based on the amount of
entitlement water in their respective contracts, plus their distance down the delivery system. Under the

Page 4 of 5



LRRP, there is no surplus water to distribute at a particular cost, only the carry over water generated by
that agency and available to that agency so there are no additional costs associated.

RESULTS

Declaration of surplus water (per water supply contracts) and continued implementation of the LRRP will
provide water to Zone 3 of the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District in
amounts necessary to promote good water management and protect the groundwater basin as the area
begins to recover from this extended drought thereby promoting a livable community.

ATTACHMENTS

1 Vicinity Map
2. Attachment 1 - Lopez Water - Estimated Surplus Water for 2017/2018 by Contract

Reference: 17MAY02-C-13

File: CF340.101.01

LaUtilities\2017\May\BOS\Dedaration of Surplus Water Zone 3\Declaration Surplus Water 2016-17 LRRP brd ltr.docx JO.m)j

Page 5 of 5



2016 Consumer Confidence Report

Avila Beach Community Services District Report Date:  April 20, 2017

Water System Name:

We test the drinking water quality for many constituents as required by state and federal regulations. This report shows
the results of our monitoring for the period of January 1 - December 31, 2016 and may include earlier monitoring data.

Este informe contiene informacion muy importante sobre su agua potable. Tradiizcalo 6 hable con alguien que lo

entienda bien.

Type of waler source(s) in use:  Surface Water

Name & general location of source(s):

Lopez Lake Water Supply Project and Central Coast Water Authority

(CCWA) Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant.

Drinking Water Source Assessment information:

A source assessmient was performed in 2001; Lopez Lake and

Lopez Terminal Reservoir were found to be the most vulnerable to wastewater generation at the Lopez

Recreation Area, livestock near the reservoirs, and a roadway that bisects the Terminal Reservoir. To date, these

activities have not adversely impacted the WTP treated water quality. A copy of the assessment can be found at

the San Luis Obispo County Public Works Department website or by contacting the Water Quality Laboratory at

(805) 781-5111. Information on the State Water Project (CCWA) can be found at www.water.ca.gov/swp

Time and place of regularly scheduled board meetings for public participation:

Regular meetings are held on the

second Tuesday of each month at 7pm at the Avila Beach Community Center at 191 San Miguel Street.

For more information, contact: Avila Beach CSD

Phone: (805) 595-2664

TERMS USED IN THIS REPORT

Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL): The highest level of
a contaminant that is allowed in drinking water. Primary
MCLs are set as close to the PHGs (or MCLGs) as 1s
economically and technologically feasible. Secondary MCLs
are set to protect the odor, taste, and appearance of drinking
watcer.

Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG): The level of
a contaminant in drinking water below which there is no
known or expected risk to health. MCLGs are set by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA).

Public Health Goal (PHG): The level of a contaminant in
drinking water below which there is no known or expected
risk to health. PHGs are set by the California Environmental
Protection Agency.

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL): The
highest level of a disinfectant allowed in drinking water.
There is convincing evidence that addition of a disinfectant is
necessary for control of microbial contaminants.

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal (MRDLG):
The level of a drinking water disinfectant below which there
is no known or expected risk to health. MRDLGs do not
reflect the benefits of the use of disinfectants to control
microbial contaminants.

Primary Drinking Water Standards (PDWS): MCLs and
MRDLs for contaminants that affect health along with their
monitoring and reporting requirements, and water (reatment
requirements.

Secondary Drinking Water Standards (SDWS): MCLs for
contaminants that affect taste, odor. or appearance of the
drinking water. Contaminants with SDWSs do not affect the
health at the MCL levels.

Treatment Technique (TT): A required process intended to
reduce the level of a contaminant in drinking water.

Regulatory Action Level (AL): The concentration of a
contaminant which, if exceeded, triggers treatment or other
requirements that a water system must follow,

Variances and Exemptions: State Board permission to
exceed an MCL or not comply with a treatment technique
under certain conditions.

Level 1 Assessment: A Level 1 assessment is a study of the
water system to identify potential problems and determine (if

possible) why total colitorm bacteria have been found in our
water system,

Level 2 Assessment: A Level 2 assessment is a very detailed
study of the water system to identify potential problems and
determine (if possible) why an E. coli MCL violation has
occurred and/or why total coliform bacteria have been found
in our water system on multiple occasions.

ND: not detectable at testing limit

ppm: paris per million or milligrams per liter (mg/L)

pph: parts per billion or micrograms per liter (ug/L)

ppt: parts per trillion or nanograms per liter (ng/L.)

ppq: parts per quadrillion or picogram per liter (pg/L)

pCi/L: picocuries per liter (a measure of radiation)

2016 SWS CCR Form

Revised Jan 2017




Consumer Confidence Report Page 2 of 6

The sources of drinking water (both tap water and bottled water) include rivers, lakes, strecams, ponds, reservoirs,
springs, and wells. As water travels over the surface of the land or through the ground, it dissolves naturally-occurring
minerals and, in some cases, radioactive material, and can pick up substances resulting from the presence of animals or
from human activity.

Contaminants that may be present in source water include:

Microbial contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria, that may come from sewage treatment plants, septic systems,

agricultural livestock operations, and wildlife.

e [norganic contaminants, such as salts and metals, that can be naturally-occurring or result from urban stormwater
runoff, industrial or domestic wastewater discharges, oil and gas production, mining, or farming.

e Pesticides and herbicides, that may come from a variety of sources such as agriculture, urban stormwater runoff, and
residential uses.

e Organic chemical contaminants, including synthetic and volatile organic chemicals, that are by-products of industrial
processes and petroleum production, and can also come from gas stations, urban stormwater runoff, agricultural
application, and septic systems.

e Radioactive contaminants, that can be naturally-occurring or be the result of oil and gas production and mining
aclivitics.

In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink. the USEPA and the State Water Resources Control Board (State

Board) prescribe regulations that limit the amount of certain contaminants in water provided by public water systems.

State Board regulations also establish limits for contaminants in bottled water that provide the same protection for public

health.

Tables 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 list all of the drinking water contaminants that were detected during the most recent
sampling for the constituent. The presence of these contaminants in the water does not necessarily indicate that the
water poses a health risk. The State Board allows us to monitor for certain contaminants less than once per year because
the concentrations of these contaminants do not change frequently. Some of the data, though representative of the water
quality, are more than one year old. Any violation of an AL, MCL, MRDL, or TT is asterisked. Additional information
regarding the vielation is provided later in this report.

TABLE 1 - SAMPLING RESULTS SHOWING THE DETECTION OF COLIFORM BACTERIA

Microbiological Highest No. | o o onths in
Contaminants of o MCL MCLG Typical Source of Bacteria
y “ 5 y violation :
{complete if bacteria detected) | Detections
al Colili acleris 1 positive monthly : :
TUMI__LU]I[EJH? Bacteri (In a mo.) 0 POSIHY ¥ 0 Naturally present in the environment
{state Total Coliform Rule) sample
A routine sample and a
repeat sumple are total
Fecal Coliform or E. coli | (In the year) coliform positive, and - g )
e 0 ) X Human and animal fecal waste
{state Total Coliform Rule) one of these is also tecal
coliform or I, eoli
positive
E. coli !
{6 v 5
(federal Revised Total [ﬂlo;?;:;'}'ﬁl] 0 (a) 0 Human and animal fecal waste
Cloliform Rule) ==

{a) Routine and repeat samples are total coliform-positive and either is E. coli-positive or system fails 1o take repeat samples following E. coli-positive routine sample
or system fils o analyze total coliform-positive repeat sample for £, coli,

TABLE 2 - SAMPLING RESULTS SHOWING THE DETECTION OF LEAD AND COPPER

90 .
Lead and Copper ; No. of a No. sites
(complete it lead or copper Sample samples ROl exceeding AL PHG Typical Source of Contaminant
; Date level ’
detected in the last sample set) collected AL
| detected
Internal corrosion of household
Seplember i N - " water plumbing systems; discharges
L8 (pph) 2016 Wi NiA N 3 02 from industrial manufacturers;
erosion of natural deposits
Internal corrosion of houschold
September plumbing systems: erosion of
Copper (ppm) 2016 i B L 14 L natural deposits; leaching from
wood preservalives

2016 SWS CCR Form Revised Jan 2017




Consumer Confidence Report

Page 3 of 6

TABLE 3 - SAMPLING RESULTS FOR SODIUM AND HARDNESS

Chemical or Constituent Sample Level Range of : PHG oo . . .
(and reporting units) Date Detected Detections MCL (MCLG) e
CCWA : Polonio Pass 2016 87 N/A . p— Salt present in the water 311‘d 18
Sodium (ppm) generally naturally occurming
I,Opc}l' Lake WSP 2016 7 N/A G et Salt present in the \_vatcr a.n_d 15
Sodium (ppm) generally naturally occurring
Sum of polyvalent cations present in
CCWA — Polonio Pass 2016 115 64— 162 none none the waler, g_cncrfllly magnesium and
Hardness (ppm) calcium, and are usually naturally
occurring
Sum of polyvalent cations present in
3 y J G I o o ¥ H :-
Lopez Lake WSI 2016 271 210 344 pes p the water, generally magnesium and

Hardness (ppm)

caleium, and are usually naturally
uccurrinﬁ

TABLE 4 - DETECTION OF CONTAMIN

ANTS WITH A PRIMARY DRINKING WATER STANDARD

PHG
Chemical or Constituent Sample Level Range of MCL ; , : .
: . ‘ MCLG) Typical Source of Contaminant
(and reporting units) Date Detected Detections MRDL (! N
POrRiE [ I MRDLG)
Avila Beach CSD — San i g o
Miguel Street Total 2016 55.8 32-72 80 N/A Rytraguekof drisking was
. disinfection
Trihalomethanes (ppb}
Hovila Beacl L1 ~Tin Byproduct of drinking water
Juan Park Total 2016 56.1 30— 88 80 N/A w LR
. ! disinfection
Trihalomethanes (ppb)
ale T .. - " + . ; "
Lo!'lcz Lake WSP Total 2016 16.9 30.8 — 36.9 30 N/A Bypluduq.t‘)f‘dnl;l\mg water
Trihalomethanes (ppb) disinfection
i Byproduct of drinking water
Total Trihalomethanes 2016 61.0 31 -60 80 NiA 2YP S &
disinfection
(ppb)
A Byproduct of drinking water
Miguel Street Haloacetic 2016 278 19 -33 60 N/A ¥R . FERES
g : disinfeetion
Acids (ppb)
Avila Beach CSD - San L T
Juan Park Haloacetic 2016 27.0 19-32 60 N/A Bypradutsiol drivlang e
; disinfection
Acids (ppb)
Lopez Lake WSP N a o Byproduct of drinking water
Haloacetic Acids (ppb) e Ll Wik 80 B disinfection
CCWA Polonio Pass ; Byproduct of drinking water
- A i ! =
Haloacetic Acids (ppb) LU Lh e tl=i 1 L disinfection
Lopez Lake WSP 5 — o — v ;
Turbidity (NTU) 2016 0.038 0.028 —0.252 IT=1 N/A Soil runoff
CCWA Polonio Pass S . ;
2 In’"; . 3 - . ."I.I ™
Turbidity (NTU) 2016 N/A 0.03 -0.11 IT=1 N/A Soil mnoff
e Erosion of natural deposits; residue
Lopc{ g 2016 0.024 ND —0.030 1 0.6 from some surface water treatment
Aluminum (ppm)
processcs
! . Erosion of natural deposits; residue
CCWA,FO] gt Dugs 2016 0.110 ND-0.25 1 0.6 from some surface water treatment
Alaminum (ppm) e
processes
- Erosion of natural deposits; runoff
. ) QP b
Lopez L‘at\e i 2016 4.1 22-6 10 0.004 from orchards; glass and electronics
Arsenic (ppb) . ; e
production wastcs
. ” Erosion of natural deposits; runoff
CEWA pFﬂUmG Fess 2016 2.0 2.0 10 0.004 from archards; glass and clectronics
Arsenic (pph) i
production wastes
s Discharge of oil drilling wastes and
Henes Like WEE 2016 0.033 N/A 2 2 from metal refineries; erosion of

Barium (ppm)

natural deposits

2016 SWS CCR Form

Revised Jan 2017




Consumer Confidence Report

Page 4 of 6

TABLE 4 - DETECTION OF CONTAMINANTS WITH A PRIMARY DRINKING WATER STANDARD, CONT'D

PHG
Chemical or Constituent Sample Level Range of MCL . : ;
. : ; MCLG) Typical Source of Contaminant
(and reporting units Date Detected Detections MRDL ( ¥
pormg ) ' | (MrpLG]
Internal corrosion of houschold
Lopcz Lal\.'c WSP 2016 0.029 N/A AL_13 0.3 plumbing sygtcms: erosion of
Capper (ppm) natural deposits; leaching from
wood preservatives
Erosion of natural deposits; water
CCWA Polonio Pass : additive which promotes strong
"
Fluoride (ppm) 215 Uiz Gl 2 L teeth; discharge from fertilizer and
aluminum factories
Erosion of natural deposits: water
Lopez Lake WSP : y 5 additive which promotes strong
Fluoride (ppm) 2016 0.228 N/A - ] teeth; discharge from fertilizer and
aluminum factorics
Runoftf and leaching from
CCWA Ralanio Pasg fertilizer use; I{:achirjlg from
Nitrate as Nitrogen, N 2016 0.43 0.43 10 10 : ' > 8 ;
(ppih) septic tanks and sewage; erosion
of natural deposits
Lopez Lake WSP
Gross Alpha Particle 2013 .51 1.42 - 1.59 15 (0 Erosion of natural deposits
Activity (pCi/L)
CCWA Polonio Pass
Gross Beta Particle 2016 5.7 5.7 50 (0) Dy of nasiurdi ‘??‘d R ST
Activity (pCi/L) 5 S
Lopez Lake WSP ST — a4 [4.0 as Drinking water disintectant added
Chlorine (ppm) 2016 232 1.76-2.92 Cli] [+as Cl] for treatment
Lopez l__,ake WSI[‘ 2016 0.74 0462 — 1.0 1.0 0.05 Bypmduc_t pi drl::kag water
Chlorite (ppm) disinfection
Lopez Lake WSP 5 = RAL = ; Byproduct of drinking water
) 652 — 693 G . ———
Chlorate (ppb) 2016 2 G0~ 800 L disinfection
; - Lake WS 800 as 00 as finking water disinfe :
l,opcz L .a] ¢ WSP 2016 88 20 - 340 [ } 0 as [Ei ) as Drinking m.atu disinfectant added
Chlorine Dioxide (ppb) ClOz] ClO;] for treatment
CCWA Polonio Pass S, .
Total Chlorine Residual | 2016 23 1937 (408 | ryguop | Drmkingwaierdisinfsmantadded
Cl1] for treatment

(ppim)

TABLE 5 - DETECTION OF CONTAMINA

NTS WITH A SECONDARY DRINKING WATER STANDARD

Chemical or Constituent Sample Level Range of PHG e y
b rEarinE i) Date Detected Deteetions MCL (MCLG) Typical Source of Contaminant
B Erosion of natural deposits; residual
LDpCZ.LaLC WP 2016 46 <20-72 200 N/A from some surface water treatment
Aluminum (ppb) y
processes
L?pcz _Ld.ke WSP 2016 76.4 N/A 500 N/A Rulmﬂ Iedchm_g tm.m natural
Chloride (ppm) deposits; secawater influence
CCWA I_Julo'mu Pass 2016 97 41— 138 500 N/A Runofff’lcachmg h‘nlm natural
Chloride (ppm) deposits; scawater influence
Lopez Lake \\ SP 2016 | N/A 15 N/A I"\amrally-nccml'm ng organic
Color (units) materials
CCWA Polonio Pass ND (treatcd) ND (treated) ! Naturally-occurring organic
L 2016 L 15 N/A . =
Color (units) 25 (source) 25 (source) materials
Internal corrosion of household
o o WS . LN N =
Lopez Lake WSP 2016 0.082 N/A | N/A plumbing systems; erosion of

Copper (ppm)

natural deposits; leaching from
wood preservatives

2016 SWS CCR Form

Revised Jan 2017



Consumer Confidence Report Page 5 of 6

TABLE 5 - DETECTION OF CONTAMINANTS WITH A SECONDARY DRINKING WATER STANDARD, CONT’'D

Chemical or Constituent Sample Level Range of PHG = 5
(and reporting units) Date Detected Detections MCL (MCLG) ‘Typisal Spprieat Contuningnt
Lopes Lake.WbP 2016 19 10—45 3 N/A l\alurally-uccugmg organic

Qdor (units) materials
CCWA Puiun_lo Pass 2016 L1 ND—2 3 N/A Nalurally-uucur_'rn_lg organic
Qdor (units) materials
Lopez Lake WSP e st ddoat B e A
Specific Conductance | 2016 779 N/A 1600 N/A Aubstanoes Bl pm Jonswhien
5 water: seawater influence
([Sicm)
CEWA Polusio Tum Substances that form ions when in
Specific Conductance 2016 609 374 - 757 1600 N/A o i G
water; seawater influence
{(pSicm)
T i o PO, NN ” .
Lope{ Lake WSP 2016 128 N/A 500 N/A Rmm![._lcd&jhmé IITOm _ndtur 1l
Sulfate (ppm) deposits; industrial wastes
C'CVIVA Polonio Pass 2016 100 100 500 N/A Runoff{]cacfhlng f'r:om natural
Sulfate (ppm) deposits; industrial wastes
Lopez Lake WSP . . i . -
; 2 : 0.04 —1.¢ 5 ‘
Turbidity (NTU) 016 0.09 0.04 - 1.9 5 N/A Soil runott
CCWA Polonio Pass ; x -
9 3~ /
Turbidity (NTU) 2016 0.06 0.03-0.13 5 N/A Soil runott
Lopez Lake WSP : G
P :
Total Dissolved Solids 2016 510 N/A 1000 N/A RoyngHiitancts ng-om Ay
deposits
(ppm)
DY AR T Runoit/leaching from natural
Total Dissolved Solids 2016 346 194 - 442 1000 N/A = o miil%
(ppm) o
g 7 x Anoo
CCWA Polgmo Pass 2016 15 15 50 N/A Lcaching from natural deposits
Manganese (ppb)

*Any violation of an MCL, MRDL, or TT is asterisked. Additional information regarding the violation is provided later in this report. Compliance
for Total Trihalomethanes and Haloacetic Acids is hased on the Locational Running Annual Average of samples.

Additional General Information on Drinking Water

Drinking water, including bottled water, may reasonably be expected to contain at least small amounts of some
contaminants. The presence of contaminants does not necessarily indicate that the water poses a health risk. More
information about contaminants and potential health effects can be obtained by calling the USEPA’s Safe Drinking Water
Hotline (1-800-426-4791).

Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in drinking water than the general population. Immuno-
compromised persons such as persons with cancer undergoing chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ
transplants, pcople with HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders. some elderly, and infants can be particularly at risk
from infections. These people should seek advice about drinking water from their health care providers. USEPA/Centers
for Disease Control (CDC) guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection by Cryptosporidium and other
microbial contaminants are available from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline (1-800-426-4751).

Lead-Specific Language for Community Water Systems: [f present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious health
problems, especially for pregnant women and young children. Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials and
components associated with service lines and home plumbing. Avila Beach Community Services District is responsible
for providing high quality drinking water, but cannot control the variety of materials used in plumbing components.
When your water has been sitting for several hours, you can minimize the potential for lead exposure by flushing vour tap
for 30 seconds to 2 minutes before using water for drinking or cooking. [Optional: If you do so, you may wish to collect
the flushed water and reuse it for another beneficial purpose, such as watering plants.] If you are concerned about lead in
your water, you may wish to have your water tested. Information on lead in drinking water, testing methods, and steps

2016 SWS CCR Form Revised Jan 2017




Consumer Confidence Report

Page 6 of 6

you can take to minimize exposurc is available from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline (1-800-426-4701) or at

http://www.epa.gov/lead.

While your drinking water meets the federal and state standard for arsenic, it does contain low levels of arsenic. The

arsenic standard balances the current understanding of arsenic’s possible health effects against the costs of removing

arsenic from drinking water. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency continues to research the health effects of low

levels of arsenic, which is a mineral known to cause cancer in humans at high concentrations and is linked to other health

effects such as skin damage and circulatory problems.

Odor Threshold results were at levels that exceeded the secondary MCL (Maximum Contaminant Level) standards. The

secondary MCLs were set to protect you against unpleasant aesthetic effects (e.g., color, taste, and odor) and the staining

of plumbing fixtures (e.g., tubs and sinks) and clothing while washing. Increases in odor have been associated with algae

blooms. During times of increased algae blooms and odors, the algae is controlled with algaecides and the odor is reduced

to acceptable levels by treating water with powder activated carbon.

Summary Information for Violation of a MCL, MRDL, AL, TT,
or Monitoring and Reporting Requirement

VIOLATION OF A MCL, MRDL, AL, TT, OR MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENT

Vielation Explanation

Duration

Actions Taken to Correct
the Violation

Health Effects Language

The Lopez Project water system
had chlorate levels in the
distribution system above the
notification level. Results showed
levels as high as 0.86 ppm in the
water distribution system; this is
Chlorate | above the notification level of 0.8
ppm. The elevated levels were
likely caused by degradation of
sodium hypochlorite in the bulk
storage tank, resulting in a lower
solution strength and an increase
chlorate levels in the solution.

November 29,
2016

Staff lowered the
sodium hypochlorite
tank level and has
been taking more
frequent deliveries
of chlorine to keep
the solution fresh.
This enabled the
plant to return to
normal operation
with low chlorate
levels in the water
produced.

Chlorate is considered
noncancerous, but may
contribute to pituitary
or thyroid gland issues.
This chemical may be
given a maximum
contaminant level at
some time in the future
once more information
becomes available on
the possible risk to
human health.

2016 SWS CCR Form

Revised Jan 2017




N Media Release

Water Boards

State Water Board Rescinds Mandatory Conservation Standards;
Reporting Requirements and Prohibition on Water Waste Remain

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE Contact: George Kostyrko
April 26, 2017 george.kostyrko@waterboards.ca.gov

SACRAMENTO —Today the State Water Resources Control Board rescinded the water
supply “stress test” requirements and remaining mandatory conservation standards for urban
water suppliers while keeping in place the water use reporting requirements and prohibitions

against wasteful practices.

The action by State Water Board Executive Director Tom Howard was in response to Governor
Brown's announcement earlier this month ending the drought state of emergency and
transitioning to a permanent framework for making water conservation a California way of life.

The Governor's April 7 executive order directs the State Water Board to lift the specific
conservation provisions of its drought emergency regulations but to keep in place the
temporary requirements for monthly water use reporting and prohibitions against wasteful
water use practices while the Board works to develop permanent reporting and wasteful use
regulations. The temporary requirements will remain in effective until Nov. 25, when the

emergency regulation expires.

The current prohibitions against wasteful water use practices include outdoor watering during
or within 48 hours after a rain event; hosing down a sidewalk instead of using a broom or a
brush; and overwatering a landscape to where water is running off onto the sidewalk or into the

gutter.

The long-term conservation framework, also released on April 7, includes recommendations to
establish permanent water conservation standards and improved agricultural and urban water
management planning to better prepare for more frequent and severe droughts due to climate
change. These actions will help achieve a top priority of the California Water Action Plan - to
improve long-term drought preparedness and “Make Conservation a California Way of Life.”

As part of the framework, the Governor released proposed legislation to establish long-term
water conservation measures and improved planning for more frequent and severe
droughts. Among other things the proposed legislation:
e Requires the State Water Board, in consultation with the Department of Water
Resources (DWR), to set long-term urban water use efficiency standards by May 20,

2021,

CALIFOQRNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIOMN AG ENCY

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD %
1001 | Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 « Mailing Address: P.0. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 95812-0100 » www.waterboards ca.gov S s o



Media Release

Watclr Boards

« Includes a robust public participation process to provide the State Water Board and
DWR with critical input from local agencies, tribal governments, nongovernmental
organizations, the business sector, academics, and others;

e Requires urban water suppliers to plan for droughts lasting five or more years; and

« Establishes new drought planning and water efficiency reporting requirements for
agricultural water suppliers.

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTANL PROTECTION AGENCY

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD %
1001 | Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 + Mailing Address: P.O. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 95812-0100 « www.waterboards ca.gov e T



OPERATIONS « MAINTENANCE « MECHANICAL

May 3, 2017

Avila Beach Community Services District
191 San Miguel Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: APRIL 2017 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular
basis. The Chlorine Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can
have a negative effect on the effluent quality leaving the facility.

Staff was notified that the Soledad wastewater treatment plant is no longer taking sludge from other wastewater
treatment plants effective immediately. Staff is working on finding another disposal location but in the meantime ABCSD
asked Soledad for an extension for two more months and it was granted.

Staff collected the annual influent, effluent and biosolids samples.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM Staff monitoring the water quality in the tank
and flushing as needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and shock the system with additional

chlorine as needed.

Staff responded to an afterhours leak in an area that cannot be isolated with the street valves without shutting down the
entire community. The street was saw cut and the service lateral was exposed to allow the corporation stop to be shut
off. After isolating, the service the line was repaired and placed back in service. Staff coordinated with ABCSD the
following morning and it was decided to replace the service lateral to today’s standards as the trench line is exposed.
The street was backfilled and a final asphalt repair will be made in conjunction with other work at a later date.

Staff installed a tank mixing unit that ABCSD purchased directly. The unit is powered using the new power service to
the tanks site. The effectiveness of the mixer will be monitored and operation will be adjusted. The mixer is used to mix
the contents of the tank and to try to keep the chlorine residuals stable within the tank.

COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Analytical data for April 28, 2017 and April 30, 2017 were not ready prior to this report being compiled.

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L
with a Daily Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Page 1 of 2



Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report DMR) in
Central Integrated Water Quality Service (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified
by ABCSD Staff.

Staff uploaded the Electronic Annual Report (EAR) to the State website.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

(0

Carinna Butler
Operations Manager

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2015-2017)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2015-2017)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2015-2017)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2015-2017)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2015-2017)

Monthly Water Purchased From Lopez (2015-2017)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2015-2017)

*® & & & & o & 9

Page 2 of 2



California Regional Water
Quality Control Board,

Central Coast Region

Monthly report due last day of following manth
Annual report due January 30

Avila Beach CSD
Wastewater Treatment

Facility

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING
ORDER R3-2009-0055
NPDES CA0047830
WDID 3 400101001

Month: APRIL 2017

Effluent and Influent Monitoring

Daily Flow {MGD) Effluent Monitoring Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly Monthly
i RRix Avg Biweekly | Biweekly Daily Date Egl;;nt Ef‘ir‘lél;nt In;l;;nt ln:_l;;nt O_IIE;fI;ent
ate | Total Total Fecal Chlorine L rease
(gpm) | (8PM) | coliform | Coliform | Residual (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 |0.066474 115 46 <0.02 41217 42 35 389 292
2 |0.063541 106 44 <0.02 416117 30 29 326 320
3 ]0.048961 99 34 <0.02 419117 41 33 442 296
4 10.050098 133 35 <2 <2 <0.02 411417 28 33 419 300 1.6 DNQ
5 10.047774 91 33 <0.02 4M16/17 43 39 470 348
6 }0.047183 128 33 <2 <2 <0.02 4120117 26 17 379 372
7 |0.049565 131 35 <0.02 412117 30 16 372 336
8 |]0.058241 105 41 <0.02 412317 33 36 415 328
9 ]0.063057 115 44 <0.02 4127117 24 10 333 170
10 |0.059827 107 41 <0.02 4/28/17
11 |0.057098 102 40 <2 <2 <0.02 4/30/17
12 |0.056604 105 40 <0.02 Min 24 10 326 170 1.6 DNQ
13 |0.054538 102 38 <0.02 Mean 33 28 394 307 1.6 DNQ
14 |0.065871 110 46 2 <2 <0.02 Max 43 39 470 3ar2 1.6 DNQ
15 |0.067567| 123 47 <0.02 BOD Removal: 91.6% TSS Removal: 91.0%
16 |0.057740| 118 40 <0.02 Effluent Monitoring
17 lo.044878| 102 31 <0.02 Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly
Date | Set, Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
18 |0.045772| 95 32 10 <2 <0.02 (Grab) (Grab) (Grab) (Grab)
19 |0.047206 90 33 <0.02 4/6/M7 <01 26.4 6.4 67
20 |0.048185 103 34 <2 <2 <0.02 411417 <0.1 45.7 6.5 66
21 |0.059661 105 41 <0.02 4120017 <0.1 28.3 6.3 69
22 ]0.068433 118 47 <0.02 427117 <0.1 18.4 6.3 69
23 |0.062856 129 44 <0.02
24 |0.045175 94 32 <0.02 Min <0.1 18.4 6.3 66
25 |0.036199 76 25 <2 <2 <0.02 Mean <0.1 29.7 6.4 68
26 |0.037335 84 26 <0.02 Max <0.1 45.7 6.5 69
27 |0.039845 88 27 2 <2 <0.02 Effluent Limits
28 |0.047357 97 33 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
29 |0.061998 115 43 <0.02 BOD mg/L 40 60 90
30 |0.060226 110 42 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
k] Oil and Grease mgfL 25 40 75
Min |0.036199 76 25 2 <2 <0.02 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
Mean|0.054009 107 38 4 <2 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
Max [0.068433| 133 47 10 <2 <0.02 Tokal: Galiform 1':::11 More than once in 30 days: 240
Total 11.620263] Effluent daily (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD {mean). Daily Maximum: 2,400
Chlorine Residual mgl/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 1.2
Sludge Removal pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Date Gallons (Est.) Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1.5 3.0
41317 4,500 BOD/TSS Removal % 2 75% S ik
427117 4,500

Order for this facility.

I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing fs true and accurate and that the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste Discharge

SIGNATURE:

PRINTED NAME:

DATE:

TITLE:




o3a

AON

100

HLNOW

d3s ony ane NAP AV dd¥v N

g34

NYT

| LLozm oLozm SLozm |

(2L0Z - S102)
MOT4 ININT443 dLMM ATIVA IOVHIAY dsSHgy

00001

000'02

000'0g

000'0¥

000°05

000'09

00004

00008

AVd ¥3d SNOTIVO




23a

AON

100

HLNOW

d3s ony anr NAF AYIN Hd¥ Y

g34

NI

[ Loz gl0zm siozm |

(2L0Z-S5102)
MOT4 LNINT443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asogy

000°00S

000°'000°L

000°005"L

000'000'2

000'00S'2

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

anr NAr

03d AON 100 d3as onvy AYW Hdv HvYIN g34 NYT

| Llozm ol0zm Slozm |

(2102 -5102)
MOT4 TVLOL ATHLNOW SINT NVS 130d

000'0S

000001

000051

000002

000052

000'00€

000°0G€

SNOTIVO




03d

AON

100

HLNOW

d4s ony nr NOr AYIN ddy HvIN 834 NVl

| uBISeq dIMM=—— /L0Zmmm oj0zmmm GlOZmmm |

(210Z - 5102)
adod LN3N14NI I9VHIAVY ATHLNOW asogyv

0ol

002

00g

ooy

005

009

004

/6w




HLNOW

03d AON 120 d3s ony anr NAr AYI ddv HYIN 934 NVT

Iui ebesany AeQ Of=—— /| 0Zmmm Q07w G |07 mmm

(21L0Z - 5102)
aod IN3IN1443 39VHIAVY ATHLNOW ds)Hgay

o3

=13

0Z

574

0g

Se

oy

St

/6w




03d

AON

HLNOW

120 d3s onvy anr NAr AVIN Hdv YN g34

NV

| z10zm 9il0zm siozm |
(2102 - G102)

Z3d01 NO¥d d3SVHOUNd ¥31VM ATHLNOW asogav

000005

000'000°}

000'00G'L

000°000°C

000°00S'2

000°000'€

SNOTIVO




HLNOW

anr NP AYIN ddy dvIN g3 NYT

| 210zm gLozm siozm |

03d NON 100 d3S oMY
(Z1L0Z - S1L02)

d10s d31vM ATHLNOW asogv

000'00S

000°000°L

000'005" |

000'000'2

000°005°2

000'000°€

000°00S'€E

SNOT1IVO




OPERATIONS o MAINTENANCE ¢ MECHANICAL

June 5, 2017

Avila Beach Community Services District
191 San Miguel Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: MAY 2017 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular
basis. The Chlorine Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can
have a negative effect on the effluent quality leaving the facility.

Staff was notified by Speed’s that the City of Soledad will no longer be taking sludge from any wastewater treatment
plants effective immediately. Staff worked with ABCSD on this and ABCSD was able to obtain permission to haul for
another couple months. Staff also worked on finding a long-term solution and worked with Liberty Composting in Lost
Hills, California. Liberty staff performed an onsite inspection of the wastewater treatment plant and asked for some
sampling to be done and copies of prior sample results. Once the sampling was complete, ABCSD received approval
to start hauling to Liberty Composting.

Staff responded to one power outage during the month of May.

Staff responded to a sludge pump fail to run alarm over a weekend. The pump was found to be short cycling due to bad
floats. The floats were replaced the following Monday to prevent overtime costs for the repair. A float bracket was
installed to allow operations staff to make level adjustments in the future. The existing floats were not able to be removed
as they are fixed in the wet well and require taking the secondary out service. This will be remedied during the next
annual inspection and cleaning.

Staff installed District supplied VFD's and installed them in the existing Motor Control Center (MCC). This project was
performed to assist with dampening the surge of influent entering the WWTP. The original design had the influent lift
station holding water and then pumping at 250 gallons per minute which causes hydraulic shock that carried throughout
the rest of the facility. The new method of operation will have the influent running at a lower flow rate almost nonstop to
equalize the influent rate to the WWTP to what is entering the lift station, The controls were modified with a backup
redundant float system to minimize emergency down time.

On the Sunday of Memarial Day weekend, Staff responded to a Wet Well High Level alarm. Upon arrival Staff found
flow coming into the plant at 120 gallons per minute causing the wet well level to rise higher than normal.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM Staff monitoring the water quality in the tank
and flushing as needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and shock the system with additional

Page 1 of 2



chlorine as needed.

Staff responded to a request to turn water off due to a fire sprinkler leak. Staff responded and met onsite with the
property manager and turned the water off. After doing so, it was discovered that the fire sprinklers are on a separate
system and the fire sprinkler company was called out.

COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L
with a Daily Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report DMR) in
Central Integrated Water Quality Service (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified
by ABCSD Staff.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

)

Carinna Butler
Operations Manager

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2015-2017)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2015-2017)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2015-2017)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2015-2017)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2015-2017)

Monthly Water Purchased From Lopez (2015-2017)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2015-2017)

Page 2 of 2



California Regional Water
Quality Control Board,
Central Coast Region

Avila Beach CSD
Wastewater Treatment

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING
ORDER R3-2009-0055
NPDES CA0047830
WDID 3 400101001

el e e Facliity Month: MAY 2017
Effluent and Influent Monitoring
Daily Flow (MGD) Effluent Monitoring Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly Monthly
T Avg Biweekly | Biweekly Daily Date Effluent Effluent Influent Influent _Efﬂuern
Date | Total Total Fecal | Chlorine BOD TSS BOD TSS Oll & Grease
tapm) | (@Pm) | coliform | Coliform | Residual (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 10.046158 104 32 <0.02 514117 27 13 414 216
2 ]0.041826 B8 29 5 <2 <0.02 5/T117 39 3 546 344
3 10.041272 88 29 <0.02 51117 24 10 343 208 <5
4 10.041380 83 29 <2 <2 <0.02 5114117 41 30 370 376
5 0.047104 95 33 <0.02 511817 30 1" 452 352
6 0.054407 103 31 <0.02 512117 33 20 473 396
7 ]0.052335 105 36 <0,02 5125117 21 9 384 340
8 10.044644 94 3 <0.02 5/28/17 36 29 431 444
9 10.038664 90 27 <2 <2 <0.02
10 0.038820 87 87 <0.02 Min 21 9 343 208 <5
11 |0.042756 93 30 <2 <2 <0.02 Mean 31 19 427 335 <5
12 |0.046712 114 32 <0.02 Max 41 3 546 444 <5
13 J0.060910| 112 42 <0.02 BOD Removal: 92.6% TSS Removal: 94.3%
14 }0.059472 107 42 <0,02 Effluent Monitoring
15 |0.042217 a5 29 <0.02 Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly
Date Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
16 0.034637 83 26 <2 <2 <0.02 (Grab) (Grab) (Grah) (Grah)
17 |0.040408 107 28 <0.02 5/4117 <01 23.3 6.4 70
18 |0.035826 109 27 <2 <2 <0.02 51117 0.1 16.5 6.4 69
19 |0.052932 114 32 <0.02 51817 <0.1 18.3 6.4 68
20 10.058427 116 a4 <0.02 52517 <0.1 13.5 6.7 66
21 |0.067472 111 47 <0.02
22 10.048388| 100 33 <0.02 Min <0.1 13.5 6.4 66
23 ]0.043114 108 30 2 <2 <0.02 Mean <01 17.9 6.48 68
24 10,040145 96 28 <0.02 Max 0.1 233 6.7 70
25 10.038453 92 32 <2 <2 <0.02 Effluent Limits
26 |0.051151 a9 35 <0.02 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
27 [0.072726 112 50 <0.02 BOD mg/L 40 60 20
28 0.081326 124 56 <0.02 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
29 |0.069430| 127 48 <0.02 Qil and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
30 |0.045163 108 3 <2 <2 <0.02 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
31 |0.043721 114 30 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
Min ]0.034637 83 26 <2 <2 <0.02 Total Coliform 1'::::'_ More than once in 30 days: 240
Mean |0.049161 103 36 <2 <2 <0.02 Daily Maximum: 2,400
Max |0.081326] 127 87 5 <2 <0.02 Chilorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 1.2
Total |[1.523996| Effluent daily (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1.5 3.0
Sludge Removal BOD/TSS Removal % 2 75% i il
Date Gallons (Est.)
51917 4,500 | certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and that the sampling procedure and
5/23/17 4,500 analysis used are as specified in the Waste Discharge Order for this facility.
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




HLNOW

anr NOP AVIN ddv HY g34 NVT

23d AON 120 d3s onvy

| L10zm 9i0zm sLozm |

(2102 - S5102)
MOT4 LNINT443 dLMM ATIVA IOVHIAY dSOgV

000'0L

00002

000'0€

000'0¥

000°05

00009

000°0L

000°08

AVd ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

anr NAr AVIN

| z10zm glozm siozm |

(21L0Z - 5102)

MOTd LN3INT443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asogav

000005

000'000°L

000'005°L

000'000°2

0000052

HLNOW d3d SNOTIVO




o3a

AON

120

HLNOW

d3s 2Ny anr NAr AVIN ddv dviN

934

NV

| ozm oi0zm siozm |

(2102 -S102)
MOT14 TVLOL ATHLNOW SINT NVS 130d

000'0S

000°001

000'051

000°002

000°0S52

000°00€

000°0SE

SNOT1VO




03d

AON

100

HLNOW

d3s ony ane NAP AVIN ddv i g93d Nvr

| uBiIseQ dIMM=—— /LOZmmm 9i0zmmm GlOzmmm |

(2102 - S5102)
aod IN3N14NI I9VHIAVY ATHLNOW asoHgav

0ol

00z

0oe

0o%

005

009

004

/6w




HLNOW

33a AON 1200 d3s any anr NP AVIN Hdy dv i

g34

NYT

uwr sBelony AeQ QE === /L0 mmm  QL0Z=mm  GLOZ mmm

(2102 - 5102)
aod LN3IN1443 39VH3IAVY ATHLNOW dsogv

O0r

St

/6w




HLNOW

23a N NP AVIN Hdv

ON 120 d3s ony anr

000'00S'2

000°000°¢

v v em W
- 000'005
- .~ 000'000'
- 000'005'}
— —— 000'000'
| L10zm 910zm giozm |
(L10Z - 5102)

Z3d01 NOd4 n_mw<_._0m5.n_ d31VM ATHLNOW asogv

SNOT1VO



03d

120

d3

S ony

HLNOW

anr NnAr AYIN Hd¥

b= by | g34 NVl

| L10zm 9L0zm glozm |

(21L0Z - S1L02)
d10S ¥31VM ATHLNOW asoav

0

000'00S

000°000't

000'00G'}

000'000'2

0000052

000'000'¢

- 000°00S'E

SNOTIVO



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager@
DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT: Appointment of General Manager to the San Luis Obispo County Water
Resources Advisory Commitiee

Recommendation:

Appoint the General Manager as the District Representative to the Water Resources
Advisory Committee

Discussion:

The San Luis Obispo Water Resources Advisory Committee was formed to advise the
County Board of Supervisors on policy decisions relating to the water resources of the
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District. In addition, the Committee was
formed to provide recommendations to the Board of Supervisors with regard to specific
waler resource and water conservation programs with recognition of the economic and
environmental values of the programs. The Committee By-Laws are attached to this staff

report.

The Committee has broad County-wide representation and County staff noted that the
Avila Beach CSD had not designated a representation to the Committee. The purpose of
this report is for the Board to consider appointing the General Manager as the District’s
primary representative.



SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
WATER RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMITTEE
BYLAWS

ARTICLE I Purposes of the Committee

9

>,

To advise the County Board of Supervisors concerning all policy decisions relating to the
water resources of the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation
District. The Committee shall determine the needs and financial capabilities of the
District with respect to water resources and upon deliberation shall convey their
recommendations to the Board of Supervisors.

To recommend to the Board of Supervisors specific water resource and water
conservation programs with recognition of the economic and environmental values of the
programs. Further, to recommend to the Board of Supervisors other programs concerning
the objectives and purposes of the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water
Conservation District Act.

To recommend methods of financing water resource programs.

ARTICLE 1T Members

]

Membership on the Committee shall be available to the following agencies or groups
(agencies):

Each Incorporated City

Each Supervisorial District

Each Water Serving Independent Special District
Each Resource Conservation District

Atascadero Mutual Water Company

California Men’s Colony

Camp San Luis Obispo

Cuesta Community College

Golden State Water Company

Rural Water Company

County Farm Bureau

Environmental At-Large (3 members)
Agriculture At-Large (2 members)

n.  Development At-Large (1 member)

mETCO SR Se A o

-
fums |

Each agency or group may have a member and an alternate.

Members (and alternates) for agencies shall be nominated by their agency and confirmed
by the Board of Supervisors.

Members (and alternates) for the Supervisorial Districts shall be nominated by the
Supervisor of that district and confirmed by the Board of Supervisors. Such

Adopted August 28, 2012



WRAC BYLAWS
Page2 of 3

10.

11.

representatives shall reside in, and represent their District at the pleasure of the District's
supervisor.
The two Agricultural At-Large members (and their alternates) shall be selected by the

Board of Supervisors from applicants engaged in production agriculture. Their terms
shall be for two years, to be replaced or reaffirmed in February of odd numbered years.

The three Environmental At-Large members (and their alternates) shall be selected by the
Board of Supervisors from applicants with a record of membership in one or more
environmental groups and/or independent environmental activism. Their terms shall be
for two years, to be replaced or reaffirmed in February of odd numbered years.

The Development At-Large member (and alternate) shall be selected by the Board of
Supervisors from applicants engaged in the building and construction industry.
Preference shall be given to applicants that have written support from an organization that
represents the home or commercial building industry. Their terms shall be for two years,
to be replaced or reaffirmed in February of odd numbered years.

Members are encouraged to provide an update on water resource issues relevant to their
group or agency al least once per year.

Three successive unexcused absences of a member without notifying the Committee, if
no alternate is representing the member, shall be cause for the member to be dropped
from the Committee and the member’s agency shall be notified and nomination of a new

representative requested.

This Committee shall comply with all applicable laws, including the Ralph M. Brown
Act.

Members and alternates serve at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors.

ARTICLE III Meetings

(2]

Meetings shall be held on the first Wednesday of each month except for July and August.
If a majority vote of members present in a regular meeting approve, the July and/or
August meeting may be held, and any regular meeting may be postponed if it would fall
on a holiday.

Meetings shall begin at 1:30 p.m. and shall continue for no more than two hours unless
extended time is approved by a majority vote.

The Chairperson, or the Vice Chairperson in the Chairperson’s absence, may call a
Special Meeting after proper notification of the Committee members. Proper notification
shall be deemed to have been met if such notification is written and is delivered
personally, by mail. by email with a confirmation receipt, or by direct contact by
telephone at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting.

Meetings may be canceled by vote of the committee in a meeting. If there are insufficient
items to justify a meeting it may be canceled by agreement between the Chairperson and
Secretary. Notice of canceled meetings shall be the same as for special meetings.

Ten members, or their alternates in their absence, shall constitute a quorum.

Adopted August 28, 2012



WRAC BYLAWS
Page 3 of 3

Any decision or recommendation to the Board of Supervisors shall require a majority
vote by Committee members present, or their alternates, for passage.

Every member agency shall have one vote. This vote may be cast by the member or the
alternate.

Meetings shall be open to the public and members of other governmental agencies.
Visitors may express opinions or make requests during public comment. The
Chairperson may open and close the meeting to public comment.

ARTICLE IV Officers

¥

Officers of the Committee shall consist of the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and
Secretary.
The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of the Committee shall be selected from the

members of the Committee and elected by a majority vote of the members present, The
Secretary shall be County Public Works staff assigned annually by the County Public

Works Department Director.
Election of Officers shall be done annually at the March meeting of the Committee.

Vacated elected offices shall be filled by election/appointment by the Committee. The
Vice-Chairperson shall assume the Chairpersonship in the event of absence of the
Chairperson.

ARTICLE V Administration

I3

The Secretary, in cooperation with the Chairperson, shall prepare the agenda for each
regular and special meeting of the WRAC. Any WRAC member may contact the Secretary
and Chairperson and request that an item be placed on the regular meeting agenda no later
than 4:30 p.m. twelve calendar days prior to the applicable meeting date. Such a request
must be also submitted in writing either at the time of communication with the Secretary or
delivered to the County Public Works Department within the next working day.
Consideration of the request by the Secretary, in cooperation with the Chairperson, for
inclusion on the agenda will be limited to include review for consistency with District and
Board of Supervisors priorities, the mandate of the WRAC, and available time.

The Chairperson, in cooperation with the Secretary, shall prepare an Annual Report for
review by the WRAC no later than the March meeting date. The Annual Report shall
include a summary of WRAC activities, actions and outcomes for the previous year, and
current status of continuing efforts. The Annual Report shall be forwarded to the Board of
Supervisors after review by the WRAC.

Bylaws shall be reviewed biannually for recommended updates or more often if requested
by the Board of Supervisors.

Adopted August 28, 2012



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage fﬂ
DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT:  Results of 2017 Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP) Audit

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Board:
1) Receive this Staff Report;
2) Review SSMP Audit Findings/Recommendations;
3) Direct staff to implement the Audit Recommendations summarized in the attached

Table

Discussion:

In 2006 the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) adopted Water Quality Order No.
2006-0003-DWQ, requiring all public wastewater collection system agencies in California with
greater than one mile of sewers to be regulated under General Waste Discharge Requirements
(WDR). The SWRCB action mandated the development of a Sewer System Management Plan
(SSMP) and the reporting of Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO) using an electronic reporting
system. On February 20), 2008 the SWRCB Adopted Order No. WQ 2008-0002-EXEC which
revised the monitoring, reporting, and records keeping requirements for SSOs.

The District adopted its first SSMP on September 14, 2010. The current SSMP and subject of
this Audit, is Revision 3, dated April 2014. SSMPs inform and direct the operation and
maintenance of the sanitary sewer system and documents plans to conduct long-term capital
improvement projects. These plans are “living documents™ that require regular review and
update to ensure they document the current practices of operations and management staff.

SSMP Audit Results
District staff collaborated with Operations and Maintenance staff to conduct the SSMP audit.

The SSMP Audit findings and recommendations are attached to the Staff Report. Staff
recommends that the Board receive the SSMP Audit results and direct District staff to update and
revise the SSMP in accordance with the Audit Recommendations.



AUDIT BENCHMARKS

In keeping with previous SSMP program audits, the henchmarks used to demanstrate performance
effectiveness are outlined in Table 1.

Table 1: 2017 Avila Beach SSMP Audit Ranking System

Benchmark Ranking Ranking Basis
In Compliance All requirements specified in the section are met.
Substantial Compliance The majority of requirements are met.
Partial Compliance Half of the requirements stated are met.
Marginal Compliance Less than half of the requirements are met.
Out of Compliance None of the requirements are met. |

SSMP AUDIT PARTICIPANTS AND SCHEDULE

The SSMP Audit Report assesses the effectiveness of District's SSMP Revision 3, dated April 2014,
and compliance with the SSSWDR Section D.13 requirements. The audit is required to identify
deficiencies, if any, in the SSMP and identify steps to correct them. The audit was conducted by:

v Krista Ackermann
Compliance Specialist — Fluid Resource Management

Staff participating in the audit were:

= Brad Hagemann
General Manager — Avila Beach Community Services District

= Mike Wentzel
Chief Plant Operator — Fluid Resource Managementi

= Carinna Butler
Operations Manager — Fluid Resource Management

The audit schedule is autlined in Table 2.

Table 2: 2017 Avila Beach SSMP Audit Schedule

Date B Description of Work Completed By

March 2017 Review SSMP 'records, prepare_draft audit -
o report with recommendations
; ; ) : Carinna Butler
April 2017 Review draft audit report; make corrections Mike Wentzel
as needed
Brad Hagemann |

Mav 2017 Present audit report for board review and Brad Hagemann

_-_h_y_ o adaption ABCSD Board
June 2017 — June 2018 Update SSMP; wnplement_ other ABCSD Staff and

~_recommendatijons from audit report Contractors




AUDIT SUMMARY

The SSMP Audit results in a finding that the Avila Beach CSD SSMP dated April 2014 is in
compliance or substantial compliance with eight out of eleven subsections of SSSWDR Section D.13
and has been in partial compliance with the three remaining subsections. The District has been
substantially effective in implementation of the SSMP. A summary of these findings is presented in the

Table 3: Summary of Avila Beach CSD 2017 SSMP Audit Findings

District Effectiveness in
Implementation of SSMP
Subsections

Recommendations

Table 3 below:
SSMP
SSSWDR Compliance
Section D.13 with Required
S Subsection
1. Goals Substantial
[SSSWDR D.13(i)] Compliance
2. Organization Partial
[SSSWDR D.13{ii}] Compliance

The District is effective in
demonstrating progress on the
goals stated in its SSMP.

Review/revise
District SOP's by
June 2018; update
Goals 3-5 by the
end of 2017.

The District contact and
organization information is
significantly outdated.

3. Legal Authority

In Compliance

The District possesses the legal
authority to implement the SSMP

of September 2017.

Update the
Organization
section by the end

Update the Legal
Authority section as
appropriate when

4, Operations and

[SSSWDR D.13(iii)] through the sewer ordinances new sewer
outlined in the plan. ordinances are
issued.
This section must be updated to Update the

remove references to GIS use

Operation and

[SSSWDR D.13(v)]

Maintenance Partial for maintaining update maps and Maintenance
[SSSWDR Compliance ung up e ;
h tracking preventative Section by June
D.13(iv]] .
maintenance. 2018.
This section reflects that the
. District uses the most current
5 E’ziflg?ma::ce San Luis Obispo County Public
Standards In Compliance Works Standards for design, N/A

installation, repair, and
inspection of all sewer system
compeonents.




SSMP

District Effectiveness in

7. Fats, Qils, and
Grease (FOG)
Control Program

In Compliance

Sesciii?gﬁa wcit?szIﬂ:]atPi‘;: d Implementatiop of SSMP Recommendations
Subssetion Subsections
. Update the District
Emergency
The SSO response procedure Operating
6. Overflow outlined in the SSMP is too Procedures by the
Emergency Substantial specific and does not apply to all | end of 2017; update
Response Plan Compliance spills; training records for EOPs the Overflow
[SSSWDR D.13(vi)] were not complete for 2015- Emergency

2016.

Response Plan
Section by the end
of June 2018.

The District was effective in the
implementation of this
requirement, although some

Included updated
summary of FOG
inspections and
violations; provide
. FOG billing inserts
to consumers by
the end of June
2018.

The District should
complete the I/l
analysis after the
wet rain year of
2016-2017 to
determine if a
system-wide wet
weather capacity
analysis is
necessary.

Modifications
[SSSWDR D.13(ix)]

[SSSWDR portions of the SSMP FOG
D.13{vii)] section are outdated.
The 2006 Avila Beach CSD
Wastewater Master Plan and
8. System 2010 Avila Beach CSD
Evaluation and .
c : Substantial Wastewater Master Plan update
apacity ; g ;
Compliance are included in the SSMP as
Asstranice Plan evidence of the SECAP. No
[S3BWUR D.Tatvimn] formal I/l study has been
conducted since 2008,
The District has only had one
SS0 since 2014 and informally
monitors elements of the SSMP
9. Monitoring, through monthly coordination
Measurement ; meetings. However
4 Substantial A !
and Program Compliance performance indicators have not

been fermally or regularly
reviewed to assess SSO trends
or the success of the
preventative maintenance
program.

The District should
conduct an annual |
review of specific
sections of the
SSMP and
reevaluate the
performance
indicators in Table
9-1 by June 2018.
Table 9-1 should be
updated with data
from mid-2014
forward by the end
of January 2018.




SSSWDR
Section D.13

SSMP
Compliance
with Required
Subsection

District Effectiveness in
Implementation of SSMP
Subsections

| Recommendations

10. SSMP Audits
[SSSWDR D.13(x)]

Partial
Compliance

The biannual audit was due in
2016 but was net conducted until
March 2017.

Conduct the next
Audit by the end of
March 2019. SSMP
sections subject to
frequent outdating
should be reviewed

and updated
annually.

12. Communications
[SSSWDR D.13(xi)]

Substantial
Compliance

The District was effective in
implementing the majority of the
items in this section. The current

SSMP was not posted on the
District website and there was no
evidence of promoting SSO
awareness at community events
since 2014.

Review/update the
Communications
section of the
SSMP, distribute
educational
SSO/FOG billing
inserts to residenis,
update the District
website, and
update the Board
by the end of June
2018.

The following sections of this report describe these deficiencies in detail and address future additions
and updates the District is required to make to its SSMP. The above list of updates is a summary and
is not intended to replace the detailed Deficiencies identified in the SSMP Audit Report. The entire

SSMP Audit Report recommendations are required to be implemented in a reasonable time frame to
ensure compliance with the SSSWDR Orders.







AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager ﬁ(;{);
DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2017-02 Recognizing Ken San Filippo’s Service to the Avila
Beach Community Services District

Recommendation:

Adopt Resolution No. 2017-02 Recognizing Ken San Filippo’s service to the Avila Beach
Community and the Community Services District.

Discussion:

The Board and the Community wish to express their gratitude and recognition of a person
making substantial and outstanding contributions to the community of Avila Beach.
Resolution No. 2017-02 is presented for the Board’s consideration in recognition of the
dedicated service provided to the Community of Avila Beach by Ken San Filippo.



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION No. 2017-02
RESOLUTION COMMENDING DIRECTOR KEN SAN FILIPPO
FOR SERVICE TO THE AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

WHEREAS, KEN SAN FILIPPO has served the Avila Beach Community Services District
since 2015 as a Director of the Board and;

WHEREAS, KEN SAN FILIPPO was effective in providing consistent vision to the District,
as the community has developed and changed; and

WHEREAS, KEN SAN FILIPPO served the District on the Finance Committee, and provided
his expertise in upgrading to the District’s fund management; and

WHEREAS, KEN SAN FILIPPO served the District on the Drought Committee, leading the
Avila community in water conservation awareness water; and

WHEREAS, KEN SAN FILIPPO has earned the respect and admiration of his colleagues and
the community for his continuing dedication and service to the community of Avila Beach; and

WHEREAS, KEN SAN FILIPPO has represented the interests of the District during his service
on the Avila Valley Advisory Committee;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community
Services District, San Luis Obispo County, California, as follows:

That the Avila Beach Community Services District does hereby recognize and commend,

KEN SAN FILIPPO for his years of dedicated leadership and commitment as a Director for the Avila
Beach Community Services District and adopts this Resolution as a public statement of their
recognition.

UPON MOTION of Director seconded by Director
and on the following roll call vote to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

The foregoing Resolution is hereby adopted this 13" day of June 2017.

Peter Kelley, President Brad Hagemann, Secretary



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Managc@ i
DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBIJECT:  Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG) Program Services, Consider Awarding a Contract to
Wallace Group Consulting Engineers

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Board authorize staff to enter in to an agreement with Wallace Group to

provide FOG Program Services for FY 2017-18.

Funding:
The FY 2017-18 proposed Budget includes a $6,000 line item to fund the District’s on-going

Fats, Oils and Grease Program Services.

Discussion:

The District’s wastewater collection system Sanitary Sewer Management Plan requires the
District to implement an active FOG program to minimize sanitary sewer overflows caused by or
exacerbated by accumulated FOG in the collection system. The scope of services for the

program generally includes:

- Routine inspection of restaurant’s grease control devices
Issuance of Permits to the restaurants

Assistance with public outreach and enforcement (if needed)
Preparation of monthly status reports

Wallace Group has historically provided FOG program services for the District and they provide
FOG services to several local municipalities including City of Arroyo Grande, City of Grover
Beach and the City of Buellton. Wallace Group has done a commendable job on the program to
date and staff recommends retaining Wallace Group to provide FOG program services for FY

2017-18.



March 23, 2017

Brad Hagemann

Avila Beach Community Services District
191 San Miguel Street

Avila Beach, California 93424

Subject: FOG Control Program Services FY 2017-2018

Dear Mr. Hagemann:

Wallace Group appreciates the opportunity to provide you with our proposal for Public
Works Administration services for the above referenced project. Based on our
discussion, the following Scope of Services has been prepared for your consideration:

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The Avila Beach CSD (District) requires regulatory compliance services for
administration and inspection for their existing FOG Program. The District’s FOG
Program consists of permitting, semi-annual inspections, and follow-up on non-
compliance with approximately 12 food service establishments (FSEs). The District
requested Wallace Group to prepare a proposal for a SSMP Audit and management of
the FOG Control program for the 2017/2018 Fiscal year.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

FOG Program Management

Wallace Group will perform FOG permitting, inspections, and re-inspections for the
District’s FSEs for the 2017/2018 fiscal year upon notification from the District to start
work and receipt of a signed notice-to-proceed.

The FOG Program is an element of the District’s Sewer System Management Plan
(SSMP) which is a requirement of the Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirement
2006-0003-DWQ enacted by the State Water Resources Control Board. The FOG
program will include:

Semi-annual inspection of approximately 12 FSEs.

Performance of re-inspections when needed to assist in FSE compliance.
Assistance with enforcements of significant violations.

Re-permitting of all FSEs enrolled in the FOG Program.

Permitting of new FSEs that opened for business in 2017/2018 fiscal year and
removal from the FOG Program of those FSEs that have closed.

6. Issuance of monthly FOG program status reports.

ViAW

Deliverables:

e Electronic copies of all inspection reports (PDF format)

» Electrenic copies of FOG inspection procedure updates as applicable

» Electronic copies of all permit applications and permits issued (PDF format)

_

WALLACE GROUP

CIVIL AND
TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERING

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

MECHANICAL
ENGINEERING

PLANNING

PUBLIC WORKS
ADMINISTRATION

SURVEYING /
GIS 5OLUTIONS

WATER RESCURCES

WALLACE GROUP

A California Corporation

612 CLARION CT
SAN LUIS OBISPO
CALIFORNIA 93401

T BOS 544-4011
F 805 544-4294

www.wallacegroup us



PP17-6037

ABCSD FOG Cantrol Services
March 23, 2017
Page 2 of 3
.- ]
e
= Monthly reporting of FOG Inspection program status (PDF format) -

« Electronic copies of updated outreach materials provided to FSEs as applicable WALLACE GROUPs
(PDF format)

« Electronic copies of updated outreach materials for residential FOG education
as applicable (Word format)

* Electronic copies of updated FOG Inspection Procedures (PDF format)

SCHEDULE

FOG Inspections will be conducted at 6 month intervals with re-inspections occurring
based on the status of each FSE’s compliance status. All FSE FOG Permits will be
issued for a 3 year period.

TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CLIENT
e Verification of current list of FSE’s.
PROJECT FEES

The project fees are shown allocated by task to indicate our expected distribution of
work. However, the task fee allocations are not individual contract limits.

FOG Program Management

Due to the variability of FSEs, and re-inspections during the year, Wallace Group will
perform the services denoted in the proposed Scope of Services on a time and
materials basis. For budgeting purposes, our preliminary estimate is that our fees will
be $5,300. These estimates reflect the cost for program administration and to have
one (1) inspector perform each inspection and re-inspection. These services will be
invoiced monthly on an accrued basis in accordance with the attached Schedule of
Fees (Exhibit A). Reimbursables are included in the time and materials estimated fee
amount stated above.

Cost Breakdown

[ Task Estimated Cost
Project Management $340 -
Bi-Annual Inspections $2,350
Re-inspections 51,050 -
Permitting S860
End of Month Reports $550 - o
Reimbursables $150 '
Total 55,300 B S

At your request, additional services to the Scope of Services will be performed by
Wallace Group following the signature of our Contract Amendment or the initiation of
a new contract.



PP17-6037

ABCSD FOG Control Services

March 23, 2017

Page 3 of 3

ﬁ.

WALLACE GROUPs

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

In order to convey a clear understanding of the matters related to our mutual
responsibilities regarding this proposal, the attached Standard Terms and Conditions
(Exhibit B) are considered a part of our proposal agreement. If this proposal meets
with your approval, please sign where indicated and return one original to our office,
which will serve as our notice-to-proceed.

We want to thank you for this opportunity to present our proposal for professional
services. If you would like to discuss this proposal in greater detail, please feel free to
contact me or Glenn Rider.

Sincerely,

WALLACE GROUP, a California Corporation =~ TERMS AND CONDITIONS ACCEPTED:

Bill Callahan
Director of Public Works Administration Signature

612 Clarion Court —
San Luis Obispo Printed Name

California 93401
T 805 544-4011 Title
F 805 544-4294
www.wallacegroup.us Date

Attachments

sr: PP17-6037; 2017, short
Exhibit A

Exhibit B

THIS PROPOSAL IS VALID FOR 60 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS DOCUMENT.



Exhibit A
Standard Billing Rates

Public Works Administration Services:

Project Analyst | = Vewsmmiaamans snevassisn o ssaiiaiiesa S 95- 5140
Senior Project ANalyst | = 111 ..oe s oreiiecieeieieneeeeineeanens $145 - §155
Senior Environmental Compliance Specialist | - Il .......ccovvenens $158 - $166
DB i s A W S S 0 O S S A R T $170

Support Services:
Office ASSISTANE ..ttt et e S 60
Project Assistant =1l saasamavinvnmniaesaininieim S 75-5 85

Additional Professional Services:
Fees for expert witness preparation, testimony, court appearances, or depositions will be billed at
the rate of $300 an hour. As authorized in advance by the Client, overtime on a project will be billed
at 1.5 times the employee’s typical hourly rate.

Direct Expenses:
Direct expenses will be invoiced to the client and a handling charge of 15% may be added. Sample
direct expenses include, but are not limited to the following:

» travel expenses » sub-consultant services e agency fees
e delivery/copy services + mileage (per IRS rates) e other direct expenses

Invoicing and Interest Charges:
Invoices are submitted monthly on an accrued cost basis in accordance with this Fee Schedule. A
finance charge of 1.5% per month may be assessed on all balances that are thirty days past due.

Right to Revisions:
Wallace Group reserves the right to revise this Schedule of Fees on an annual basis, personnel
classifications may be added as necessary.



Exhibit B
Terms and Conditions
Client and Consultant agree that the following provisions shall be part of their agreement:

Billings/Payments: Accrued fees and direct charges will be billed monthly by the Consultant and shall be due at the time
of billing unless otherwise specified in this agreement. Failure of Client to make full payment within 30 days of the date

of invoice, the Consultant may, without waiving any claim or right against the Client, and without liability whatsoever to
the Client, terminate the performance of the service. Retainers shall be credited on the final invoice.

Ownership of Documents: All documents produced by the Consultant under this agreement shall remain the property of
the Consultant and may not be used by the Client for any other endeavor without the written consent of the Consultant.

Electronic Media: Because CADD information stored in electronic form can be modified by other parties, intentionally or
otherwise, Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless and indemnify Consultant from all claims and expenses arising
out of the modification or use of these materials.

Document Reuse: Client agrees not to reuse Consultant’s drawings, specifications, or other related documents without
Consultant’s written consent. In the event that changes are made to the plans and specifications by the Client, his
agents, or employees, the Client agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Consultant for any and all liability arising out of
or resulting from such changes.

Indemnification: The Consultant shall indemnify and save harmless Client, including their officers, employees, affiliates,
parent and subsidiaries, from and against any and all liability, claims, suits, losses, damages, costs, expenses, reasonable
attorney’s fees, or liability to the extent arising out of or resulting from any negligent acts, errors or omissions of
Consultant, and its officers, employees, agents or sub consultants arising out of or in connection with Consultant services
to be performed under this agreement.

The Client shall indemnify and save harmless Consultant, including their officers, employees, affiliates, parent and
subsidiaries, from and against any and all liability, claims, suits, losses, damages, costs, expenses, reasonable attorney’s
fees, or liability to the extent arising out of or resulting from any negligent acts, errors or omissions of Client, and its
officers, employees, agents or sub consultants arising out of or in connection with services to be performed under this

agreement.

Certifications: Consultant shall not be required to execute any document that would result in its certifying, guaranteeing
or warranting the existence of conditions whase existence the Consultant cannot ascertain.

Dispute Resolution: Any claims or disputes made during design, construction or post-construction between the Client and
Consultant shall be submitted to non-binding mediation. Client and Consultant agree to include a similar mediation
agreement with all contractors, subcontractors, subconsultants, suppliers and fabricators, thereby providing for
mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between all parties.

Retention: If any portion of CONSULTANT’S fee is held in retention, such amount shall be released within thirty days
after invoicing for completion of corresponding services. Interest shall be paid at the rate of 1.5% per month on any
retention amounts not paid within this thirty-day period.

Attorneys' Fees: In the event any litigation arising from or related to this Agreement or the services provided under this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recaover from the non-prevailing party all reasonable costs incurred
including staff time, court costs, attorneys’ fees and all other related expenses in such litigation.

Limitation of Liability: In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the Client and
Consultant, the risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extend permitted by law, the
Consultant’s total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages or claim expenses
arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed the sum of the Consultant’s fees or $50,000,
whichever is greater. Such causes include, but are not limited to, the Consultant's negligence, errors, omissions, strict
liability, or breach of contract.

Termination of Services: The agreement may be terminated by the Client or the Consultant should the other fail to
perform its obligations hereunder. In the event of termination, the Client shall pay the Consultant for all services
rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and reimbursable termination expenses.

This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

WALLACE GROUP



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO; Board of Directors e
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag@"’
DATE: June 13", 2017

SUBJECT: 2017 Annual Weed Abatement Program.

Recommendation:

Review the attached procedures and consider Adopting Resolution No. 2017-03
Declaring Weeds, Dry Grass and Trash to be a Nuisance and provide for Abatement. Set
July 11", 2017, as the Public Hearing to hear any objections to the required clearance and
to coordinate with CAL Fire for their participation.

Discussion:

Each year the District coordinates an Annual Weed Abatement Program in the
community to ensure that weeds, dry grass and trash are cleaned up and do not pose a fire
hazard. Due to the amount of rain this season, it is anticipated that a significant number of
parcels in town may require posting and cleanup. Most property owners have complied
with the posting and have cleaned the posted lots in a timely manner. Attached to this
staff report are the Weed Abatement procedures sent out with the May 1, Water and
Sewer bill; and Resolution No. 2017-03.



2017 WEED ABATEMENT PROCEDURE

REVISED 5/17

Reminder notices were sent out with water bills reminding residents of the need for weed
abatement. May 1%, 2017. See notice immediately below:

WEED ABATEMENT TIME
It is once again time for the Fire Department to inspect
for fire dangers that may exist in our community.

Please take a moment of your time to be certain that your
property is safe from fire hazards.

Adopt Resolution (June 13", 2017) declaring weeds to be a nuisance and setting the

hearing date for July 11, 2017.

Fire Department posts notices to DESTROY WEEDS AND TRASH. Owners are given
15 days, or until the hearing date (July 11, 2017) to comply. (Property is posted following
June meeting by CalFire team)

Letters sent to all posted properties, notice published in newspaper. (Immediately after
posting of lots. Letters to be sent by June 25, 2017).

At the Regular Board Meeting on July 11, 2017 a public hearing is held, and, barring any
objections, a second resolution is passed ordering abatement of those lots not cleared.
Fire Chief signs certificate of posting. (July 25, 2017).

After hearing and second resolution on August 8th, 2017, lots that have not been cleared
by owners are cleared by the District, or its contractor. Private contractors bid on the lots
to be cleared. The owner is billed actual costs plus administration fee to be set by
Directors. (Previously $35.00 or 25% of fee whichever is greater.) Lots to be cleaned
before July 20, 2017.

Bills sent to owners. No later than July 30, 2017.

If necessary, a third resolution is passed on August 14, 2017 to have unpaid costs placed
on owners’ property tax bills and for the County to include our costs on those bills.

Zpdmin:weedabatementprocedures



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-03

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT DECLARING WEEDS, DRY GRASS, AND TRASH TO BE A NUISANCE
AND THREAT TO PUBLIC SAFETY, AND PROVIDING FOR ABATEMENT

WHEREAS, there exists on certain lots and parcels of real property within the District, weeds, dry
grass, brush, litter and other flammable material which endanger the public safety;

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors finds these conditions constitute a public nuisance and safety
hazard and deem that these conditions should be abated;

WHEREAS, pursuant to law, notice shall be given to destroy and remove, and clear, dry weeds, grass
brush, litter, trash and other flammable materials on certain lots and parcels of land within the District, and a
hearing where concerns about such matters will be heard is hereby set for the 11th day of July at 7:00 p.m. at
the Avila Beach Community Services District meeting place at 191 San Miguel Street, Avila Beach CA 93424,

WHEREAS, the fire chief of CAL FIRE is hereby designated as the person referred to in the Health and
Safety code 14890, to abate these conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Fire Chief is hereby directed to post notice and send written
notice to property owners where the conditions described above exists.

ON MOTION of Director , seconded by Director , and the
tollowing roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

The foregoing Resolution is hereby adopted this 13" day of June 2017.

Peter Kelley, President

Attest: Brad Hagemann

General Manager, Board Secretary



I.I:-: . .'. - .. II. I .. ... ..:- l.l .l.l '. .:. s *
e g = PR L N . . i _.":_ S =L . e K
u :.-.. ....l- .. : .... .. u u . o ... -. .
- . an s, . = !..b:.- o ..I -..1 ..-.. l.--' .l:|1.. -Li:‘
N l. n II III. == n o




AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

/"'_“_“-‘\
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag@%@;)
DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT: Approve a Resolution Adopting the 2014 San Luis Obispo County Integrated
Regional Water Management Plan (Plan)

Recommendation:

Approve Resolution No. 2017-04 adopting the 2014 San Luis Obispo County Integrated
Regional Water Management Plan

Discussion:

Senate Bill 1672 established the Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Act in
2002, intended to promote collaborative, integrated management of water resources.
California voters passed a series of propositions, thereby establishing and funding efforts
under the State’s IRWM Program. These propositions authorized the Legislature to
appropriate grant funds for IRWM plans and projects, and to establish eligibility
requirements. The IRWM Program is administered by the State’s Department of Water
Resources (DWR).

As a regional collaboration, local IRWM efforts are conducted under the auspices of a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 26 local agencies, including the Flood
Control District, San Luis Obispo County, incorporated cities, community services
districts, resource conservation districts, mutual water companies, and IRS 501(c) (3)
non-profit organizations, who support multiple water resource efforts.

The Flood Control District is the lead agency under the MOU, and collectively, the
agencies are referred to as the Regional Water Management Group (RWMG). The
District is also responsible for development and implementation of San Luis Obispo
County Region’s IRWM Plan (Plan). The Plan was initially developed and adopted by
multiple agencies in the county in 2005 and updated in 2007.



One of the drivers behind agency participation in Plan development is the opportunity for
grant funding. Agencies must participate in the IRWM program to be eligible for DWR
grants. Attached is a table of the grants that have been awarded to the San Luis Obispo
County Region since the adoption of the initial plan in 2005.

To comply with the Proposition 84 2011 Implementation and 2012 Planning Grant
Agreements and to meet DWR eligibility requirements, the 2007 IRWM Plan needed to be
updated to meet current State standards. GEI consultants, Inc., under contract to the
County, updated the Plan in 2012/13. For the Proposition 1 IRWM Grant Program, the
IRWM will need to be updated to meet DWR’s 2016 IRWM standards. Adoption of the
next IRWM Plan update is anticipated to be completed in early 2018.

Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution No. 2017-04 which formally adopts the
2014 IRWM Plan and direct the General Manager to sign the Memorandum of
Understanding on behalf of the Avila Beach Community Services District.



San Luis Obispo County IRWM Region Grant Funding Award Summary

September 2016

Grant Funding Source and Funded Projects Project Sponsor Grant Funding

Prop 50 Planning Grant (2008) $500,000
Data Enhancement Plan Flood Control District $72,500
Flood Management Plan Flood Controf District $55,000
Groundwater Banking Plan Flood Control District $185,000
Regional Permitting Plan County of San Luis Obispo $187,500
Prop 84 Planning Grant (2012) $1,000,000
Update Plan to Meet Standards Flood Controi District $185,000
Identification of Basins Requiring SNMPs Flood Control District $15,000
Santa Maria Groundwater Basin Study Flood Control District $200,000
Paso Robles Groundwater Basin SNMP City of Paso Robles $100,000
Paso Robles Groundwater Basin Model Flood Control District $50,000
Regional Recycled Water Planning Flood Control District $200,000

; Upper Salinas RCD $125,360

Watershed Management Planning Coastal San Luis RCD $124.640
Prop 84 implementation Grant (2011) $10,401,000
Los Osos Wastewater Project County of San Luis Obispo $5,945,444
Flood Control Zone 1/1A — Modified 3¢ Project Fiood Cantrol District $2,200,000
Nipemo Supplemental Water Project Nipomo CSD $2,200,000
Prop 1E Implementation Grant (2011) $2,797,000
Flood Control Zone 1/1A - Waterway Management Program Flood Control District $2,797,000
Prop 84 Expedited Drought Grant (2014) $6,323,610
CSA 23-AMWC-Garden Farms Emergency Intertie County of San Luis Obispo $1,542,870
Heritage Ranch CSD Emergency Turnout Heritage Ranch CSD $117,165
Cambria CSD Emergency Water Supply Cambria CSD $4,382,255
Grant Administration Flood Control District $281,220
Prop 84 Implementation Grant (2015) $3,702,762
Templeton CSD Upper Salinas River Basin Conjunctive Use Templeton C3D $2,956,796
San Simeon CSD Well Head Treatment Project San Simeon CSD $362,431
Ocean CSD Water Resources Reliability Program Oceano CSD $198,397
Grant Administration Filood Control District $185,138
Total Grant Funding Awarded for SLO County IRWM Region $24,724,372




RESOLUTION No. 2017-04

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2014 SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY
INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN AND
FINDING THAT THE PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM SECTION 2100 ET SEQ.
OF THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE (CEQA)

The following Resolution is hereby offered and read:

WHEREAS, the State of California has established an Integrated Regional Water
Management grant program pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply,
Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Public Resources Code Section
75001 et seq.) (also known as Proposition 84); and

WHEREAS, the Regional Water Management Group for the San Luis Obispo County
Region as of the date of this Resolution consists of agencies including the Avila Beach
Community Services District, that have signed a Memorandum of Understanding (Attachment
“1") and are listed in Attachment “2”; and

WHEREAS, the concepts, direction and approach to water resources management
embodied in the State’s Integrated Regional Water Management program guidelines closely
match those of the San Luis Obispo County Region; and

WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan
was initially developed and adopted by multiple agencies in the County in 2005 and updated in
2007; and

WHEREAS, an update to the 2007 San Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water
Management Plan is needed in order to effectively and efficiently integrate the region’s water
resources management planning objectives and implementation strategies in the following five
key areas: Water Supply, Groundwater Monitoring and Management, Flood Management,
Ecosystems and Watershed, and Water Resources Management and Communications; and

WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District
has coordinated with the Regional Water Management Group to produce the 2014 San Luis
Obispo County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan in accordance with 2012 State

standards; and

WHEREAS, the 2014 San Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water Management
Plan identifies goals, objectives, strategies and projects designed to improve regional water
supply reliability, water recycling, water conservation, water quality improvement, stormwater



capture and management, flood management, recreation and access, wetland enhancement
and creation, and environmental and habitat protection and improvement; and

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services District has reviewed the 2014 San
Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan and has determined that the
Plan is exempt from Section 21000 et seq. of the California Public Resources Code (California
Environmental Quality Act) pursuant to Section 21150 of the California Environmental Quality
Act, and Guidelines Section 15262 because the Plan is a planning study which identifies
potential projects, programs, and policies for possible future actions, and includes possible
actions, subject to future adoption and approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Avila Beach
Community Services District Board of Directors that:

1. The 2014 San Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan
for the San Luis Obispo County Region is hereby adopted, and Staff of the Avila
Beach Community Services District is hereby authorized and directed to
implement actions consistent with participating in updates to the plan on a five-
year cycle as a Regional Water Management Group Member as described within
the plan.

2. The adoption of the 2014 San Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water
Management Plan for the San Luis Obispo County Region is hereby determined
to be exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
pursuant to Section 21150 of Section 21150 of the California Public Resources
Code and Section 15262 of the State California Environmental Quality Act
Guidelines.

3. The Staff of the Avila Beach Community Services District is hereby directed to
file a Notice of Exemption in accordance with provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act.

Signature:

Printed Name Pete Kelley, President
Agency: Avila Beach Community Services District

Date: June 13, 2017



ATTACHMENT 1

San Luis Obispo County Region Integrated Regional Water Management Program Participants
Memorandum of Understanding



San Luis Obispo County Region
Integrated Regional Water Management Program Participants
Memorandum of Understanding

The undersigned agencies and organizations hereby agree as follows:

I. BACKGROUND

The State of California has established an Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) planning and
grant program pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and
Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Public Resource Code (PRC) Section 75001 et seq.. also known as
Proposition 84). This program is anticipated to be perpetuated and/or modified by future Bond acts. The
IRWM program provides guidance for collaborative efforts to manage all aspects of water resources in a
region by crossing jurisdictional, watershed, and political boundaries to involve multiple agencies,
stakeholders, individuals, and groups in order to address issues and differing perspectives of all entities
involved through mutually beneficial solutions. Regions that develop IRWM plans in accordance with
the guidelines are eligible for certain water resources grant funding opportunities.

[n accordance with PRC Section 75001 (et seq.) and State IRWM Program guidelines, a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) (dated 2009), signed by eleven agencies within San Luis Obispo County,
established a Regional Water Management Group (RWMG) for the San Luis Obispo County IRWM
Region, and the San Luis Obispo County IRWM Region was officially accepted by the State in May

2009,

The San Luis Obispo County IRWM Region water resources stakeholders have determined the need to
update the IRWM MOU in order to meet new State IRWM guidelines, to clarify the governance structure
for IRWM planning in the San Luis Obispo County IRWM Region, and encourage broader participation.
This MOU. in conjunction with the current IRWM Plan, sets forth the San Luis Obispo County IRWM
Region’s governance structure thereby allowing members and other stakeholders to understand how to

participate in the IRWM Plan development and implementation.

2. PURPOSE, GOALS, AND APPROACH

2.1 Purpese. The purpose of this MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) is to
establish the mutual understandings among the San Luis Obispo County Region participants with
respect to their joint efforts to develop and implement an Integrated Regional Water Management
(IRWM) Plan for the San Luis Obispo County Region, including the definition of common
IRWM terms, roles and responsibilities of IRWM Program Participants, and decision-making
processes.

22 Goals. The goal of the IRWM program is to pravide a reliable, long-term, and high-
quality water supply, and to establish a unified vision among the participants’ goals for water
quality improvement, ecosystem preservation. water supply protection and enhancement, ground
water management and flood management, in the context of social justice and climate change
adaptation, while protecting the environment. The adopted TRWM plan will identify major
water-related goals, objectives and conflicts within the region, consider a broad variety of water
management strategies, identify the appropriate mix of water demand and supply management
alternatives, water quality protections, flood management strategies, and environmental
stewardship actions.

2.3 Approach. The San Luis Obispo County Region participants are specifying their shared
intent to coordinate and collaborate on water management issues, givin g consideration to
disadvantaged communities and Native American tribes and their water related needs. In order to

IRWM Memorandum of Understanding Page 1 of 8



enhance participation of stakeholders, it will be necessary to work at a sub-regional level to better
understand the water resources needs and priorities throughout the region. When applying for
grants, the San [ uis Obispo County Region will strive to distribute the grant funding request
fairly across the geographic region. The goal is to distribute awarded funding from each grant
cycle equally across the sub-regions (i.e. one quarter of the overall funding to benefit each of the
three sub-regions” projects/programs and one quarter of the overall funding to benefit regional

projects/programs), to the extent feasible.

3. DEFINITIONS

i1 Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (Plan). A comprehensive plan for a
defined geographic area which shall satisfy the requirements of California’s IRWM Program.

3.2 San Luis Obispo County Region (Region). The geographic area of San Luis Obispo
County, which is coterminous with the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water
Conservation District (District) boundary.

3.3 Local Agency. Any city, county, city and county. special district, joint powers authority,
or other political subdivision of the state, a public utility as defined in Section 216 of the Public
Utilities Code, or a mutual water company as defined in Section 2725 of the Public Utilities

Code.

34 Program Participants. Development and implementation of the Region’s Plan is a
collaborative effort undertaken by the Region’s participants, as further discussed in Section 4.
The effort is being led by the District, in partnership with the Regional Water Management
Group, Water Resources Advisory Committee, Implementation Affiliates, and Interested
Stakeholders. Only regional projects and programs to be implemented by those agencies which
have adopted the Plan will be eligible for grant applications. The Region categorizes [RWM
Program Participants into the following:

34,1 Regional Water Management Group (RWMG). A group in which three or more
local agencies, at least two of which have statutory authority over water supply or water
management, as well as those other persons who may be necessary for the development and
implementation of the Plan, participate by means of this memorandum of understanding, in
accordance with requirements of the California Water Code (CWC § 10539). The Region’s
RWMG members are signatories to this MOU, have adopted the current Plan, and may designate
a representative to participate in RWMG activities and its Working Group. The entities must be
either a Lacal Agency or an IRS 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization. The RWMG has the capacity
to carry out projects (i.e. financial resources, management structure, adequate staffing). The
agencies/organizations that form the RWMG may have planning or implementation projects
eligible for State IRWM grants,

342  Water Resources Advisory Committee (WRAC). This is the committee
comprised of water purveyor, resource conservation district, environmental and agricultural, and
other water resources representatives that was originally established in the 1940s to advise the
District Board of Supervisors on water resource issues. The WRAC is a Brown Act commitiee
that meets monthly, with the exception of July and August. Many participants are actively
engaged in issues relevant to Plan development and implementation, and will represent important
stakeholder groups throughout the program.

343 RWMG Working Group (Working Group). The Working Group will involve
representatives from the RWMG who have technical expertise and are able to work on the details
associated with IRWM efforts. The Working Group will engage stakeholders at a sub-regional
level in order to better understand the specific water resources needs and priorities of that sub-

region.

[RWM Memorandum of Understanding Page 2 of 8



3.44  Implementation Affiliates. These entities will adopt the Plan by resolution, but
would not be signatories of the MOU. The entities must be either a Local Agency or an IRS
501(c)(3) nonprofit organization. The Implementation Affiliates have the capacity to carry out
projects (i.e. financial resources, management structure, adequate staffing). In order to have a
planning or implementation project eligible for State IRWM grants, agencies must be an
Implementation Affiliate if they are not a part of the RWMG.

345 Interested Stakcholders. These individuals, organizations, and nonprofits
(including those that are not IRS 501(c)(3) nonprofit organizations) who are interested in the
IRWM program. The Interested Stakeholders may sign a letter of support for the Plan, or
otherwise provide input to the RWMG, but would not be eligible for directly receiving State

IRWM grant funds.

3.5 Sub-regions. The Region’s IRWM program seeks to engage stakeholders and
understand the water resources needs of the Region. To adequately ensure this balanced access
and opportunity for participation in the IRWM program, the RWMG will utilize a sub-regional
geographic structure, allowing more focused planning and local outreach efforts that are later
brought into the context of the overall IRWM Region. These sub-regions have been deliberately
defined in terms of logical planning and watershed/ hydrogeologic unit boundaries. These “sub-
regions” include the North Coast, North County, and South County (see Attachment 1).

3.6 Regional Projects or Programs. Projects or programs to be implemented by the
RWMG and/or Implementation Affiliates are identified in the Plan and are based upon the State’s
IRWM Guidelines under which the current Plan was adopted, which includes but is not limited
to: reducing water demand through agricultural and urban water use efficiency, increasing water
supplies for any beneficial use, improving operational efficiency and water supply reliability,
improving water quality, improving resource stewardship, and improving flood management.

3.7 Integration. Assembling into one document the water-related management strategies,
projects, programs, and plans of the Region. The development and implementation of the Plan
should demonstrate the RWMG is forming, coardinating and integrating separate efforts in order
to function as a unified effort in a collaborative manner that balances interests and engages a
varicty of stakeholders and seeks to efficiently integrate regional resources. The Plan
development will identify water management strategies for the Region and the priority projects
and programs that demonstrate how these strategies work together to meet goals identified in
Section 2. It will also identify regional benefits of linkages between projects and plans that
address different primary water-related objectives (for example, identifying regional benefits of
linkages between a water supply project and a flood management project in the same watershed).

4. IRWM PROGRAM PARTICIPANTS

4.1 Program Participant Structure. Elements of the Plan will be developed and
implemented by the Program Participants. The RWMG, including the District as the Lead
Agency, and the Implementation Affiliates are responsible for Plan development and

implementation.

4.2 Plan Development and Implementation. The Region’s Plan that was adopted by the
District, developed in coordination with and approved by stakeholders in 20035, and updated in
2007, will be the basis for subsequent adopted Plans for the Region. The Working Group will
propose changes to the previous versions of the Plan to comply with new State guidelines and
mcorporate new information and projects. Since a key element of the IRWM Program is
integration, the RWMG will work with Program Participants to identify water management
strategies for the Region and sub-regions and the priority projects that demonstrate how these
strategies work together to meet the purpose and goals in Section 2. How each Program

IRWM Memorandum of Understanding Page 3 of 8



Participant contributes and participates in Plan development and implementation is described
below:
42.1 Lead Agency. The District will act as the lead agency for Plan development. will
execute this MOU, and will adopt the Plan in accordance with 4.3 and 4.4 below. The District
will ultimately be responsible for the final production of the Region’s Plan, hiring consultant(s) to
develop the Plan, and presentations to stakeholders, submittal of IRWM grant applications, and
execution and administration of grant agreements with the State. As the Lead Agency, the
District will execute and administer agreements with RWMG members and Implementation
Affiliates responsible for the implementation of projects that are awarded grants, including data
collection relevant to grant agreements, project reporting, etc. Efforts described in Section 4.2.1
are subject to the availability of funding.

42.2 RWMG. Members will execute this MOU and adopt the Plan in accordance with
4.3 and 4.4 below. RWMG members will designate a representative with clear authority to
represent the agency or organization, provide expertise, provide information in a imely manner,
participate in meetings, review and approve technical documents as needed, and will provide the
District with their designated representative’s contact information. This representative will be
eligible to participate on the Working Group. All RWMG members. whether or not their
representative is participating in the Working Group, hereby agree to provide information
sufficient to meet State guidelines for their regional projects and programs to be included in the
Plan and participate in the review of the Plan. RWMG members will consider integrating
projects and programs with other agencies when possible, especially with disadvantaged
communities and Native American tribes, in accordance with State IRWM Guidelines. RWMG
members responsible for the implementation of regional projects and programs awarded grant
funding will be responsible, through contract with the District, for complying with the provisions
of the District’s grant agreement with the State. The RWMG will provide updates to the WRAC
and seek WRAC support of recommendations at key decision points,

423 WRAC. The WRAC will provide a forum for public meetings/ workshops
related to Plan development and implementation at key decision points. The WRAC will review
and comment on the RWMG recommendations to the District's Board of Supervisors at key
decision points,

4.24  Working Group. Representatives of the Working Group will be designated by
the RWMG member and will have clear authority to represent the agency or organization,
provide expertise, provide information in a timely manner, participate in meetings, review and
approve technical documents as needed, and will provide the District with their designated
representative’s contact information. The District will provide materials with sufficient lead time
for RWMG member and Working Group engagement. The Working Group will develop
information, draft documents and recommendations pertaming to the Plan update consistent with
current State IRWM Guidelines during Plan development. Efforts are anticipated to include
stakeholder outreach, collection and incorporation of updated data, etc. The Working Group will
develop information and recommendations for [IRWM program planning and implementation,
stakeholder outreach, and pursuit of funding opportunities. All RWMG members will participate
in the process to select the Region’s [IRWM projects and programs for grant applications by way
of the Working Group, who will conduct project/program solicitations and evaluations, and will
make recommendations on grant funding allocations. The Working Group will need to conduct
sub-regional public meetings during Plan development and implementation to facilitate
stakeholder participation.

4.2.5 Implementation Affiliates. Implementation Atfiliates shall adopt the Plan in
accordance with Section 4.3. Implementation Affiliates will designate a representative with clear
authority to represent the agency or organization, provide expertise, provide information in a
timely manner, participate in meetings, review and approve technical documents as needed. and
will provide the District with their designated representative’s contact information. All

IRWM Memorandum of Understanding Page 4 of §



Implementation Affiliates will provide information sutficient to meet State guidelnes for their
regional projects and programs to be included in the Plan and participate in the review of the Plan
and for implementation activities, such as project status updates, project reporting, data
collection, etc. Implementation Affiliates will consider integrating projects and programs with
neighboring agencies when possible, especially with disadvantaged communities and Native
American tribes, in accordance with State IRWM Guidelines. Implementation Affiliates
responsible for the implementation of regional projects and programs awarded grant funding will
be responsible, through contract with the District, for complying with the provisions of the
District’s grant agreement with the State.

4.2.6  Interested Stakeholders. Interested Stakeholders may participate in the Plan
development and implementation process by way of participation at WRAC and/or RWMG
meetings. Interested Stakeholders that are not WRAC members will be notified when an IRWM
program item will be reviewed by the WRAC if they request inclusion on the TRWM contact list
{Section 5.6). Sub-regional meetings will be required to ensure Interested Stakeholders,
including disadvantaged communities, who may not necessarily be able to attend WRAC
meetings, can participate in Plan development and implementation.

4.3 TRWM Plan Adoption. Plan approval and adoption will be required of the governing
bodies of RWMG members and Implementation Affiliates. Plan updates to meet new State
guidelines, add new RWMG Members, add or remove and evaluate regional projects and
programs, or other updates to information do not require Plan re-adoption. Significant changes to
the Plan, including revised goals and objectives, revised methodologies (such as methodology for
evaluating, ranking, and prioritizing projects and programs), revised regional boundaries, or other
changes deemed significant by the RWMG and the Lead Agency, will require Plan re-adoption
via the decision-making process described in Section 4.3.

4.4 Personnel and Financial Resources. It is expected that Program Participants will
contribute the resources necessary to fulfill the responsibilities listed within Section 4 of this
MOU. Program Participants that receive implementation grant funding, shall contribute a
proportionate share of non-project costs associated with the grant agreement, based on awarded
implementation funding (for example, contributing toward the cost of updating the Plan, should
that be a condition of grant award)..

4.5 Decision Making. The RWMG shall develop IRWM program materials and will make
recommendations to the Lead Agency at key decision points of the IRWM program. Written
input will be sought between the representatives of RWMG members in the event the need for a
decision arises that cannot be brought forth to the RWMG before a decision needs to be made.
The District, by way of its Public Works Department, shall notify the RWMG agencies of
recommendations being taken to the District's Board of Supervisors for action. The District's
Board of Supervisors may approve, alter, or return any said recommendation of the RWMG.
Furthermore, if the District’s Board of Supervisors intends to alter an item or proposition
approved by the RWMG, the District’s Board of Supervisors shall set forth in writing its findings,
after which the Board will hold a public hearing. The RWMG agencies shall have the right to

appear and address the District's Board of Supervisors,

5. MUTUAL UNDERSTANDINGS
5:1 Need for the Region’s [IRWM Plan
5.1.1  To improve communication and cooperation between public and private agencies

and minimize conflict-generated solutions.
5.1.2  To enhance our existing water management efforts by increasing stakeholder
awareness of important issues, providing more opportunities for collaborative efforts and

improving efficiencies in government and water management.

IRWM Mcmorandum of Understanding Page 5 of 8



5.1.3  To qualify for state grants and other tunding opportunities only available to those
regions which have developed IRWM plans.

5.2 Subject matter scope of the IRWM Plan. The Plan focuses on water supply, waler
quality protection and improvement, ecosystem preservation and restoration, groundwater
monitoring and management, and flood management as these are the most prevalent water
resource issues facing the Region.

53 Geographical scope of the IRWM Program. The Region for this memorandum is
cotermincus with the boundary of San Luis Obispo County. This is an appropriate geographic
region for integrated regional water management planning because it encompasses all aspects of
water management generally within the same physical, political, environmental, social, and
economic boundaries, The Region may engage stakeholders within the three sub-regions in order
to better understand the specific water resources needs and priorities of that sub-region, which
would then be incorporated into the context of the greater IRWM Region planning and

implementation.
The Region is bordered by the Greater Monterey County IRWM region to the north. the

Santa Barbara County and Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County IRWM regions to the south,
and the Kern County IRWM region to the east.

Water resources issues that overlap neighboring regional boundaries are either covered
by existing cooperative water management plans (i.e. Nacitone Watershed Management Plan),
adjudication (i.e. Santa Maria Groundwater Basin), and operational agreements (i.e. Nacimiento
Reservoir), or have no defining water resource management issue. All of these items are to be
included in the Region’s Plan consistent with the plans of neighboring regions. The RWMG will
continue to coordinate with neighboring regions to address additional water resources issues and
possible integrated water management strategies in our respective IRWM plans.

54 Non-binding nature. This document and participation in the IRWM program efforts are
nonbinding, and in no way suggest that a RWMG member or Implementation Affiliate may not
continue its own planning and undertake efforts to secure project funding from any source. An
agency/ organization may withdraw from participation in accordance with Section 5.7.

5.5 Other on-going regional efforts. Development of the Plan is separate from efforts of

other organizations to develop water-related plans on a regional basis. As the Plan is developed,
work products can be shared with these separate efforts to provide them with current information.

5.6 Reports and communications. The WRAC, an IRWM contact list, and the District’s
website will serve as the forum for updates and correspondence relating to the IRWM program
and Plan development,

5.7 Termination. Because the Plan will require periodic review and updating for use into
the future, it is envisioned that the joint efforts of those involved will be ongoing in maintaining a
living document. Thus this MOU will remain as a reflection of the understandings of the RWMG
Members. As indicated, parties to this MOU may terminate their involvement at any time, but
must provide all RWMG agencies with 30 days' advance notice of intent to terminate.

58 Superseded Prior MOU. This MOU supersedes the MOU dated April 21. 2009 (2009
MOU).

59 Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in counterparts and has the same force and
effect as if all the signatures were obtained in one document.

IRWM Memorandum of Understanding Page 6 of 8



6. SIGNATORIES TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
We, the undersigned representatives of our respective agencies or organizations, acknowledge the
above as our understanding of how the San Luis Integrated Regional Water Management Plan

will be developed.

signature

printed name

agency

date

IRWM Memorandum of Understanding Page 7 of 8



g Jo g a8eyg

3WpURISIapUN JO WmMpuEIOWa NN

L1002 (100004 DAY BT 1 ot en
Wil TEAEEATLG WAy g L9 pag

uodiog Aunos; odseg sin) une

jeuoifiay pajeifay

UBlcl luawabeueyy seen

O —

ey B

Wled FEERN

tothias-qng

HLHLIBS A

L nuign oz,

L]
LS B

1k

S D

L AL B, Shanibiey
o pualiay
[
it [ i
N
\
Adpjop BUTRAT ™ .ff
EVd ’ v
I ¥ - R N S wnsng
i - .
\
i Ralien wuswenp
/ 1 Vel
U ORAEe ! :n...m.ut.ﬂ._____.um. A:SOUL::OW -
00 VA ‘s ‘ e’ %
‘ 5 !H ey Biggpenepe .\IJJ ' ST
i 100 !
L il VM
- -
~ h - o
Ten ' ¢
- ]
L '
N7 AL
e ,.\ - rjiaelivw viues
\ < 1 v
a . gmoama
d ) " =oEN
.,.__.muau,,...wm.n__ ne
’
’ h.,:_:c“u Yisopn i
a e
Ny '
Panugmnnjes \ Efﬂhﬂﬁﬁﬁxlﬁmz
'y ‘ 's2on Yo
b5 Wit a A Agut? Wlion
' | f AT )
e 'f &  wdm
. " 3 \u L ;
ne | e~ o
d £ a SRy ’ -
. ' DRI R
’
e »:.m:_: )4 X . 1 WAL weding kg
@ SUvam s &) : - ey
! . e -3
r._ Yaa flf
. . \{
de SuoISoy-qng puv uoiiay W a1 K1uno’ odsiqe Sin = =%

O SIN ueg — [ Juawyae)yy




Attachment 2

Memorandum of Understanding Signatories for
San Luis Obispo County Region IRWM Participants

Agency or Organization

San Luis Obispo County

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

California Men's Colony

Cambria Community Services District
Cayucos Sanitary District

Central Coast Salmon Enhancement

City of Arroyo Grande

City of Grover Beach

City of Morro Bay

City of Paso Robles

City of Pismo Beach

City of San Luis Obispo

Coastal San Luis Resource Conservation District

Heritage Ranch Community Services District

The Land Conservancy of San Luis Obispo County

Los Osos Community Services District

Morro Bay National Estuary Program

Nipomo Community Services District

Oceano Community Services District

Templeton Community Services District

San Miguel Community Services District

San Miguelito Mutual Water Company

San Simeon Community Services District

South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District

S&T Mutual Water Company

Upper Salinas - Las Tablas Resource Conservation District







AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

T Board of Directors i
oard ¢ ‘ /,{(p:.

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Mzinagcé__%;//

DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT:  Water Resources Analysis

Recommendation:

Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff

Discussion:
In late 2016, the District retained Water Systems Consulting, Inc., to prepare a Water Resources

Analysis Technical Memorandum which evaluated historic and projected water supply and
demand based on the most recent data and conditions. Those data included;

Revised Lopez water allocations pursuant to the Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP)
District purchase of a 100 acre-feet per year State Water Project Drought Buffer
Changing water demand patterns and future demand pattern assumptions

Updated population, land use and development plans

Revised Lopez and State Water Project reliability projections

Staff anticipates that the information in the Tech Memo will provide a basis for the District to
update/modify the Water Shortage Response and Management Plan and evaluate the findings and
recommendations of the District’s 2010 Water Master Plan. Water Systems Consulting Draft
Technical Memorandum is provided as an attachment to this staff report.

The TM provides a graphical summary of the District’s historical water demand from 1986 to
2016. The report notes the District’s highest annual water demand was 87.69 acre-feet in 2014.
The recent (2007 — 2016) annual average has hovered right around 80 acre-feet per year (AFY).
Figure 3-2 illustrates the waler usage percentage by customer category with residential accounting
for nearly half of the water usage and restaurants and hotels (commercial) accounting for a large
part of the other half.

WSC used two methods for projecting future water demands. One method used population and
per capita water use to project future water demands. The other method used parcel zoning and
maximum potential development (or re-development) to project water demand (Water Use Type).
This method was possible because the area within the District is relatively small and we could take
a parcel by parcel approach to estimate the development or re-development capacity of the parcel.



Table 3-3 provides Historical and Projected water demand using the Population & Per Capita
approach. The projected demand using this method ranges from 91 AFY in 2020 to 124 AFY at
Buildout. Table 3-7 provides projected water demand by Water Use Type and ranges from 82
AFY in 2020 to 108 AFY at Buildout. Not surprisingly the water use projections from the two
methods do not match exactly, but they are within about 10% of cach other. Staff would consider
the Water Use Type method more accurate since it is based on the actual lots available for
development and/or redevelopment.

Section 4 of the TM characterizes the District’s existing water supply portfolio, conveyance
systems and agencies that are sharing the water supply and conveyance systems. Figure 4-1
provides a graphical illustration of the District’s State Water Project “Table A™ allocation and
associated water deliveries to the District from 2009 to 2016. There is a lot of information in this
graphic and staff can go over the details and any questions at the Board meeting.

Section 5 of the TM provides a discussion and analysis of the District’s historical water supply
reliability. As you know, having a water supply entitlement does not necessarily guarantee that
quantity of water will be available each and every year. For this reason, most walter districts seek to
diversify their water supply portfolio to include surface water, ground water, recycled water and
desalination water, where feasible. The TM analyzes the District’s water supply reliability during
three climate related water scenarios: normal year; single dry year and multiple dry years.

As you might suspect, during normal years existing supply is sufficient to meet projected water
demand through Buildout (Table 5-6). For the projected single dry year (i.e., worst case scenario)
available supply is projected to be 71 AFY and demand ranges from 82 AFY in 2020 to 108 AFY
at buildout (Table 5-7). Projections for the multiple dry year scenarios are shown in Table 5-8
and conclude that in Year 2 and 3 projected water demands exceed water supply.

Staff concurs with WSC’s recommendation that the District should continue to assess
opportunities to increase existing water entitlements and diversify its water portfolio to ensure
adequate supply during dry years. Staff is optimistic that the pending Recycled Water Facilities
Planning Project report will identify recycled water supply that may be traded or exchanged for
potable water supplies. In addition, staff recommends the District continue to encourage the
County Public Works Department to negotiate with PG&E regarding Zone 3 use of the excess
capacity at the Diablo Canyon Power Plant desalination facility as part of the closure plan or as a
separate issue.



—WSC

Water Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum —Final Draft for Board Review and Public Comment
WaATER Systess CONSULTING, In¢

Date: 5/1/2017

To: Brad Hagemann
General Manager
Avila Beach Community Services District

Prepared by: Spencer Waterman

Reviewed by: Daniel Heimel, P.E.

SUBIJECT: WATER RESOURCES ANALYSIS TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM —-FINAL DRAFT FOR BOARD REVIEW AND
PUBLIC COMMENT

1 Purpose

This memo summarizes Water System Consulting, Inc.’s (WSC's) water resources analysis for the Avila Beach Community
Services District (District), which evaluates historic and projected supply and demand considering various hydrologic
conditions. The Water Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum (TM) water supply and demand projections are based

on new data including:

- Revised Lopez Reservoir (Lopez) allocations due to enactment of the Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP)

- Purchase of 100 acre feet (AF) of State Water Project (SWP) “drought buffer” from the San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District (SLOCFC&WCD)

- Changing demand patterns and future demand patterns assumptions

- Updated population, zoning and development plans

- Revised Lopez and SWP reliability projections

This TM presents the following components of the Water Resources Analysis:

1) Purpose

2) Background

3) Water Demand Characterization
4) Water Supply Characterization
5) Supply Reliability

6) References

2 Background

The District was established in 1997 to provide water and wastewater services to 150 acres in the Avila Beach region of
San Luis Obispo County. It is located along latitude 35°10°55.86"”N and longitude 120°43’'58.88"W, with a mean elevation
of 26 ft above sea level. The District provides water and sewer service to approximately 355 connections {see Section
3.2.1) in Avila Beach (see Figure 2-1).

Page 1 of 21




—=WSC

Water Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum —Final Draft for Board Review and Public Comment WATER SvsTEMS CONSULTING, INC.

! @
| san Luis San Luis
Obispo Obispo

(‘}_qunty

[

e

: :'-;:,_‘ ..

Legend

Neighboring Water Agencies

- Sycamore Mineral Springs Resort
Avila Valley Mutual Water Company

. Avila Beach CSD

[ Pismo Beach Water Department

SLO County Sevice Area No.12

- San Miguelito Mutual Water Company

2 N
0 0375 075 A
5 Avila Beach Community Services District | —r——— Miles

i Water Resources Analysis TM =

9 Neighboring Water Agency Boundaries -_‘,._...-’ WS C
; i WATER SysTEMs CONSUITING, INC.

Figure 2-1. Avila Region Water Agencies

Page 2 of 21




—WSC

Water Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum —Final Draft for Board Review and Public Comment Watkr Systems CONSULTING, INC.

3 Water Demand Characterization

3.1 Historic Demand

The District’s historic water demand, measured in acre-feet per year (AFY), is presented below in Table 3-1 for 2010-
2016 and in Figure 3-1 for 1986-2016. Water demand includes all water sold to customers and non-revenue water that
consists of water lost during production and distribution. Water demands have generally increased since 2005 with
significant increasing trends from 2005-2009 and from 2010-2014%, It is assumed that the significant drop in water
demand from 2015-2016 was due to the Governor’s Executive Orders requiring Emergency Water Conservation
Regulations including mandatory demand reduction targets, prohibitions and potential penalties for non-compliance
due to extended drought conditions. These factors and the District’s related implementation of its Water Shortage
Response and Management Plan may have significantly reduced water demand, but there may be a “bounce-back” to
higher demands once conservation efforts are eased when extended drought conditions are alleviated.

Table 3-1. District Water Demand 2010-2016

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Water Demand (AFY) 74.28 79.17 80.98 85.04 87.69 76.39 77.73
100
S0
80 —_— - =
70 k-., I
60 A
a: Sirmra, |
= 50 -
40
30
20
10
0
w ~ [+s] [=)] = - [ B ) =t L W = =] o O [ o N = [%p] [Xe ] =~ o o | o [22] = vy o
0 0 0 0 OOy O Oh OO OO O OO QO O O QO Q0 Q0 QOO Q@ d oA A A A A d
g o0 Oy o0 O Oy O O v o O OO O O O O O O O O O O o o O o C O O o
L | L | L | i L ] ~ — = i 7 — — — — o~ ~ (=) ~ ™~ ~ ~ ™~ ™~ ™~ ™~ ~ ™~ ~ ™~ ™~ ™~
mmmm Annual Demand (AFY) === Average (1986-2016) === Average (2007-2016) s Average (2014-2016)

smsen M OVing 3 yr Average e |\ioving 5 yr Average e Average (2012-2016)

Figure 3-1. Historical Water Demand 1986-2016

* The significant decrease in water demand from 2000-2002 was due to the Unocal oil cleanup project that temporarily displaced

customers located along Front Street. The subsequent increase in demand was due to customers coming back online.
Page 3 of 21




—WSC

Water Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum —Final Draft for Board Review and Public Comment WATER SYSTEMS CONSULTING, INC.

Water demand is broken down into seven customer billing categories within the District’s newly established billing
system. The average percentage of water demand by customer category from 2015-2016 is shown in Figure 3-2.

05 - Industrial 06 ‘Oi‘fl‘:;a”t 09 - Landscape
0.04% ; 9.65%

07 - Industrial- . -

WWP & Pier
0.25%

01 - Residential
48.70%

04 - Commercial

27 - /

03 - Restaurant
13.85%

Figure 3-2. Water Usage Percentage by Customer Category

3.2 Future Demand

Water demand within the District is expected to increase as buildout occurs within the service area. The increasing trend
in water demand from 2001 through 2014 is attributed to a combination of factors such as development and
redevelopment, economic conditions leading to more local and regional tourism, and correlated increased commercial
and hotel activity. As discussed in the previous section, the decrease in demand from 2015-2016 is assumed to be due to
prolonged drought conditions, and State mandated conservation regulations. It is assumed that these factors have
resulted in subsequent physical (e.g., turf replacement, water fixture replacement, etc.) and behavioral changes (e.g.,
irrigating less or quicker showers due to various media conservation campaigns and materials) in customer demand
patterns associated with effective conservation programs. While physical conservation related changes result in
essentially permanent demand reductions, behavioral changes may not yield permanent demand reductions. State
mandated emergency water conservation regulations may have a short-term impact on demand reductions during
drought conditions, but it is assumed that there will be a rebound to average demands due to customers’ behavioral
changes over the long-term. Therefore, for the purposes of projecting long-term water use, it is assumed that the five-
year historical average water demand from 2012-2016 should be used to conservatively estimate future water demands

as shown in Table 3-2 in gallons per day (gpd) and AFY.

Table 3-2, 2012-2016 Average Demand

Use Type Average Water Demand 2012-2016 (gpd) Average Water Demand 2012-2016 (AFY)
Residential 28,308 32
Commercial 32,758 37
Other 11,622 13
Total 72,688 81

Page 4 of 21




“—=WSC

Water Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum —Final Draft for Board Review and Public Comment WATER SysTEMS CONSULTING, INC,

The following sections describe two typical water demand estimation methodologies including the following:

1. Population and per capita water use methodology- correlates water demand with the best available data for
historical population to create a per capita water demand factor that is applied to the best available data for
projected population.

2. Parcel zoning and development methodology- correlates water to customers’ parcel data, such as acres or
dwelling units by zoning category, to create water demand factors that are applied to the best available data for
projected acreages or dwelling units to be developed.

3.2.1 Demand Projections- Population and Per Capita Water Use Methodology

A common methodology used to estimate future water demand is a per capita water use methodology. This
methodology involves establishing a water demand factor measured in gallons per capita per day (GPCD) and applying
that factor to a projected population to estimate future demand. The best way to estimate the District’s residential
population is through the use of Geographical Information Systems (GIS)-based analysis of US Census data calculated
using the California Department of Water Resources (DWR's) Population Tool, which was created for development of
Urban Water Management Plans. According to the DWR Population Tool, which assumes a 1.21 persons per water
connection factor, the District’s population was 370 in 1990, 262 in 2000, 362 in 2010, and 362 in 2015.

The most recent data for population projections in the Avila Beach region is the County’s Housing Element 2014-2019
(SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND BUILDING, June 2014). The population is not directly
estimated for the District, so it is assumed that the District’s population will grow at the same rate as the surrounding
region. Historic and projected water demand, population and GPCD are shown in Table 3-3.

The buildout population was also calculated, for comparison, based on identifying the number of future dwelling units in
Section 3.2.2 (121 dwelling units) and applying the assumed 1.21 persons per water connection factor to yield 146
additional people, or a buildout population of 508. Because the buildout populations are so close using both population
projection methods, the growth rates shown in Table 3-3 are assumed to be reasonable for planning purposes.

Table 3-3. Historical and Future Population and Water Demand

2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 Buildout
Avila Beach Region Population?® 1,464 1,508 1,624 1,699 1,830 2,020 2;121 2,204
Avila Beach Region Growth % N/A 3% 8% 5% 8% 10% 5% 4%
ABCSD Estimated Population 3627 42872 461 482 519 573 602 626
Gallons Per Capita Per Day 183 188 177 177 177 177 177 177
(GPCD)?
Estimated Water Demand (AFY) 74 76 91 96 103 114 119 124

1 (SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND BUILDING, June 2014)
? U.5. Census data from the DWR Population Tool
32010 and 2015 GPCD is based on actual production and population, but 2020-Buildout GPCD is assumed to equal the 2012-2016 average GPCD.

Page 5 of 21




—WSC

Water Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum —Final Draft for Board Review and Public Comment WATER S¥STEMS CONSULTING, INC

3.2.2 Demand Projections- Parcel Zoning and Development Methodology

An in-depth analysis of the existing zoning and potential development of each parcel within the District was completed
for comparison to population based demand estimates described in the previous section. Customer billing records,
parcel development data and zoning data was used to develop demand projections by executing the following steps:

1. Identify currently developed parcels that are served by the District and associate them with zoning categories
and customer billing data. Group customer billing categories and zoning categories into water use type
categories of Residential, Commercial and Other.

2. I|dentify water demand per water use type that is representative of future water demand (see Section 3.2) and
develop water demand factors based on currently available development data (acreage, dwelling units, etc.)
that is also available to project future development and associated water demand for each water use type,

3. Identify undeveloped parcels and parcels with potential to be redeveloped. Assign buildout development data to
each parcel (acreage, dwelling units, etc.).

4. Apply the water demand factors developed in step 3 to the future development data to determine future

demand projections.

GIS was used to identify parcels with and without existing customers located on them and their zoning, which was
correlated to customer billing data to establish water use type categories of Residential, Commercial and Other. Because
available existing and future development data varied by water use type category, Commercial and Other categories
were associated with acreage and the Residential category was associated with dwelling units. While acreage could be
used to project development for the Residential category, more specific dwelling unit data was available to project
residential development. Because the existing dwelling units were not known for all existing Residential customers, a
representative sampling of customers was used to estimate an average water demand per dwelling unit for which the
number of dwelling units was known. Table 3-4 shows the water demand factors based on the 2012-2016 average water
demand per acre of developed parcel (Commercial and Other categories) and water demand per dwelling unit
(Residential category). For an explanation of why the 2012-2016 average water demand was utilized, refer to Section
3.2,

Table 3-4. Water Demand Factors by Water Use Type

Water Use Type Average Water Developed Acres Water Demand Factor
Demand 2012-2016
(gpd) gpd per unit
Residential* NA 204 per dwelling unit
28,308 20 1,385 per acre
Commercial 32,758 8 4,240 per acre
Other 11,622 12 945 per acre

1 The water demand factor for future Residential development is measured in gpd per dwelling unit and the water demand factor for existing development is
measured in gpd per acre because the total amount of dwelling units for all currently developed parcels is unknown. The gpd per dwelling unit factor was
calculated using a representative sample of existing customers for which the number of dwelling units was known.

The water demand factors shown in Table 3-4 can be applied to future development projections of acreage and dwelling
units per parcel to determine future water demand. Future demands must capture expected demands for existing
customers, demands for new development on vacant parcels and demands for redevelopment of currently developed
parcels. With District staff guidance, parcels with specific development projections were identified based on discussions

Page 6 of 21




—=WSC

Water Resources Analysis Technical Memerandum —Final Draft for Board Review and Public Comment WaTER SYSTEAMS CONSULTING, INC.

with County Planning and Building Department staff, received inquiries about potential water service connections, and
standards from the County’s Land Use Ordinance as shown in Figure 3-3.

Page 7 of 21




THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK FOR DUPLEX PRINTING



b Recaitws Ansbyals Teshro el Muresirasidurn —Final Tratt fo Baand Siegiiew arcd Pulsie Comment —

W Sy Do | (e

eai

DO awssraces
i i?.}:*] Fandea Pttt

Preparod: 443017

p— Avlla Beach CED

,""-WS ' Water Rescurces Analysis

- Bulidout Parcels | se— =
Wans Svstisis Consinning, Ine. 0 140 280

Figuire 3-8, Bulldout Parcels Map
Page Bof 74




THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BEANK FOR DUPLEX PRINTING



—=WSC

Water Resources Analysis Technical Memorandum —Final Draft for Board Review and Public Comment Water Systems CONSULTING, INC

Figure 3-3 shows the assumed buildout parcels that were assigned development projection units based on the water
demand factors summarized in Table 3-4. Table 3-5 summarizes the total development projection units for each water
use type for existing customers on currently developed parcels, potential future customers on undeveloped parcels, and

potential future customers on currently developed parcels with the potential for redevelopment.

Table 3-5. Development Projection Units

Water Use Developed Undeveloped Parcels Redevelopment Buildout Parcels
Type Parcels Parcels
acres acres | dwelling units | acres | dwelling units acres dwelling units

Residential® 20 NA 64 3 58 17 122
Commercial 8 1 NA 0 NA 8 NA
Other 12 0 NA 0 NA 12 NA

Total 40 1 64 3 58 37 122
1 The development unit used for future Residential development is measured in dwelling units and the development unit for existing
development is measured in acres because the total amount of dwelling units for all currently developed parcels is unknown, Additionally, the
acreages of Redevelopment Parcels with potential redevelopment dwelling units were subtracted from the Developed Parcels acreage to yield
the net acreage for Buildout Parcels.

Table 3-6 shows estimated future water demands by water use type based on the water demand factors in Table 3-4
and projected buildout development units in Table 3-5. Table 3-7 shows water demands from 2020 through buildout
assuming demands grow at the same rate as the population growth rate for the Avila Beach region from the County’s
Housing Element 2014-2019 as described in Section 3.2.1.

Table 3-6. Future Water Demand by Water Use Type

Water Use Type Developed Parcels Undeveloped Parcels Redevelopment Parcels Buildout Parcels
Demand (AFY) Demand (AFY) Demand (AFY) Water Demand
(AFY)
Residential 28 15 13 56
Commercial 37 3 0 39
Other 13 0 0 13
Total 77 18 13 108

Table 3-7. Future Water Demand by Water Use Type- 2020-Buildout

Water Use Developed 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 Buildout
Type Parcels Demand Water Water Water Water Water
Demand (AFY) (AFY) Demand Demand Demand Demand Demand
(AFY) (AFY) (AFY) (AFY) (AFY)
Residential 28 32 36 41 49 53 56
Commercial 37 37 37 38 39 39 39
Other 13 13 13 13 13 13 13
Total 78 82 86 92 101 105 108

The parcel by parcel analysis is assumed to be more accurate than the per capita analysis for planning purposes because
of the detailed data available per parcel. Therefore, the demands used in Section 5.2 reflect the projections from the

parcel based methodology.
Page 9 of 21



4 Water Supply Characterization

4.1 Existing Supply

The District’s water supply consists of surface water from Lopez Reservoir (Lopez) and the State Water Project (SWP).
The District is entitled to 68 AFY of Lopez Water through a contract with the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and
Water Conservation District (SLOCFC&WCD) and CSA 12. The District also has a 100 AFY allocation of Table A SWP water
and 100 AFY of SWP drought buffer through the SLOCFC&WCD, providing a total maximum deliverable allocation of 168
AFY. SWP Water is rarely allocated at 100% to SWP Contractors, so the drought buffer is used to supplement reduced
allocations, but the maximum deliverable allocation cannot exceed 100 AFY for reasons described in Section 5.1.1. All
groundwater within the District’s service area is relatively high in total dissolved solids {TDS) due to seawater influence.
The District’s historical Lopez and SWP deliveries, allocation percentages and available allocation volumes are shown in

Figure 4-1.
180 e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ~ 100%
-
-
— -
160 [ ABCSD purchased a 100 AFY drought buffer in Nt eeem=- 90%
I late 2016, which became effective in 2017,
N : = = % 80%
19 ,’ S The SLOFCRWCD sold the Districtan | ™\
58 £ ‘\\ additional 64 AF from their storage as part 70%
1 " % | of aone-time option which re-characterized g g
V) \ Lopez deliveries as SWP water in an effort ¥ 60% =
o> 100 / 3 to preserve Lopez supplies. "" 3
[Tl U4 B3 50% 2
7 =
<< Vi N p—— =
20 ) == rm— b Y [ — Y
- ’\ 'l 40% (=]
60 =daed=" \l %
1 4 4 30%
40 \\\ | 7/ 20%
i -
20 % I | 10%
jri——=
0 et 0%
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Lopez Water Available (AFY) SWP Water Available (AFY) == Lopez Water Delivered (AFY)

et SWP Water Delivered (AFY) === % of Table A Allocation Available === % of Lopez Allocation Available

Figure 4-1, Historical SWP Table A Allocations and Deliveries to the District

4.1.1 SWP & Lopez Water Treatment and Conveyance
The District is a subcontractor to the SLOFC&WCD for 100 AFY of SWP water and 100 AFY of SWP drought buffer water

(effective as of January 2017) in addition to being a subcontractor to CSA 12 for 68 AFY of Lopez water. The Coastal
Branch of the SWP conveys water from the California Aqueduct to San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties. Water
in the Coastal Branch pipeline is treated at the Polonio Pass Water Treatment Plant. SWP water from the Coastal Branch
is delivered to the District through the Lopez pipeline, which is connected to the Coastal Branch near the intersection of
Orcutt Rd. and Lopez Dr. From this connection, SWP water is conveyed to the Lopez Water Treatment Plant where it
discharges into the potable water clearwell. Raw Lopez water is also conveyed in a separate pipeline from Lopez
Reservoir to the Lopez Water Treatment Plant for treatment and discharge to the clearwell. Treated Lopez and SWP
water is delivered through the Lopez pipeline. The Lopez pipeline consists of approximately 13 miles of pipeline and
terminates in Port San Luis Obispo. Using the Lopez pipeline, the SLOFC&WCD delivers SWP water to the following SWP
subcontractors; City of Pismo Beach; Oceano Community Services District (OCSD); San Miguelito Mutual Water Company

Page 10 of 21




(SMMW(C); Avila Beach Community Services District (District); Avila Valley Mutual Water Company (AVMWC); and the
San Luis Coastal Unified School District. The Lopez contract agencies include the Cities of Arroyo Grande, Pismo Beach,
Grover Beach, and communities of Oceano (OCSD) and Avila Beach (CSA 12). CSA 12 includes Avila Beach CSD and Port
San Luis Harbor District, as well as additional small water systems and individual property owners located in the Avila
Beach region. Figure 4-2 shows a schematic representation of the Lopez pipeline.

Page 11 of 21




wling

Léguna
Laks Feb

Pipeline Terminus

8 .
Tank Farm Rd

Buchisy Rd

Legend

. Reservaoirs
- Turnout
ss=m== Coastal Branch Pipeline
= | opez Pipeline
Neighboring Water Agencies
W Sycamore Mineral Springs Resorl
Avila Valley Mutual Water Company
Avila Beach CSD
Pismo Beach Waler Department
‘:J SLO County Service Area No.12

| San Miguelite Mutual Water Company

Famo
Sta

B !
Beach

Grover Bea

&

(]

Gr pvey

o

Pomeroy .

Sources: Esri, HERE, Delorme, USGS, Intermap, incrament P Corp NE{C}f
Esri Japan, METI, Esr China {Hong Kong), Esri {Thailand}, TomTam, b
Mapmylndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

Y

hame: Lnpes

; N
c‘\\w RITY ey, 0 1.25 25 A

& 2 Avila Beach Community Services District ) Miles

g % Water Resources Analysis TM oo

2 3 Lopez Pipeline — ~WSC

AT AR T
(N

WaTtr SysTims ConSULTING, INC

Figure 4-2. Lopez Pipeline

Page 12 of 21




4.1.2 SWP Water
The contracts between the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) and the 29 SWP water contractors define

the terms and conditions governing the water delivery and cost repayment for the SWP. SWP Table A is an exhibit to
these contracts. All water-supply related costs of the SWP are paid 100% by the contractors, and SWP Table A serves as
a basis for allocating some of the costs among the contractors. In addition, SWP Table A plays a key role in the annual
allocation of available supply among contractors. When the SWP was being planned, the amount of water projected to
be available for delivery to the contractors was 4,173 million acre feet per year. This was referred to as the maximum
project yield. It was recognized that in some years the project would be unable to deliver that amount, and in other
years project supply could exceed that amount. The SWP Table A amount was used as the basis for apportioning
available supply to each contractor and as a factor in calculating each contractor’s share of the SWP’s costs. There are
other contract provisions that permit changes to an individual contractor’'s SWP Table A allocation under special

circumstances.

Every year, DWR conducts modeling studies of the SWP system to determine the annual allocation, or percentage of the
amount of Table A that can be delivered by the SWP system. This allocation is revised throughout the year as hydrologic

conditions and other factors change.

SLOFC&WCD'’s SWP Table A contract amount is 25,000 AFY (Department of Water Resources, 2003). The Central Coast
Water Authority (CCWA) and SLOFC&WCD have entered into a Master Water Treatment Agreement, which defines the
available capacity for treatment and conveyance for SLOFC&WCD as 4,830 AFY (1992). Since SLOFC&WCD has a higher
Table A amount than the treatment and conveyance capacity in the Coastal Branch, they can use this “excess allocation”
to improve reliability for their subcontractors. The District added 100 AFY of drought buffer to their 100 AFY Table A
allocation in late 2016 that became effective in January 2017. SLOFC&WCD’s SWP subcontractor allocations are

summarized in Table 4-1.

Page 13 of 21




Table 4-1. SLOFC&WCD SWP Allocation Summary (San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone 3, January 20,

2017)
SWP Allocations (AFY)
SWP Sub-Contractor Water Service Drought Buffer |  Total Reserved
Amount (Supply)
Chorro Valley Turnout
Morro Bay, City of 1,313 2,290 3,603
California Men’s Colony 400 400 800
County Operations Center 425 425 850
Cuesta College 200 200 400
Subtotal 1 2,338 3,315 5,653
Lopez Turnout
Pismo Beach, City of 1,240 1,240 2,480
Oceano CSD 750 750 1,500
San Miguelito MWC 275 275 550
Avila Beach CSD 100 100 200
Avila Valley MWC 20 60 80
San Luis Coastal USD 7 7 14
Subtotal 2 2,392 2,432 4,824
Shandon 100 - 100
Subtotal 3 100 0 100
Total 4,830 5,747 . 10,577
SLO County Table A Allocation 25,000
"Excess Allocation" 14,423

4.1.3 Lopez Water Supply
The Lopez Project was constructed in 1968/69 and is operated by SLOFC&WCD Zone 3 (Zone 3). The Lopez Project has

historically been a very reliable source of water supply. The reservoir’s total capacity is 51,990 AF with a storage capacity
of 49,200 AF. The annual safe yield of the reservoir is 8,730 AFY with 4,530 AFY apportioned to contract agencies and
the remaining 4,200 AFY reserved for downstream releases to maintain environmental and agricultural flows
downstream. In years when less water is required to be released downstream in the Arroyo Grande Creek, additional
water {known as surplus water) may be available to the Zone 3 member agencies, which include the Cities of Arroyo
Grande, Grover Beach, Pismo Beach, the OCSD and CSA 12, which includes the District.

Storage at the end of 2015 was 13,847 AF, or 28%, of total storage capacity. From the 4,530 AFY of entitlements, Lopez
provides a contractual supply of 68 AFY to the District, except for years when reservoir storage is below 15,000 AF, such
as 2015. More details about the reliability of Lopez water is described in Section 5.1.2. Table 4-2 shows the contracted
entitlements for municipal users of Lopez water.

Page 14 of 21



Table 4-2. Lopez Treatment and Distribution System Contract Entitlements

Water Contractor Lopez WTP Water Supply Annual Entitlement (AFY)
Arroyo Grande 2,290
Oceano CSD 303
Grover Beach 800
Pismo Beach 892
CSA 12 Total 245
Avila Valley MW(C Subtotal 12
San Miguelito MWC Subtotal 4
Avila Beach CSD Subtotal 68
Port San Luis Subtotal 100
Other CSA 12 Customers Subtotal 61
TOTAL 4,530

5 Supply Reliability

5.1 Supply Reliability by Source

The relative reduction in availahle supplies during dry water years is variable, and depends on the projected reductions

from each specific water source.

5.1.1 SWP Water

Contracted Table A allocations vary annually due to hydrologic variability, maintenance and repairs. During the recent
drought, the SWP Table A allocation dropped as low as 5% in 2014. To combat this problem, SLOCFC&WCD has
developed a drought buffer system where water purveyors can purchase SCLOCFC&WCD's excess state water allocation.
Drought buffer water is water that has no pipeline capacity for delivery. Rather, it is used to increase deliveries when
Table A allocations are less than 100%. For example, if Table A allocations were 50% of contracted amounts, the District
would receive 50 AFY of water without a drought buffer, but would receive an additional 50 AFY with a 100 AFY drought
buffer. The District purchased a 100 AFY drought buffer in late 2016 to supplement their Table A allocation of SWP

water,

DWR's SWP 2015 Final Delivery Capability Report estimates that the long-term average of Table A deliveries under
historical conditions was approximately 62% of the maximum Table A amount (California Department of Water
Resources, July 2015). The maximum delivery is estimated to be 98% and the minimum delivery is estimated to be 11%.
The long-term average of 62% is assumed to be the average year supply available for the District’s Table A allocation and
drought buffer, or 100 AFY of deliverable supply. However, the likelihood that 62% of the maximum Table A amount is
available varies in single dry and multiple dry years as shown in Figure 4-1. Single dry and multiple dry years are based
on the lowest historical SWP percentage allocations applied to the District’s 100 AFY and 100 AFY of drought buffer. The
percentages for these years are 5% in 2014, and 15%, 5% and 20% for 2013-2015 respectively.

5.1.2 Lopez Water
The reliability of the District’s Lopez Water allocation is determined by local hydrologic conditions and is governed by
the contracts between the SLOFC&WCD and the Zone 3 member agencies. According to the Zone 3 2015 UWMP, Lopez
is a very reliable source of water with an annual safe yield of 8,730 AFY. The Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP) was
adopted in December 2014 and enacted in April 2015 when reservoir storage went below 20,000 af. The enactment of
Stage 2 of the LRRP resulted in approximately a 10% decrease in municipal diversions and downstream releases as
shown in Table 5-1 and Table 5-2. The Zone 3 2015 UWMP projects that municipal entitlements will remain constant at
Page 15 of 21




4,530 AFY through 2035 under normal conditions, and that it will be able to supply all contracted agencies with their
requested allocations in full during single dry years and multiple dry years until the fourth dry year (Wallace Group, June
2016). For planning purposes, it is assumed that water supply from Lopez Water during dry water years will meet the
District’s full allocation of 68 AFY, except in the third year of multiple dry years when it will be reduced by 10% to 61.2

AFY.

Table 5-1. Initial Prescribed Municipal Diversion Reduction Strategy Under the LRRP

Amount of Water in Storage (AF) Municipal Diversion Reduction Municipal Diversion (AFY)*
20,000 0% 4,530
15,000 10% 4,077
10,000 20% 3,624
5,000 35%? 2,941
4,000 100% 0

1 The actual amount of water diverted may vary as agencies extend the delivery of their Lopez Entitlement.

2 The 35% reduction provides sufficient water to supply 55 gallons per capita per day (GPCD) for the estimated population of the Zone 3
agencies (47,696 in 2010 per the 2010 Zone 3 UWMP). 55 GPCD is the target residential indoor water usage standard used in California
Department of Water Resource's 2010 UWMP Method 4 Guidelines.

Table 5-2. Initial Prescribed Downstream Release Reduction Strategy Under the LRRP

Amount of Water in Storage (AF) Downstream Release Reduction Downstream Releases (AFY)!
20,000 9.5% 3,800
15,000 9.5% 3,800
10,000 75.6% 1,026
5,000 92.9% 300
4,000 100.0% 0

1 These downstream releases represent the maximum amount of water that can be released. Actual releases may be less if releases can be
reduced while still meeting the needs of the agricultural stakeholders and addressing the environmental requirements. (3, December 16,

2014)

5.1.2.1 Surplus Lopez Water
Historically, the District and other contracted agencies have received surplus water from Lopez depending upon yearly

requirements for downstream release. The SLOCFC&WCD monitors the potential for surplus water availability
consistent with the water supply agreement. For planning purposes, surplus water is not included as a reliable supply.
The LRRP includes provisions for the Zone 3 agencies to extend the delivery of their Lopez water supplies while the LRRP
is in effect. This in essence allows the Zone 3 agencies to carry over their unused Lopez supplies, minus evaporation,
when under the LRRP.

5.1.3 Factors Affecting Supply Reliability

There are a variety of factors that can impact water supply reliability. The District relies solely on surface water, which is
vulnerable to legal, environmental and climatic factors as shown in Table 5-3. The legal factors include the contractual
obligations of Lopez water. Some environmental factors include the Endangered Species Act incidental take
authorization requirements for steelhead and red-legged frogs downstream from the Lopez Water. For more
information, see Section 5.1.3.2. Some climatic factors include extended drought conditions that could affect availability

of Lopez and the SWP water supplies.

Page 16 of 21




Table 5-3 Factors Affecting Water Supply Reliability

Water Supply Sources Legal Environmental Water Quality Climatic
Lopez Water X X X
SWP Water X X

5.1.3.1 Legal Factors
The SLOCFC&WCD is in discussions with the SWRCB regarding obtaining an amended water rights permit for its

operation of Lopez. The current permit only allows for “diversion to storage” and not “direct diversion”. Currently, the
Lopez Water utilizes “direct diversion” as part of its normal operations. The SLOCFC&WCD is requesting a time
extension on its original permit to allow it to submit its application for an amended permit that would allow for “direct
diversion”. However, an amended permit cannot be obtained without a Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP), which is
described in the Environmental Factors section below.

California’s water rights system affects the SWP indirectly. The priority of an appropriative water right in California is
subordinate to all prior water rights, whether appropriative or riparian. Therefore, if another entity increases its use on a
SWP water supply source (i.e. the Delta, the upstream Sacramento or San Joaquin River, or a tributary to either river)
the overall amount of water availability to the SWP will decline.

5.1.3.2 Environmental Factors
The District’s surface water supply from the SWP has the potential to be affected by environmental issues, particularly

involving the Delta Smelt in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta issues. SWP pumping capacities were reduced as a result
of the May 2007 federal court ruling to protect Delta smelt. However, the District and other local SWP users have not
been negatively affected to date by reduced SWP supplies since the District's Table A allocations to its subcontractors
are typically fulfilled, even in dry years. This is due to the SLOFC&WCD’s maintenance of excess, unused SWP
entitlement. Therefore, even when SWP supplies are decreased, the SLOFC&WCD's excess SWP entitlement provides a
buffer so that contracted volumes to water purveyors, like the District, may still be provided in full. However, it is
possible that the Delta’s fragile ecosystem, along with severely decreased precipitation patterns, may affect SWP supply
reliability for the District at some point in the future. Additionally, at some point in the future the SLOFC&WCD's excess
allocation, which does not include the District’s drought buffer, may be sold to other parties and not available to the

existing subcontracts for supply reliability.

Surface water from the Lopez Reservoir is a generally reliable water supply source for the District. However, deliveries
have the potential to be affected by the presence of steelhead trout and the California red-legged frog that utilize the
Arroyo Grande Creek watershed downstream of Lopez Dam, and are considered threatened species under the Federal
Endangered Species Act. The Endangered Species Act permits non-federal entities to obtain incidental take authorization
for protected species by developing a Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP). As of February 2015, the SLOFC&WCD initiated a
new draft of the HCP that incorporates an updated model. The HCP update is still under development at the time of
preparation of this TM. It is anticipated that a new downstream release program will be proposed to the environmental
regulatory agencies in the near future (7). The HCP, in conjunction with contractual water supply obligations to the Zone
3 member agencies and releases for downstream users, is intended to maintain protection of steelhead, red-legged frog,
and habitat enhancement for other environmentally sensitive biota.

5.1.3.3 Water Quality Factors

It is not anticipated that water quality will affect water management strategies and/or supply reliability for Lopez except

possibly at very low Lopez water levels. In 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) completed a Sanitary
Page 17 of 21




Survey Report for Lopez Project and concluded no contaminants within the water supply, however the source was
vulnerable to activities located near the drinking water source. The San Luis Ohispo County (County) issued a Waterline
Disinfection Procedures in 2015 to outline minimum requirements for disinfection and testing of new and repaired

potable water mains.

The primary water quality factors affecting SWP supply reliability sources are from its main reservoir, the Delta, Because
the Delta is an estuary, salinity levels are a water quality concern. The SWP monitors their operations to ensure
compliance with regulatory standards.

5.1.3.4 Climatic Factors
Climatic factors affecting the reliability of a given water supply system generally are a function of seasonal precipitation
and runoff characteristics. As such, limited recharge and/or drought conditions pose threats to availability of the

District’s surface water supplies.

California has experienced below-average precipitation and runoff since approximately 2006, resulting in reduced
storage in SWP reservoirs. In response, DWR has continued to limit SWP allocations to contractors. However, the
SLOFC&WCD's current condition of excess allocation has resulted in the District continually receiving its contracted
allocation in full. Climate change may reduce the SWP’s median reservoir carryover storage. Carryover water is the
SWP’s backup water supply used only during periods of supply shortage. This shortage would reduce the flexibility in the

systems during critically dry years.
5.2 Supply & Demand Comparison in Average & Dry Conditions

5.2.1 Historic and Future Conditions
This section considers the District’s water supply reliability during three climate-related water scenarios, or water year

types: normal year, single dry year, and multiple dry years. This methodology of estimating supply reliability was
developed by DWR for urban water suppliers’ Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) and is considered an industry
standard. These water year types are defined as follows:

Normal Year: The normal year is a year, or an averaged range of years, in the historical sequence that most closely
represents mean rainfall and recharge levels and patterns, or available supply. It is defined as the mean usable
supply available based on historical average conditions for each supply source.

Single Dry Year: This is defined as the year with the minimum useable supply. The supply quantities for this
condition are derived from the minimum historical allocations available for each supply source.

Multiple Dry Years: This is defined as the three (or more) consecutive years with the minimum useable supply.
Water systems are more vulnerable to these droughts of long duration, because they deplete water storage
reserves in local and state reservoirs. The supply quantities for this condition are derived from the minimum

of historical three-year running average yields.

5.2.2 Basis of Water Year Types
Historic SWP and Lopez allocations based on hydrologic records analyzed by DWR and the SLOFC&WCD were examined

to establish a basis of historical normal year, and historical supply allocations were used to establish a basis of single dry
and multiple dry years as shown in Table 5-4 and Table 5-5.

Page 18 of 21




Table 5-4. Basis of Water Year Types

Average/ Normal Single Dry . @
Supply Source Year vear @ Multiple Dry Years
State Water Project 1521-2003 2014 2013 2014 2015
Lopez Reservoir 1991-1992 2015 2014 2015 2016

Notes:

1. Normal year supplies are based on current contractual agreements and historical allocations with the SWP and Lopez Project,
and the Zone 3 Final Urban Water Management Plan Update 2015 (Wallace Group, June 2016).
2. Single and Multiple Dry values are based on actual SWP Table A allocation percentages from 2013-2015 applied to the District's
Table A allocation and drought buffer, and Lopez allocations for 2014-2016.

Table 5-5. Historical Water Supply Conditions

Average/ Normal Single Dry Multiple Dry Years (AFY)®
Supply Source ) @
Year (AFY) Year (AFY) Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
State Water Project 100 10 70 10 40
Lopez Reservoir 68 61.2 68 61.2 61.2
Total 168 71 138 71 101
Percent of Normal 42% 82% 42% 60%
Notes:
1. Normal year supplies are based on current contractual agreements and historical allocations with the SWP and Lopez Project,
and the Zone 3 Final Urban Water Management Plan Update 2015 (Wallace Group, June 2016).
2. Single and Multiple Dry values are based on actual SWP Table A allocation percentages from 2013-2015 applied to the District's
Table A allocation and drought buffer, and Lopez allocations for 2014-2016.

5.2.3 Projected Normal Year Supply/Demand
The normal year water demands through buildout are estimated based on the demands summarized in Section 3.2.2.

The projected normal water year water supply and demand projections are provided in Table 5-6. The available supplies
during a normal year represent 100 percent of the available supplies discussed in Section 4.

Table 5-6. Supply and Demand — Normal Year

Supply/Demand Projected Supply/Demand (AFY)
Condition 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 Buildout
Supply Totals 168 168 168 168 168 168
Demand Totals 82 86 92 101 105 108
Supply and D d
ey angeman 86 82 76 67 63 60
Difference
Difference as Percent of 51% 49% 45% 20% 38% 359
Supply

5.2.4 Projected Single Dry Year Supply/Demand
The projected single dry year water demands through buildout are equivalent to normal year demands, assuming that

water demands do not change as a result of dry conditions. The anticipated supply decrease during a single dry year,
compared to a normal year, is based on the actual water supply from 2014 for SWP and 2015 for Lopez and assumes
that additional supplies from stored, surplus or excess allocation are not available from the SWP or Lopez. As shown in

Table 5-7, the District’s supplies are consistently less than projected demands during single-dry year conditions.
Page 19 of 21




Table 5-7.

Supply and Demand Comparisons — Single Dry Year

Supply/Demand Projected Supply/Demand (AFY)
Condition 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 Buildout

Supply Totals 71 71 71 7T 71 71
Demand Totals 82 86 92 101 105 108
Supply and Demand 11 15 21 -30 -34 -37
Difference
Diff

iHfesense:ps Persent of 17% 21% -29% -41% 47% -52%
Supply

5.2.5 Projected Multiple Dry Year Supply/Demand

The projected multiple dry year water demands through buildout are equivalent to normal year demands, assuming that
water demands do not change as a result of dry conditions. The anticipated supply decrease during a multiple dry years
period, compared to a normal year, is based on the actual water supply from 2013 through 2015 for State water and
2014-2016 for Lopez water and assumes that additional supplies from stored, surplus or excess allocation are not
available from the SWP or Lopez. As shown in Table 5-8, the District’s supplies are above and below projected demands

during multiple-dry year conditions.

Table 5-8. Supply and Demand Comparison - Multiple Dry Year Events

Supply/Demand Projected Supply/Demand (AFY)
Condition 2020 2025 2030 | 2035 I 2040 Buildout
Year 1
Supply Totals 138 138 138 138 138 138
Demand Totals 82 86 92 101 105 108
Supply and Demand 56 52 46 37 33 30
Difference
Year 2
Supply Totals 71 71 71 71 Tl 71
Demand Totals 82 86 92 101 105 108
Supply and Demand -11 -15 =21 -30 -34 -37
Difference
Year 3
Supply Totals 101 101 101 101 101 101
Demand Totals 82 86 92 101 105 108
Supply and Demand 19 15 9 0 -4 -7
Difference

5.3 Recommendations

Based on the analysis described in the previous sections, WSC recommends that the District continue to assess
opportunities to bolster and diversify its supply portfolio to ensure reliability during dry years. The District’s potential
supply opportunities may include new sources, such as recycled water or desalinated water, and new allocations of
existing sources through transfers or agreements with neighboring water suppliers. Other potential mechanisms to
address supply shortages may include enhancing conservation programs or the District's Water Shortage Response and
Management Plan to target specific demand reductions under various supply condition scenarios.

Page 20 of 21




6 References
3, San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone. December 16, 2014. Low Reservoir

Response Plan. December 16, 2014.

California Department of Water Resources. July 2015. The State Water Project Final Delivery Capability Report 2015.
July 2015.

Central Coast Water Authority. The State Water Project in Santa Barbara County. CCWA website. [Online]

http://www.ccwa.com/history/index.html.

Department of Water Resources. 2003. Contract between the State of California Deparment of Water Resources and
San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District for a Water Supply. 2003.

1892. Master Water Treatment Agreement Between the Central Coast Water Authority and the San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District. 1992.

Montgomery Watson. 1998. Operations Manual for the Central Coast Water Authority, Coastal Branch Treated Water
Aqueduct. 1998.

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND BUILDING. June 2014. Housing Element 2014-2019
County of San Luis Obispo General Plan. June 2014,

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone 3. January 20, 2017, LOPEZ PROJECT
BRIEFING BOOK. lanuary 20, 2017.

Wallace Group. June 2016. Zone 3 Urban Water Management Plan 2015 Update. s.1. : San Luis Obispo County Flood
Control and Water Conservation District, June 2016.

Page 21 of 21






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Managcr@
DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT: Request for Discharge of Treated Groundwater to the District Sewage
Collection System

Recommendation:

Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff

Discussion:

In late 2015, Avocet Environmental Inc., sent a letter to the District on behalf of Chevron
Environmental Management Company (CEMC), regarding the potential to discharge treated
groundwater to the District sewer collection system. CEMC was evaluating alternative
methods to manage the treated groundwater in order to reduce traffic impacts, safety risk, air
emissions and costs. In 2016, CEMC temporary curtailed the operation of the groundwater
remediation system and therefore no further staff analysis was performed on the feasibility of
the District accepting the treated water.

In April 2017, Avocet contacted the District and advised that the remediation system was
going to be put back on-line and requested that the District evaluate the possibility and cost of
discharging to the sewer system. When staff initially reviewed the water quality data in late
2015, it appeared that the treated groundwater would meet all of the District’s permit
limitations. However, staff would need to conduct further analysis to confirm that the
collection system can handle the proposed flowrate and complete a more thorough analysis of
the potential impacts to the treatment plant and maintaining compliance with all permit
limitations.

The purpose of this staff report is to advise the Board that CEMC has re-initiated their request
and seek Board input on the issue. The proposed discharge amount (2,000 gallons per day) is
equivalent to approximately 3% — 4% of the District’s average dry weather flow (50,000 —
75,000 gallons per day) and the plant does have hydraulic capacity to handle the increase. All
things being equal, it may be an opportunity for the District to realize some additional, albeit
temporary, revenue. However, as noted above, staff will need to do some additional analysis to
ensure the treated water will not have a negative impact on the plant, permit compliance and/or
District collection system facilities.






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Facilities Committee

VIA: Brad Hagemann, General Manager [
DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT:  Former Fire Station Tenant Lease Agreement and Relocation of District Office

Recommendation:

Receive Staff Report and Provide Direction to Staff

Background:

In January 2002, the District entered in to a lease with Plural Productions for the commercial
building and property located at 100 San Luis Street (former Fire Station). In March 2005,
Vizdom Software Inc. (Vizdom) took over the lease of the building and property from Plural
Productions Inc. In March 2007, the District and Vizdom amended the Lease Agreement to
among other things, extend the term of the lease to December 31, 2007, provide for an option to
renew the Lease for an additional five year period and amend the rental rates. In September
2012, the District and Vizdom amended the March 7, 2007, Lease Agreement to extend the
Lease for another five years (ending on December 31, 2017) and set the rent at $2,680 per month
with an annual increase of the greater of: (1) Consumer Price Index for the previous 12 months
or (2) 5%. On February 13, 2017, Mr. Mike Lacey of Vizdom proposed to change to a “year to
year” lease arrangement with a 6 month termination notice from either party and reduce the
annual rent increase from a minimum of 5% to 2%.

Staff prepared a report for the District’'s March 14, 2017, Board meeting that provided
background information and a discussion that summarized estimated current market rates for
commercial service property in the Avila area and options the Board might consider regarding
moving the District office to the former Fire Station location at the end of the current tenant’s
lease agreement (December 31, 2017).

At the April 11, 2017, Board Meeting, the Directors received the Staff Report and continued the
discussion of the pros and cons of moving the District Office to the former Fire Station.
President Kelley summarized his March 17, 2017, “walk through™ with Mr. Lacey from Vizdom



and noted the inside of the building was in relatively good shape. Vizdom had completed some
tenant improvements to accommodate their software business by adding several walls that
created office spaces. The current floor plan includes four office spaces, a server room, storage
room, kitchen area and a large “studio area” that was the former fire truck parking area. The
studio area is approximately 920 square feet and would work well for a multi-purpose meeting
room and display area for historical items relevant to the Avila Beach area.

At the conclusion of the April 11, meeting discussion, the Board referred the item to the
Facilities Committee (Director DeWeese and Director Najarian) for further review. The
Committee members agreed to schedule another walk-through of the facility and provide a report
back to the full Board at the May 9, Board meeting or the next regularly scheduled Board
meeting.

Discussion:
Facilities Committee Meeting:

On May 1, 2017, the Facilities Committee met at the former Fire Station and did a walk-through
with Mike Lacey and District staff. Following the walk through the Committee met and
discussed the issues associated with moving the District Office. The Committee members
requested Staff to prepare a summary of their findings and conclusions.

o The existing District office and file storage facilities are sub-standard for the District’s
current and future operations. The former Fire Station provides a permanent, more
productive staff office space, ample storage for District records and files (some of which
are currently stored in sub-standard facilities at the WWTP), a multi-purpose meeting
room that would be used for Board meetings, Committee meetings and medium sized
Fire Department training meetings, plus an appropriate space where historical photos of
Avila Beach could be displayed on the walls.

¢ Moving the District operations to the former Fire Station would address the limitations
and deficiencies of the existing District facilities. The space would also provide for a
significantly improved branding opportunity for the District.

¢ The relocation would require some one-time expenses including moving costs, minor
improvements to restroom facilities, and other ancillary costs. Staff estimates the one-
time costs will not exceed $5,000.

= The Committee recognizes that the difference in continuing to lease the existing 440
square foot space at a cost of approximately $1,000 per month and leasing the 2,400
square foot former Fire Station at $3,265 per month results in a positive cash
flow. Moving the District operations to the former Fire Station would result in a net
negative cash flow from the current situation as shown below.



Annual Rent Income $38,000

Annual Rent Expenses ($12,000)
Annual Off-Site Storage ($2.500)
Net Cash Basis $23,500/year

The Committee recognizes that the District may be able to lease out a portion of space in the
former Fire Station that may bring in a $750 - $1,000 per month ($9,000 - $12,000 per year).
However, at this point that is speculative.

e The Committee asserted that, if the Board should direct the staff to pursue moving
operations to the former Avila Beach Fire Station, that it should be done to coincide with
the end of the current lease with the Avila Beach Community Foundation (Fall of 2017).

» Director Najarian requested that, given that the current tenant affirmed its desire to
remain in the space, that giving them the opportunity to share space be re-approached
(the tenant previously was not open to that arrangement). If the current tenant would be
agreeable to sharing the space with ABCSD, it could offset projected negative net cash
flow concerns.

o The current tenant has subsequently confirmed it is not open to sharing space.

o The committee asked staff if the space was sufficient to host ABCSD, a tenant, and Avila
Beach Historical pictures, and staff was certain that it is sufficient.

The Committee members will discuss their findings and conclusions at the Board meeting and
welcome additional input from the full Board and the public.



.. u
- * u ..
i _'Ii g u -
.:. u ....q u
4" . ﬁ:l_' -:- =% o}
=l o - e ==
.:J B ..IF.. ... -T L.: u I.. - .... :.
-i': ER T Ry P S T T e T
T e I A T I
u . .... u . I . . u .
e B o T i SR I
e T N B NIl
I I‘.? -:.- . [ .-I r.. .... ... .... I . i.:l . u .. ..
.-"_._.' - R o= et L .
-.... I. .....1 - I L-..r -.E ..1 -.: :.... u .-.. ..... I
= | I_-'.]. == o .-'-!_!'__.'.
I . .......:I. ... ...:I .. . .......:J .. - ...::..T- .-..- .......I .-
B ol R T W L v A
-: ..-.. .. . u I.:..I ..:..... .,...-‘ . .--.. r




AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage
DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT:  Consider Adoption of the FY 2017-18 Annual Budget including: Resolutions
No.’s 2017-05, A Resolution for Determination of Appropriation Limitation for
the FY 2017-18 and Resolution No. 2017-06 Adopting the FY 2017-2018 Budget.

Recommendation:
8 Receive Staff Report and Board Comment on the Proposed FY 2017/18 Budget

2 Open Public Hearing and Receive any Public Comment

3 Close the Public Hearing

4. Consider any further changes to be made to the proposed budget

5 Adopt as Final, the Proposed Budget for FY 2017-18, by adopting Resolution
Nos. 2017-05 and 2017-06, or if necessary, continue this item to a date certain for
further consideration.

Funding:
As presented in the Proposed Budget

Discussion:

Each year the District must prepare and adopt an operating and capital projects budget for the
coming Fiscal Year. The budget preparation process includes any adjustments to the water
and/or sewer fee schedules. In June 2014, the Board adopted a five year rate schedule that
included increasing the water rates by 10% and the sewer rates by 25% on July 1* of each year
through July 1, 2018. The current monthly residential rates are $54.20 for Water and $56.15 for
Sewer and they include up to 5 units (3,740 gallons) of water.

Staff met with the Finance Committee on April 27, 2017, to review the FY 2017/18 Preliminary
Budget. Among other things, the Committee considered increasing the water and sewer rates the
full amount approved in June 2014 or by a lesser amount. Based on the estimated year-end FY
2016/17 revenue and expenses and the projected FY 2017/18 revenues and expenses, the
Committee recommended not increasing the rates effective July 1, 2017. The Committee directed
staff to prepare the Preliminary draft of the FY 2017/18 budget without a rate increase. Staff
intended to present the Preliminary FY 2017/18 budget at the May 9, 2017 Board meeting, but
the meeting was cancelled due to lack of a quorum. Staff has prepared and circulated a Notice of
Public Hearing for Adoption of the FY 2017/18 Budget (attached).



Attached is the Final Draft of the FY 2017/18 budget. The Final Draft Budget is very similar to
the FY 2016/17 Operations and Maintenance budget. Since there is no proposed water or sewer
rate increase, FY 2017/18 revenues are projected to be only slightly above the project FY
2016/17 revenues, due to a slight projected increase in tax revenues. Operation and Maintenance
expenses are expected to increase 5% — 10% in FY 2017/18 due to annual cost of living
increases in contract operations, increased maintenance costs due to aging equipment, and a
slight increase in administrative costs.

I do recommend that the Board approve promoting our existing Accounting Clerk (Kristi
Dibbern) from the Accounting Clerk classification to the Administrative Secretary classification.
Ms. Dibbern is doing an excellent job at managing the utility billing system. In addition, she also
attends all Board meetings, assists with the preparation and review of staff reports, ensures
appropriate signatures are obtained for Board actions and prepares the Board meeting minutes. 1
believe those additional duties (along with others) warrant a promotion to the Administrative
Secretary classification. The increased annual cost for the promotion is approximately $250 per
month, Staff will summarize the Draft Budget and respond to Board questions or comments at
the June 13, 2017, hearing.

Following staff’s presentation of the Draft Budget, the Board should open the public hearing,
receive public comment, close the public hearing, consider any further changes and then consider
adoption of Resolution No. 2017-05, (which increases the District’s Appropriation Limitations)
and Resolution No. 2017-06 which formally adopts the FY 2017/18 District Budget.
Alternatively, the Board may direct staff to make changes to the Draft Budgel and bring it back
for Board consideration at the July 11, 2017, Board meeting.



~ Newspaper of the Central Coast

TRIBUNE

3825 South Higuera « Post Office Box 112 « San Luis Obispe, California 93406-0112 = (805) 781-7800

In The Superior Court of The State of California
In and for the County of San Luis Obispo
AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

AD # 3081243
AVILA BEACH CSD

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
sS.
County of San Luis Obispo

[ am a citizen of the United States and a resident of the
County aforesaid; 1am over the age of eighteen and not
interested in the above entitled matter; I am now, and at
all times embraced in the publication herein mentioned
was, the principal clerk of the printers and publishers of
THE TRIBUNE, a newspaper of general Circulation,
printed and published daily at the City of San Luis
Obispo in the above named county and state; that notice
at which the annexed clippings is a true copy, was
published in the above-named newspaper and not in any
supplement thereof — on the following dates to wit;
MAY 27, 2017 that said newspaper was duly and
regularly ascertained and established a newspaper of
general circulation by Decree entered in the Superior
Court of San Luis Obispo County, State of California, on
June 9, 1952, Case #19139 under the Government Code
of the State of California.

I certify (or declare) under the penalty of perjury that the
foregomg is true and correct.

N E b/

(Sléu'ature of Principal Clerk)
DATE: MAY 27, 2017
AD COST: §137.94

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY. SERVICES DISTRICT

ADOPTION OF FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 BUDGET

DATE: June 13,2017

TIME: 7:00 PM

PLACE:  Disirict Meeting Room
191 San Wiguel Street,
Avila Beach, CA 93422

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE:

1. The Distrigt has prepared a propgsed final Budget for Fiscal
Year 201718 which is available for inspection, during regular Dis-
trict business-hours, at the District pifice located at 191 San Mi-
guel Sireet, Avila Beach, Califormia

_ . (_Jn June 13, 2017, at 7:00 pm, the District’s Board of Direc-
iors will meet to consider the adoption of the firal Budget,

3. Atthe time and place specified In this Notice any persen may
appear to be heard regarding any item in the Budget including the
additionof other items.

4. The public hearng may be continued from time to time.

it you should have questions, please contact the District Office at
avilacsd@gmail.com or (B05) 595-2664.

May 27, 2017 3081243




AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-05

A RESOLUTION FOR DETERMINATION OF
APPROPRIATION LIMITATION FOR THE
2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR
AND
REQUESTING DISTRIBUTION OF
SPECIAL DISTRICT AUGMENTATION FUNDS

WHEREAS, Article XIII B of the California Constitution specifies that appropriations
made by governmental entities may increase annually by the change in population and the
change in cither the California Per Capita Personal Income or the change in the local assessment
roll due to local residential construction; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the State Department of Finance that the percent
change in the California Per Capita Personal Income (CPCPI) is 1.0369 and the percent change
in the population (POP) of the unincorporated areas of San Luis Obispo County is 0.33 and,

WHEREAS, the appropriation, subject to limitation (estimated net tax proceeds
excluding Augmentation Funds) has been determined to be $5,352,204; and

WHEREAS, the appropriation limit exceeds the appropriation subject to limitation; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED by the
Board of Directors, of the Avila Beach Community Services District, San Luis Obispo County,
California, as follows:

1. That the ratio of change is and is determined as follows:

1.0369 X 1.0033 = 1.0403

& That the 2017-2018 appropriation limit is and is determined as follows:
2016-2017 Limitation $ 5,352,204
2017-2018 Ratio of Change X 1.0403
2017-2018 Appropriation Limitation $ 5,568,014

3 That the Appropriation Limitation ($5,568,014) exceeds the Appropriation
subject to Limitation ($478,389) by $5,089,625.



4. No further adjustment to the 2017-2018 appropriation limitation has been
made for mandated costs. However, any new mandated costs or increases
in existing mandated costs would increase the limitation by the amount of
"Proceeds from Taxes" used to finance mandates in fiscal year 2017-2018.

. That the County of San Luis Obispo distribute to the District, the District's
share of the Special District's Augmentation Funds, if any, as determined
by the Board of Supervisors.

Upon motion of Director , seconded by Director , and on the
following roll call vote to wit:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:

the foregoing Resolution is hereby adopted this 14" day of June, 2016.

Peter Kelley, President

ATTEST:

Secretary to the Board of Directors



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-06

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

WHEREAS, The District is required, pursuant to state codes to designate a custodian for its
monies; and,

WHEREAS, such custodianship requires that proper methods be used for the acquisition and
disbursement of District monies; and,

WHEREAS, the District desires to make known its planned activities and associated costs for the
2017-2018 fiscal year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED by the Board of
directors, Avila Beach Community Services District, San Luis Obispo County, California, as
follows:

That the proposed budget entitled, “Avila Beach Community Services District
2017/18 Fiscal Year Budget,” be adopted as submitted or amended.

2. That the budget be administered as established by past policies and practices.

ON MOTION of Director seconded by Director , and on the following roll
call vote to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 13" day of June, 2017.

Peter Kelley, President

ATTEST:

Secretary to the Board of Directors



ESTABLISHED
FEB. 1997

Avila Beach Community Services District

2017/18 Fiscal Year Budget
Presented to the Board of Directors
June 13, 2017

Peter Kelley, President
Lynn Helenius, Vice President
Eric DeWeese
Ara Najarian

Proposed by:

Brad Hagemann
General Manager/District Engineer



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Fund Balances



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Cash Account Balances
Estimated FY 2016/17 Ending Balances

LAIF - General
Beginning Balance 07/01/16 $ 2,219,633
Interest $ 14,000
Approx Ending Balance 06/30/17 $ 2,233,633

General Checking - Heritage Oaks

Approx Ending Balance 06/30/17 $ 600,000

Payroll Checking - Bank of America

Approx Ending Balance 06/30/17 $ 6,500

Totals

Approx Ending Balance 06/30/17 $ 2,840,133




Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Budget Summary



000" 2% 0 0] 000'e 000's¥ 0 s)s8 ] ge - 0bS9
008'Sl 0 0 008'¥ 00S's 005'S JouBINSY| - GES9
000't 0 0 000't souBUUIEY J0jEIBULY) - 0£S9
000'9 0 0 0] 000'9 0 216014 aseesn @ |10 184 - G259
00G'29 0 000'Ss 000'0} 000'05 00S'2 ajuel g snedey dinbg - ozse
000'SE 0 0 00002 000'St 0 Bupsauibuy - 5159
00S'21L 0 0 000'S 00S'2 0 sued siedg [eopug - 0LS9
000'GEL 0 0 000'SEL WD JogeT] Joenuo) - 9059
000'452 0 0 000'2L 000'G81L 0 W ® O 10qeT] 1oBHUOD - SOS9
000'LL 0 0 000'2 000'G2 0 s[esjwayy - €059
00t 0 0 0 0 00¥'2 8}IS q9M - 0219
000't 0 0 0 000"t 0 l1eABIL g 8N4 - G919
000's 0 0 0 0 000's Bujuresy - 0919
005'0L 0 0 0 0 00S'01L 1ueY - 5519
000"t 0 0 0 000"t S8O[ION 21|gnd - S¥L9
002'0L 0 0 002’} 00S'} 00S'Z 2s0d @ sajiddng 2210 - O¥19
0008 0 0 0002 0000} 000'S2 [eba7 - sg19
002's 0 0 0 0 002's $994 034V - 019
000's 0 0 00S 005 000y suopduasqns 7 sang - 0219
005'8 0 0 0 0 005's upny Bupunoaay - £0LY
00021 0 0 0 0 000°Ct Bugunoooy - Zo19
000°/8 0 0 0 0 000°L8 sesuadx3 jjoihed - 082S
00L°L 0 0 0 0 00L'L eouensu] dwo? YoM - 0925
002'v 0 0 0 0 002'y RS SHALIED - 9828
000'E L 0 0 0 0 000'€L Aurey sHIdIRD - bS2S
00¥'8 0 0 0 0 00¥'8 agurINsuU| YeeH - Zres
008 0 0 0 0 008 saxe] [joihed - DEZS

asuadxy

000°129'} 000°Z1 002'LL 000'0E5 000'G4Z 008'182 awoouy| 101
0 0 0 0 0 0 awodu| Isi| - 00Lt
000'8€ 0 0 0 0 000'8€ awooy| [ejuey - 060¢
00E'19 0 0ozt 0 00009 0 sabueyy soqiey - 0SOb
000°18% 0] 000'9| 000'GL 000'592 ooo'see saxet fjunog - 0E0Y
000'S1L 0 0 0 0 000'G1 awoosuj }sassiuy| - 620t
oos'e 0 0 0 0 0og'e | @syouRl4 asuBNqUY - 0Z0t
000°2L 00021 834 9sjyouRIy M\ S - ZLOV
000'506 0 000'S5P 000'0S¥ 0 snueasy Bupeiado - oLOY

awooy|

asusdx3/ewoou] leupio
[ELTN 31SEM PIIOS  SIUDI J2eng  Jo1em Aejjueg usn/ujupy pauiquiod

BI/LIOZ 1BOA [BOS1H
lle1aqg pauiquo)
196png asueusjuiel suonesado
10U1S1Q S291A85 Ajunwiwon Yyoeag ejiay



21/1/9 ‘parepdn

965 VeI 02e'e 086'vL- 084'El 9/9'9g 008'901 §807 /11304d 18N
7SL'0EL 0 0 08962 v.v'001 0 1ej00.de( s19sSY pax|d - 0091
000'GLL 000'G21L JogeT oenuod alid 183 - 0099
052 18L°|L 08971 081l'2¢e 0rS5'98Y 058'L¥9 0 asuadx3 g0
0 08971 089' L ory'LLL 0089t L 009'c62- J9JSUBI] UJWPY - ¥019
%S %S %0t %05 Jajsuel] UWIPY JO UOHEIO|NY
052°181 L 0 00S'ZL 001'69¢ 050°10S 009'€62 asuedx3 Bupesedp [w10) qns
000'00} 0 0 000°00} 0 sejep zodo - zog9
000'sel 0 0 0oo'sel 0 0 1818 B1BlS - G089
005 0 0 005 0 0 sjuswenosdwi| piej - L6S9
00S'L¥ 0 00521 0002 000°SE 000'2 Senlinn - 0659
0ov'2 0 0 0 00t'y 000'e suoydeja] - 5859
000'ee 0 0 00o'ee Bujpuey spyos - 0859
000'L 0 0 00s 00S 0 8j00] |lewsS - 5199
0S2 0 0 001 0s9 0 Jeap M9jes - 0259
000'L 0 0 000'L 0 0 $)28Yy7) UBld - 0959
000'sz 0 0 000'0L 000'GL esueldwo) yuuad Alojeinbey - g9se
00S'v 0 0 00S't 000'0L 0 s884 %} S}liad - 5550
00s'zh 0 0 000'9 0059 0 seo||ddng Bupesedq - 0559
0 0 0 0 0 0 SNoaUe|BasI - SS9
0 0 0 0 0 0 usweabeuey - £pso
[eloL a1sep pllos sybp 1eans 8B Aeyues uan/uiupy paujquiod

81/2102 1834 [€9S|4
lieleq psuiqwod
186png ssueuajuieyy suonesadp
10U1S1Q S82IAM9S Ajjunwiwos) Yyaeag BlINY



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

General/Administrative Fund



240 | abed

196png uiwpy o) wey aul ppY  00F'Z 00t'e abedgem - 0219
000'G 005'2 000'G Bugujel) - 0919
00S'0L GelL'6 00S'6 jusy - 8519
000’} 008 000'L S80JION 21iqnd - S19
00S'2 00S'2 00S'. abejsod % seyddns 3130 - 0v19
Aoijod pepeaN-sy enupuoy  000'se papeau se sbiw preog Buipusye [eba7 000'GL 000'62 jeba - sgl9
asealoul 1ybBys e sejedionuy  00z's 29.'% 000's $9a4 004y - 0E£1L9
diysisqwaw yaso 000 oog'e 000't suonduasqgns % senq - 0219
0 0 lejsuel | sAneSIUIUPY - $019
upny tof Wway auy sjenedas  00S'8 upny Bupunosoy - £019
00021 Bupunoooy pue yipny pspnioul 000‘gL 000'G} JogeT Bupunoddy - 2019
safoldwg 0oL‘L 0001 S8 aourinsu] dwod YoM - 0925
safodxa 002t 000'¥ 000'e nsuy| SHAIeD - 9525
Aunger] pepunjun eamay  000'SL 0002l 000'2 1 Ayrey sHadIeD - vszg
aoueInsul Ajuyjuow poL$  00F'8 0008 002’0t asueinsu| yleay - Zrzs
008 008 09% saxe] |joihed - 0£2S
aseatoul A1ejes %S 000'.e 000'se 000'Se sesuadxy [joifed - 0025
asuadxgy
008'L82 00€'S.2 000'£92 awoou| [e10L
Isessul 41y 000'GL saley 1salopu| soybiH 00S'elL 005'9 ewoou| 3salajy| - 009¥
0 0 0 SWoduj IsIW - 001
000'8¢ 000'8e 000'8e awodu| jejuey - 0601
0 0 0 Ayjeuaq ebieyd eye - 0201
0 0 0 sabuieyg Joqiey - gSob
Xe] 49 %0/ 000'SEe 000022 000'022 sexe] Qunod - 0£ob
008'e 008'e 005'2 Juenquy s3dlA8s 1oeUCY - 0201
0 0 0 anusaay BupesedQ - 010V
pauIquwoy sunoJdy jeisusr) pue ulwpy awoou|
asuadxg/ewoou] AteuipiQ
sjuswwo) gi/LL 1e6png sjuawwo) L1/9} pejosfoid  1ebpng [elsue/aagensiulwpyY
pasodoid PAVL: ]S LL/91
g/l

8L/LL0Z 429\ [29SIy
196png [erausn/uiwpy
joulsIg S921AI8S AllUNWWog Yoeag ejiny



2 o z afied

%08 AielUeS B %01 J81B M "UoBS %G SISEM PIIOS B SIYBI 188113 'SpUNy J8YI0 0} PeadS SIS00 SAIBISIUILPY

S8%IAleg JoenuO) alid D  000'GLL 000291 000'S.LI
009'c62 gB6l'LLe v16'0Le
0 0 0
000’2 000'2 0002
80O UIWpY 000’ oo8'e 000'e
0 0 0
0 0 0
005'S 008y 008'tr
dn-yoeg/uoddng || g 181do)  00S'z poddns 1] 006t 00S'2
WD 10BjU0D)  000'SEL 000'sEL 000'SZ1
suaWWo) gL/LL 1ebpng sjuswwos L1/91 pejoefoid 12bpng
pasodoig LL/9L L1/91
8L/LL

8L/LLOZ 1894 [€OSI4
186png |easuan/uiwpy
Jouisiqg seo1nIas Allunwiwod) yoseag ey

d0qeT Joenuod alld [ed - 0099
asuadxg unupy |e10L

snoauejjassily - SYS9
SellIin - 0659

jeusaiu| g suoyds|a] - ges9
sayjddng BupesadQ - 0559
uawabeuey - £SO
ajueinsu| - GEG9

ey ¢ ssedey dinb3 - o259
WD JogeT 1oenuoY) - 8059

[e1susD/eARRASILILPY

'S810N



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Sanitary Fund



240 | sbed

000'01L 00S'6 0000} $334 B SjiuLed - SSG9
005'9 00S'S 000'8 se|iddng BupesadQ - 0559
0 0 0 snosuejjadsipy - SyS9
000'S¥ 000'0t 000'st sisa) qeT - 0bS9
sseasoul a1BY %0+ 00G'G 000'S 000'S aoueINsy| - SEG9
000t ooL'e 000'% aoueBUslUIEY JojBIBUSE) - OEST
weiboud 100D 0OO'Y 002'S 0009 weiboid aseatn B |10 1ed - 5259
wewdinbs josbe  0OQ'DS 000'05 000°'0€ soueuelujel ¥} sireday dinb3 - 0259
dID-UON papsau se10B4U0D  000'SL 00S'2 o0oo'se Bupssuibuz - 5159
00S'Z 00S'S 000'G1 sued areds [eo1lD - OLSO
asealoul g sejedionuy  000'G8 | 000'S.1 000'681 Jogen) Joenuo) - 50599
asealoul %5 aledioiuy  00Q0'G. 00£'69 000'04 sjedlwsy) - 059
000 000t 000"t IsABIL @ [8Nn] - G919
0051 000°L 00S‘L abejsod 3 sajddng aa1y0 - OVL9
lemausal yuwiad 104 Hoddns |euoippe sejedionuy 000'01 000t 00001 _mmﬂl_ - GEL9
us|y sainss punoibiepun  00S 05€ 00S suonduosgng @ senq - 0219
asuadxgy
000'GLL 000'292 000'L.L SwodU| g0}
000's9¢ 000'55¢ 000'9€2 sexe) Ajunoy - 500¥
00009 00029 000'09 safiseyy Joqiey - 100t
aseaiou @ikl %0 Q0005 000'0S¥ 000'S.¥ anueaey Bupesado - coov
swoay|
esuadx3z/swosu) Ateupio
sjuslwod gL/LL 19Bpng SjueWWoy L1/91 pejoeloid webpng 21/91 h._mu_:nm
pasodoad FAY.:18
841}

81/2102 Jea), |eosiy
18bpng Aseyueg
101181Q sa9IAlas Alunwwo) yoeag elIAY



¢ jo g sbey

00009 000'0e 000'08
9/9'0¢ 0zlL'e9l G9L'Z01
YL¥'001 vi¥'00L vi¥'001
058’19 90¥'£0S LOE'E9S
1500 UIWPY JO %05  008'9FL 90€'get Li6'tel
0S0'LOS 001'18E 0S¥ Lip
000'se 00S'¥e 000't2
sulueid g sul vavos  Q0b't 000'v 000°F
|esodsig ® Uodsues) spios ol 000‘EE 000'0E 000'0E
00s 0se 00S
0s9 seab Alajeg/sanon 059 0st
pepesu se0BALUOD  QO0O'GL 124 [emauey Nwad oN 005S'L 000'se
SUSWWO BL/LL 196png spuaLIwo LL/9L peseloid wbpng L1/91L
pesodoug FAVLTS
8L/LL

81/L10Z 1294 [e9S14
19bpng Aiejues

1914181@ S991A19S AHUNWWOY yorag elIAY

Pled seag Ajoede) . o122
awoou| JBaylo

esuadxg /fawoouj jeN

uoneisaideq sjessy pexiq - 0L1L

asuedx3g BupesedQ [e3OL
igjsuel] SANBISIUIWPY - FOLY

asuadxzg Bunesadp |eloy qng

sallinn - 0659

auoydsje] - ggcg

Buypuey spijos - 0859

S|00L llews - 5259

ieen Aojes - 0259

sauendwo) yuued Alojenbay - oo
Areyueg

'SOI0N



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Water Fund



Z jo | abed

005 005 005 sjuswenosdw) paep - 1659
eI UL MeN 000°2 005°1 0002 salynn - 0659
006G 0se 00S sjoo] [jews - G/59
00} 00l 0S Jean) Ajases - 0259
papasu sejoeNU0D  O00‘0) 0052 0000} aoue|jdwo) Juusd Aiojejnbey - G959
000} 005"} 000'} $H§08YD ueld - 0959
aseasoul yBis seredionuy  0QG'Y 00zt 000‘v 8§39 @ sywiad - 5559
000'9 0009 000'9 saiddng BupesadQ - 0559
D 0 m:ow:m:ouw_—a - G459
0002 0002 0002 s)sal ge7 - 0vs9
008t 008y 008y esueInsSy| - GESO
000°0} sieday eoyubls  0G9‘G| 000'S jurel @ syjedey dinb3z - 0gs9
dIQ-UON papesu se wENUOD  (000‘0Z 005t 00002 Buusauibug - 5159
000'S 049'S 000°S Sued aieds [B2MD B SIBOW - 0159
Y700 suonessdg 10eAU00 0002 000'G9 000°02 10qeT 19BIU0D - S0S9
000'2 00S't 000'2 s[eauay” - £0s9
0 00l 002 S3J[I0N 21|and - G719
002’1 002°t 002't abeisod @ seyddng 22140 - Ov19
0002 0002 0002 le6a - sg19
00s 00S 00S suopduosqns @ sanq - 0219
asuadxgy
000'0ES 000°0€S 00S'2¥S awoou| [e10L
X149 %52 000'GL 000°S. 000°08 sexe] Ayuno? - 600Y
eseesoul 21e) %0  (Q00'SSH 000‘SSP 00S°' 29t anuaaay Bunesad - £00b
awoau|
asuadxz/swoou] Aeuipig
sjuswwiod g1/Lp 1e6png sjuswwoy L1/91 pejosloid 19Bpng 21/91 B3 17T
pasodoid L/t

aL/LL

81/2102 1B9A (9S4
196png J91e M\
1213813 S291A198 AlUnwWWwon yoeag ejINy



z 10 g abeg

0000t 000'%} 000°0¥
082°tl geL'el L6v°1L9
08962 089'62 089'62
0vS'98Y 26G'92P 62E9SY
100 WIWPY JO %0¥  Qbi'LLL 221'G6 61576
00l'69¢ 0L¥' LEE 0S.°'19¢
000°001 000041 000°00}
1800 Joyng ybnoia sspojoul - 000'SE L 000'G01 000°'SZ 1
sjuswwo) sl/LL 1e6png sjuswwio) L1/9) paiosloig 1eBpng s1/91
pesodoid L1/91

8l/LL

81/L102 JedA [BISI4
19b6png Ja1e M\

191181 $991A18S AjunWwiWo? yoeag ejIAY

pied sead Ayoede) - 0122
awoou| JBYl0

asuadxy /ewoou] 18N

uoneasdag siessy pexid - 0091
asuadxg BunesadQ |8j0L

A9JSUBI] SANBNSIUIWPY - FOLY
asuadxg BunesadQ jejoy gns

iajepn zadon - 2089
13]EAN 91B1S - S089

i1

:S810N



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Street Lighting Fund



i jo 1 eBeg

1500 UIWPY JO %S
00g's

002’2

swybi g3 meN [lelsu)

XEB| 45 %, 0] 8sEaliou|

SJUAWWOD 81/1}

81/21102 1BOA [2oS1Y
1eBpng 6

086‘vL- 068°GL- 00z's
08l'ge 060°LE 00S'E}
089'% L 06S°ClL 0
00S°LL 005'LL 00s‘el
00g's 008's
002’2 002’/

00521 00521 005'Z1
0 0

0 0
000'S /M syBi ond 4 g Y 000's 000'L
0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0
002'LL 002'G1 002°91
0 0 0
00z't 0021 002’1
00091 000'v 1 00s's1
0 0 0

jebpng sjuswwoy L1/91 pajoafosd 19bpng 21/9
pesodoiq LL/9L
8L/LL

1911810 $991A19S AJJUNWIWOY Yyoeag BlIAY

asuadx3g /ewoou] 18N

asuadyx BunessdQ je10L
sugil sApelSIUILIPY - $OLS

esuedxg Bupesadg [gj0) qng
j198.)g Juoiy
syb6i umo
sanlan - 0659
sijeday - 1959
SNoaue|@dsIy - SS9
aoueuUsluIel - ZPG5O

saxe] ||odhed - 0EZS [BIOL
aJesipail - NEDS
saxe] |joshed - 0£2S

isuadx3 [jolhed - 002S 101
sabep ssoi) . gLzg
sasuadx3g jjoifed - 002s
asuadxg

awoou| [ejoL
awodu| 9sIN - 00LY
fjireuad abaeyd eje - 0L0v
sabieyy Jogquey - 050v
sexel fjunoy - geor
enueasy Bupeied - oLOY

swioou|
asuadxg/ewoou) Aeujpio
wbry



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Solid Waste Fund



L jo | abed

oze'e 0162
089°¥ 1 065S°El
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1500 UlWpY JO %S 089'%1 06S°El
0
000°LI 00591
0 0
0 0

88+ OSIoUB. 000°Z} 00591
sjuswwWo) gL/L1 126png SjUBWIWOoY paosfoid
pasodoid LL/9L LL/9L
8L/LL

£L9's

18€'0}

[ e B o [ s [ e Y

L8€'01

0009}
0
0

asuadx3 /awoouj 18N

asuadx3 BupesadQ 1010
asuadx3 Bunesadg 101 qns

sijeday - 2959

sa||ddng BunesadQ - 0559
sSnoaue||aosI - S¥S9
juswabeueyy - £v59
3JueullUIRl - ZPSO
loqeT 1oenuoy - G059

leba - GE19
Jajsuel] aApRASIUIWPY - YOLYS
Bununoddy - ZoL9

asuadx3y

awoou| jei10L
awIodu| ISIN - 00LY
Aujeuaq abieyn a1 - 020t

000°9L S994 9sIyour.iq 3ISEM PIIOS - ZLOD

18bpng 21L/91

L1/9102 lea) |easid
196png aysep pijos

1014181 S991A1aS Allunwiwo) yoeag ejIny

awoouj|
asuadx3z/ewoou| A1eulpiQ

ISEM PIIOS



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Water and Sewer Rates



SY'ovis
G8'67TS
00°'SETS
0S€ETTS
SE'0TTS

WNWININ
1vLi01

S7'98%
S9°GLS
08'08$
0£'65S$
ST'95$

INNWINTIA
HIMIS

0T'¥SS
0T'¥S$
0T ¥S$S
0Z 7SS
0Z'¥S$

WNININTIA
HILVM

LO-YTOZ "ON uonn|osay Aq paysijgelsy sajey Jomas 13 121epn

S1INN S

SLINN S

SLINN §

SLINN S

SLINN S

asn

NNNINTIA

suo|jed gt/ Ajo1ewixosdde si 1a1em Jo Jiun yoeg

"PazZI|1IN S| J91BM SS3] JI UDAD ‘UOIIIBUUOD 3IIAIBS Yoed
10} pagdieyd SI 3DIAISS JO SHUN G 104 |1 AjyIuowWw WNWIUIW Y "pazIjiIn J31eM JO JunoLwie sy} uodn paseq i 9JIAI9S JOMAS

STLTS
€T'STS
9T'9TS
98'TTS
€TTIS

ERRA

4IM3s

%0 25e3JoU| a3eY Jamas pardopy
%0 2seaJoul djey Ja1ep) pardopy

8015 AYANNY1/TIVIYLSNANI
¥8'0TS 211aNd/TVIDYININOD
8015 SINVINVYL1S3Y
¥8°0TS ANAYS-ILTININ
¥8°0TS 1VILN3QIS3y
J1vy SSV1D
HILVM

LT/T/£ 3NI1D3443 I¥NIONYLS I1VH ATHLNOW d3iLdoayv asdgy

193png 8T/.10TZ Ad

1O141S1ad SIDJNAYIS ALINNININOD HOV3IE VIIAVY



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Water and Sewer Capacity Fees



RESOLUTION NO. 2013- 08

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
ADOPTING CAPACITY FEES FOR BOTH WATER AND SEWER

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services District (herein “District”) is a
community services district organized under Govt. Code §61000 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District has amongst its active powers the power to provide water for
any beneficial uses (Govt. Code §61100(a)) and to collect and to dispose of sewage and
wastewater (Govt. Code §61100(b)); and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed the recommendations of NBS and has
determined that those charges do not exceed the amount anticipated and are necessary for
providing these services to new connections to the water and sewer services within the District

(Govt. Code §66013); and

WHEREAS, that Notice of this Public Hearing was appropriately published pursuant to
Govt. Code §61016; and

WHEREAS, that the honorable Board has considered the report of NBS regarding
capacity fees on at least four (4) occasions. At the District's last meeting on November 12,
2013, the Board gave direction that the adoption of capacity charges be placed on the
upcoming agenda; and

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that the adoption of these new connection fees could
cause a hardship upon property owners/developers who have not perfected their right to
connect to the District's water and sewer services and wishes to provide a one (1) month
grace period before these new connection/capacity charges take effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED BY THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AS

FOLLOWS:
1 The above recitals are true and correct.

2. That the Board hereby adopts the connection/capacity charges set forth in
Attachment “A” to this Resolution.

3. That the effect of these charges be delayed thirty (30) days as to those
holding unperfected preliminary will serves to allow for District processing
but shall take effect immediately as to all new applications for District
water and sewer services

Page 1 of 2



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community
Services District this 10th day of December, 2013, on the following roll call vote:

AYES: Rowe, Janowicz, Waldron, Kelley
NOES: None

ABSENT:  Richards

ABSTAIN:  None

Ao gl

Peter Kelley, President
Avila Beach Community Services District

ATTEST:

CHy WDe

John Wallace -
District General Manager and
Secretary to the Board

APPROVED A _TO FORM:

A 0
i G,
Michael W. Seitz ~
District Legal Counsel

/

Page 2 of 2



i

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Preliminary Dratt. Do Not Cite / Distribute.

Water and Wastewater Capacity Charge Analysis
Whater Fee Classification and Calculation of Maximurn Fee

UPDATED WATER CAPACITY FEES BASED ON NO, OF EDU'S:

 Scenariot.— | Scenario 2

] s Alne " Equivatence fo | Updated i Bpdated oo
ISTens bfliza Existing W-_“f; 4 2-Badoom |- GApacilyFee. | CapacityFee ¢
: Capacity Fee™ ; Basedon Based on
: : : 2-Bedroom - - 2-Bedroom
: ‘| -Equivalency - |- Equivalency
Single Family Residence or Condominium, per
Residence

One Bedroom 44, 780.57 067 $3.442 24,301

Two Bedroom $7.170 86 1.00 45,163 $6.452

Three Bedroom 59,561 15 1.33 56,884 £8,6802

Four Bedroom $11,951 43 1.87 $8.605 | $10.753
Muli Dwelling

One Bedroom 53,824 46 0,53 52,754 $3.441

Two Bedroom $5,736.69 080 $4,130 55,161

Three Bedroom S7.648.87 1.07 $5.507 56,882
Mobile Home $4 780.57 a.67 $3.442 $4.301
Barber Shop (per chair) 191223 027 \ $1,377 $1,720
HBeauty Shop (per chair) 52 38029 033 $2.151
Dentist Office (per chair) 514,341 72 2.00 $12.903
Departinent Store (per employee) $764 88 a1 $688

or, if larger, (per 1,000 square fesl) $2,292 92 03z $2,063
Drug Store §9.56115 133 $8.602

wiFountain Service add: $25 B15.10 380 & $23 226

if Serving Meals add (per seat): 5056 11 13 $880
Laundry

{per Standard washing maching) £19.122.29 267 §11. $17.205
Meal Market

iper 1,000 square foel of floor area) 8656 11 013 $86D
Mole! or Holel (per room) $27.390 29 0,33 $ 52,151
(Office Building

(per emplovee) 247806 0o7 5430

or. if larger (per 1,000 square fest) 2,204 68 0,32 518 $2.065
Physicians Office

(per examining room) 53,824 46 053 53,441
Restaurant

(per seat at 20 gallons per day per seal) $382 45 0,05 £344
Theatre {per seai) $57.37 a.m 8§52
Cither non water intensive establishments.

(per 500 galions per day) $9,581 15 133 56,884 §68 602
Hoarding School, Elemn (per student) $1.434.17 a.20 [ §1,033 $1.200
Boarding School, Senior (per student) §1912:23 0.27 $1.377 $1.720
Church {per seat) $57 37 0.0 549 $52
Counlry Glub (per member) 5478 06 0.07 5344 | 5430
Civic Club {per member} $57.37 0.0 $41 $52
Elementary School (per student) $305 06 a.04 $220 | 5275
Nursing Homes (per bed) 52 BAR 24 040 52,065 ! $2.581
Rooming Mouse {per resident) §51,212.23 0,27 $1.377 $1,720
Summer Camps (per resident or camper) 51147 34 0.18 I 826 $1,032

1 ABCSD currently refers 1o the Capoclly Fee as § Hookup Fee, however NBS recommends the Dl's.fmt uze "Capacity Fee® as the ferm for this fee 1o be consistent with industy
staniards and because il more gppropnately describes what the fee is.
2 Foruses naf speciically included in (fvs scheduwe, and far hybind vses,
mulfiplying &y $17,057.08

3 Per ABCSD staff, cument capacity fees are based an Metdalt and Edgy strengthiiow factors NBS has calcuiated updated capacity foes based on the relationshio of eument
fees for 2-bedroom and J-bedroom SFR units to all alher cusfomer classes

s is shall be 1 by calpulating snmual waler usage of ihe vse n acre feet and

NBE - Local Government Solutions
Web' www nbsgov com Toll-Free 800,676 7514 Page 25 of 26



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT EXHIBIT 11
Water and Capacity Charge Analysi: Prefiminary Draft; Do Not Cile / Distribite,

Wastewater Fee Classification and Caleulation of Maximum Fee

UPDATED SEWER CAPACITY FEES BASED ON NO. OF EDU'S:

S : iSéenariad .- Scenato .
Equivalence 3o Updated— 1 "~ Updated
@ 2-Badroom | -Capacity Fee | Capacity Fee
2 3 Basad on “Baged on’: -
JSER Unit : :
PER LD ; 2-Bed_room vk .Badroom.:; i
| Equivaiency’s ¢ Equivalency =

Ekis ﬁgﬁa_tei’
- Capacity Fea'®

Single Family & or Cande ium, per Residance
One Bedroom 5260 94 o&7 $6.253 I $8.320
Twa Bedroom $1.471.41 1.00 $9,378 12,481
Thres Badroom 5996188 1,33 $12,505 516,641
Four Bedroor $2,452.35 187 s15832 ||  s20801

Multi Dwelling*

One Bedroom §784 75 053 55,002 36,656
Two Bedroom $137713 080 §7.503 $9.985
Thres Bedroom $1.568.51 107 \:;w.uoaJ 515,313

Maobile Home* SGED 94 0.&7 | 8253 i 58,320

|

Barter Shop™ (per chair) §352 38 027 | 52,501 | $3.328

|

Boauly Shop*" (per chair) $490 47 033 183,126 | $4.160

Dentist Office™” (per chair) $2.042 83 200 1875 524,862

Departmeni Store {per employee) 156 65 on 1,331

or, if larger, (per 1.000 square fee!) 3470 48 0.32 53,991

Dirug Store™ §1.961.88 1.33 516,641

wiFountain Serwce add: §5,267.09 360 544931
if Serving Meals add (per seat} 518619 o013 51,664
Laundry* $392377 et 533282
(per Standarc washing machine)
Meatl Market™ 519615 013 %1584
(per 1 GO0 square feet of fioor area)

Malel or Holel {per roam) £490 47 033 84 160

Otlice Building™*

\per employes] 5098 09 oor SB32
of. il larger {per 1 000 square feet) $470 85 032 $3.904

Physicians Office® 878475 0.53 56,656

{per axzmining room)
Restaurant™ 378 4B ans 5666
{per seat at 20 gallons per day per seat)
Theatre™ (per seat) $11.77 a0t 75 \ 2100
Other non water inlensive estanishmenls'™
{per 500 galions per day) §1 861 68 133 i‘mz_sa5~ 516,641

Boarding School, Elem [per student) 5394 28 020 §1876 . $2 498

|

Boarding School, Senior {per student) $392.38 Q.27 $2.501 | $3,328

Church {per seat) §1177 om 575 l | 5100

Country Ciub (per membar) $a8.00 c.o7 $625 11 | §832

Civic Club®™ (per membier) s1177 0.0 875 .I 8100
Elementary School (per sludent) 56278 004 sp0 || ss33
|
Mursing Homes {per bed) SSAAE 57 040 83752 | 54 852
Rooming Howuse (per resident) 5397 38 027 $2.50 | 53,328
|
Summer Camps (per resident or camper) $245 43 016 §1.501 h §1.997
1 ABTSED currently refurs to the Capacity Fee a8 a Hoohup Fes, however NBS recommends e Deticl uss “Capavify Fee” 3t fhe re.rm")'w thiz fee o by
conmigtent walh industry and I #f more i = what the feg Is.
2 For those uses nol specificaly included in the foiogoing Scheguie. and for fiybing uses, ahall bre di Dy catcuiating annual waler usage

arihe usedn acrr foot and mulipiying by the applicable acee fool rate for thal use{s) unier Paragragh A, B, or C of this section.

3 Per ABCSD siafl curen! capacily fees are hased on Melcall and Eddy SHENRHMow factore. NES has calculated updaled capacily feas based on the
refuffonsiip of curent fees for 2-hedroom snd Sbedronm SEF units te all other eustomer classos

The follawing notes are applicabile to e 2xistiog CapaLiy loas:
A Uses in which & rafion of wiler used fo sewage produced s essentialy - 100% waler bsed, 80% sewage produced. based upon §7.957.54 per acre foof anneal waler use

8 Uses in which § raho of water used to sewage produced 1s essenfally - 100% water vsed, 90% zewage produced, based upan B2 208 38 per acee foof of water used,

mmarked by *
€ Usezin wheh gssentioly 100% af the waler used is canverted fo 1o wage, based ugon $3 228 74 e acre foof of water used, marked by **

MBS - Local Govemment Solutions
el www nbsgoew com Todi-Free 800 378 7516 Page 26 nl 26



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

District Organization Chart



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FY 2017/18 Organization Chart

f

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

GENERAL MANAGER
BRAD HAGEMANN
(Contract)

DISTRICT ENGINEER
BRAD HAGEMANN
(Contract)

DISTRICT COUNSEL
M. SEITZ

ADMIN SECRETARY
K. DIBBERN

FIRE DEPARTMENT

UTILITIES
DEPARTMENT
(WATER / SANITARY)

STREET LIGHTING

CALFire CONTRACT

OPERATIONS MGR
C. BUTLER
(Contract Staff)

WW OPERATOR Il
M. WENTZEL
(Contract Staff)

26




Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Compensation
Effective 7/1/17



JlojesadQ Jueld JaIyD
1aBeuep oo
geee  LLee
8/t al'le
866z  6E'62
r/8z 8l'8e
gz/z 0l9e
»%0'Z Bunsixg
6 3AVHD

‘pasiue.ient Jou 1ng ‘dnoub e se seakojdwa |je o) siqeoydde
stjuswisnipy siyl -10msig eyl uo joeduw) [eosyy eyl uo Buipuedsp Jsjep Jo [ercidde Joj uolepusLLodal SIY Wim Buoje tebeueyy [Bi1auaL) ay) Ag preog ey} 0] pasodold pue juswuIsA0L)
fesopa4 aul Aq seaf snoinaid auy) 1oy pases|al uofeyul o) xapul 891d S 1BWINSU0D U] U paseq aq |jeys Jusoiad ajqedldde ay | “uonoe preog YONS 199181 0} PAIEINO[Eoa) 84 [|IM S|Npayds
anoqe au} pue Ajjenbe sdsjs pue sepeib e o} peiidde aq |m Jusoiad sy "sicloang Jo preog aui Ag paaocidde g Juswisnipe Buiay Jo 1809 & uaalb aq Aew seskodwa e ‘L Ainp uo Agea A

ANIWLSNray ONIAIT 40 1S0D

‘[eaoidde s abeueyy [elausy) pue meirel [enuue Alojoejsies ‘v delg Ul 801AI8S JO 1eak | JoyE a|qejieAe Si § dalg
‘[eaoudde s sbeuely [elausn pue malral [enuue Aiojoejsies ‘g dels Ul 801AIes JO 1eah | 1oe s|qe|ieAR Si + da)g
‘[eroidde s ebeuely [elauss pue meiral [enuue Aojoesies ‘Z deis 1B 801198 10 Jesk | 1a)e a|qe|ieA. S| g daig
‘ercidde s jefeue [eisusn) pue poued uoneqold Jo uona|dwod ‘maeirsl yjuow Xis AIOJOBJSHES LM 8|QB|IBAR SI aseaioUl 2 dalg

"92UBLINOUCD BBRILILIOY |auUosiad ay) 0} Joalqns panoidde aq Aew | delg anoqe Buuy “aBem Buiuels sy Ajjeaidk si | daig

Il o Aunn
fejaineg unupy

9/'62  S2'se
sZve  LL'6e
/9¢z sgee
8i'te  9L02
/96t 826l
* %02 Bunsixg
23avdo

PARIVIRC B CITE 1= R
saafojdwz Jusuewlad 4o}

| 18310 A
We|D Bununoooy

£9'¢g ge'ce
al'te 902
2961 82’6l
L1841 L8'LL
£9°91 0e9l

» %0 Bunsixg
§3avdo

sdelg palejey pue sapeir) Aed pesodoid

19LIS] S91AI2S AJUNWWOY Yyoeag BlIAY

186png Jea ) |eosid 81/2102

1sjoge

1s1dA1 el
ZL8L 1821
€991 0891
£8°GL  €0'SL
9% 2evl
166l YOEL

+%0°Z Bunsixg

v 3avHD

SHILINVHVd d31S
suoneladQ
uonensIuILpy
LNIWLHYC3A
Sd3l1s

¥ 4318

£d31S

¢ d3ls

L4318



Avila Beach Community Services District
2017-18 Fiscal Year Budget

Capital Equipment/Projects



E1-90-80

W G R0 T e LA L0E AL OS0aE L BEong mefeng e o prg, 7

(1800 8y Jo %5E Bunnguiuoo Q1S Yum 'peseq diysisumg 1 Gupeys 1s00) 19aloly usiwenoiduy [endeny =,
(81802 8U) Jo %G| BUINQLILOD OHTSd UM 'Paseg mo|4 S BULEYS 1S00) 108l01d soueusUe) =,
ONILLHEIN 133H1S =#7

HVIATVOSIH LX3N - I LYMILSYM IHNLNS =#4-MM
HALVMILSYM =#m
HYIA TWOSId IX3N - HILYM FHNLND  =#4-M

AIN
000'0LLE $ s1o8loid [ wawdinb3 jeyden Jeas-g [el0L
ooo'osL § 000'se8 § 000'SEL'E $ ooo'ves § 000'96€  § :eak jeasid Aq s1oeloud (Juawdinby eyden |ejo)
0052 § 005'2 $ 0052 $ 00s'L $ 0052 $ 00s'2e ] |eloiqng
008’2 8 005'2 $ 005°L B 0082 & 005'Z 3 00S'LE $ {papaan sy) sweyshs jeauoa)3 pue s)ubn eseidey Jo seday b1
Bunybi 1esns
ooo'ooL % ooo'sLt § 000'5L6 ooo'oor § 000'0LE  § 000'090'E $ ‘jeloyqng
D 00008 - § 0oo'ooL & 00005 $ 0 poo'ooz % watweoedey sur Jamas 19eng jenbipy ueg 9-4- MM
ooo'ocol % 000'0S $ 0 a o poo'osk % Waswaoejdey aur) Jamag 1984 U014 S-AAA
000 0 0 ooo'ook  $ 0 poo'oor % Buuoyuol aiyjueg pue uonosdsul lEANQ UBBIQ - M
000’002 000'05 1] 1] 0 ooo'osz % wewsdejdey Bl Jemag 18a1s 1811 E=-AM
0on'os ¢ o 000°0% % spswasosdw) WalsAs UoEULoYS 24 - MM
ooo'ool $ 00005 § 000'05 % 000’02 ¢ poo'oze % S108(01d JOTEMBISEAN SNOBUBIIBOSIN G- 81-4 L0Z- MM
00’0 S 000'se $ 000'S2 L3 000'SE $ 000’02 § 000'S6 $ Jieday aur uoRB|DD JSTEMBISEAN - BLILLOZ - MA
000 $ 00’0 L3 00'o $ D00'SE $ ooo'os ¢ 000'SL % si08lold Jusiuanoidwy [oRUOD $$8304d  E- BL/LL0Z - MM
oo $ 000 $ 000 § 000 $ o00o'sy 8 000'St $ suredey BuieoD (o 1Bp BN 2- 8114102 - MM
ooo'oor ¢ opo'oos % ooo'oog § poo'oor % 000'st  § poo'sie't $ sishfeuy pd/epeIBdn diman |- 81-2102- MM
J3]EMBISEM
000°05 § 000'05 % 000051 $ 000'sik  § o0p'nLL  § 000's6S  $ ‘[eroigns
000 $
000 $
000°GL $ DO0'0S $ 000 $ Doo'sgl  § sdiwng Je1soog zedo S
000 $ 000 $  000'5Z $ 00052 $  oo0'oE & 000°0L $ sjuswaseiday sur J121eA oSI €- 8L L102-M
000'0S ¢ 000'08 g 0o0°'0s & 000'SL $ ooo'ool $ opo'sge % wawaoeidey areAIIBN WBISAS J81BAA Z-BHLILOZ-M
00’0 $ 00'0 kS 000 3 000'SE % 000'08  § 000'SL 3 {Hodeu g | v} swey| aoBUSIURW 24 ' L4 YUEL J8jEM L- 8HLL0E-M
81BN
Dos'E 5 00s'g ] 0052 $ 0os't H 005'8 § 00S'LL § Eogng
0os'E $ 005'E $ 00s's § Dos'L % 005'8 § 0os AL & wawdinb3 [enden sajeRsLPY [Bleuen) L-av
uolenSILIWpY
-] 4 E 4 I Siea) g
2e/120e 12/0202 0Z/61L02 &L/81L02 BLILLOZ 18100 uonduasag way

wesBoad wawancudw epdes
1210810 S891A18S AJUNWIWLOD) YdESG BlIAY
19Bpng seah (0814 B1/2102



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors o
v P = % ;}f \_)

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Managdr /7

DATE: June 13, 2017

SUBJECT: Board Vacancy

Recommendation:

Receive Report and Provide Direction to Staff

Discussion:

As announced at the April 11, Board meeting, Director Ken San Filippo is moving out of
the District and therefore will no longer be able to serve on the Avila Beach Community
Services District Board of Directors. Legal counsel filed the attached notice with the
County Clerk Recorder on April 18, 2017, and staff has posted an announcement that the
District has a Director Vacancy and is seeking applicants in several public places and on
the District’s web page. Board members are encouraged to discuss the vacancy with their
friends and colleagues that reside in the District and if they are interested, have them
contact staff for an application.

Legal counsel Seitz will provide a summary of the process to fill the vacancy.



SHIPSEY & SEITZ, INC.

MICHAEL W SEITZ A LAW CORFORATION JOHN L SEITZ
1066 PALM STREET (1924-1986)

JON 8 SEITZ POST OFFICE BOX 953
(1947-2013) SAN LUIS OBISPO, CALIFORNIA 93406 GERALD W SHIPSEY
(805) 343-7271 FAX (805) 543-7281 (15824-2013)

mike@shipseyandszitz. com

April 18,2017

San Luis Obispo County Clerk Recorder

Tommy Gong
1055 Monterey St., Room D120
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408

Re: Avila Beach CSD Resignation of Director Ken San Filippo.

Dear Mr. Gong:

By Means of this correspondence I wish to advise you that Director Ken San Filippo has
moved from the boundaries of the Avila Beach Community Service District. The District was
notified of this change on April 18, 2017. By means of this correspondence 1 wish to advise that
pursuant to Government Code Sect. §1780 B the Avila Beach Community Services District is
advising you that the vacancy will be filled pursuant to Government Code Sect. §1780 by the
Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services District.

Should you have any questions in regards to this matter please do not hesitate to contact

me.

Very truly yours,

Shipsey & Sgitz, Inc.

nily, -

Michael W. Seitz, District begal Counsel

Mws:dlc



	Complete Board Packet 6.13.17
	Complete Board Packet Part 2  6.13.17

